




2011 Net Sales by Product Line
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New Product Development Pipeline
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We recognized the ea to raisk rrr

Mlis cul.s.reto nae it more open

and transpa ent oide move tte

company her perormance

sac key oo ectivo was to foster

greater degee of engagement

mm all employees te helo uo build

abetterconpany.Tiafou pllars

of MTI were ntended to rovde

the fouridatioi suoport eces or

th transformatcr

Safety became op pro itv or .ia

compary MTIs safety recordt

average or the Mater als sector

aid there was ea deal of roori

or improement As we ad with

four Unit atves we establ shed ead

teamthe Enviror mentai Heath

Salety Lead Tearr corrprsed of

eaders fror across he companys

businesb and resourca units Ths

ear flE charge was redice

be ub-r acc de ougho
The comoa The 1Oe was to achieve

wo Id asc cafety performance

andatioc wearenotyetat

that e.el we are ipproacning it

2006 the compar.ys jost work da

rate wa 156 inju ies per 200000

hoursvorkedarc in 2011 the rae

was dowi to 0.65a 75-percent

irr prove iert Today at MB SaFy
First the ciltural nom

Ou erfcr .s embed Operationa

Excel enca and Lean nncip es in

tie corroany began 2007 with

ernployee3 earring Can inuous

lrrproverr processesoS

rotal Prodi dive Maintenance

1PM Stir dard Work and

Da Var.gemen Crrtc Ye

ipproacieothsefortbyteacn

tnepnrc k.stoaarcadseof

eaders decor pary.wlo

Ji roi .0 em aoyees thi ougt ot

te garzatio This..ppoactta

igraiied rdse ot.essea looay

every MIt employee whether in

manufacturing operation staff

Luncuon engageo applyir these

tools aid processes in elimi ating

waste Aru the esuiw teve been

significant as our saies per employee

have mproveo by iore thar 25

oercent over tie last five years In

2011 our employees hed more than

400 Total Productive Wartenance

events and 730 kaizen eve its

which on average meant thst three

eontinuous Improvement events

occurred eve day somewhere in

Mit Our employees also continued

to generate new deas throujh

robust suggestion system whch as

becon an itegral oart of we

ope ata ror20 our errployees

generated more thai 6100 ideas of

which 65 percent were mplemerted

Cord nous Improvement had also

become nc ii our culture

Our Experse Redi.cton Lead rearr

wii.fl ie ad of Leai principues has

beer a. 3he forefront of finding

aysoften through the emp oyee

suggestio system -to imin ate cr

educe oxpenses Since 2006 we

iave been abie educe SGA
Irom 12.9 percent to 10.7 peent of

everue and total o.eriead vhicii

ncuudes plant administrative expenses

as been reduced by $40 mi lion

ar 20 percent

Estabuish ng Je fourth oil ar

evtalizing Mils iev produci

pelinelas been guided by the

rganio Growth Potential

EBffDA

2010

corpanys Technoogv Leaa Team

2006 ths team hith is conFr ed

sen ou scientists and siness

eade across the co twany va

aced witi anRDoipeineti4 va

early Tie tearr instituted new

oroduct develop en process tiit

since 2006 has generated more tar

300 new deas whicn 24 were

moved to the commercializatior ae

We have made eat strides ir

mov ng Mirerals Tecn iologies to

iigher level of penorrlarce thro

hese nitiaties and the execit of

our growth st ategies The compc.r

oday has so olat orr or bo

continued per mance in ove Tel

and gloS growth

3inother aenue owti we

nave been agg sve puraui

through Mrge.s ailA qrsiVo

enabled si cash posiio

S40i m11or AOouçh ou fort

ave yet tc come fruition we

ema veryactvei seercngout

nineials-bis.J co tries wrt

tecnno ogy capaoirt es erc

.evr..rage or core co rpetencieo

tue particle tech iology and crysta

engineer ng Some of the areas

-re lookin at nciude ie ene

erv.ronrrental and cor su ner secto

vhich ou prov de ess cyclict

eroosure ban our ebent ci

uciricels of paper steel costrt 10

rd automorve

sloB 7-t5%CAGR

gWa 0o 40bps yr

2015 Targets

$t4B-$1.5B

12%

15% 40bps/yr__ 18%

ROC 83% 75bps/yr 12%
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or pcnetraton ot new oroouts
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opportunstic bass and af cours

fuLfillment of ou acquisi ior aregy

Ate more Fan year ajo

we cur med our 2015 strateg

obpctves for \4T1s orgat gin Th

Those object yes included cc eas rg

sacs the rarge
of $1.4

oi tot vihicf repesents an oercent

acnua ncrease mpronir our

operatng aargns by 20 cc can

and or ngng our Return on Cap tal
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LcoHng 201 we see sfa9 ty

ou and siarkets most of tf

wo excep Europe at cc

concern We will cobrue to execute

our growth ategies geograproc

exoansion and ctroducion of

Ano ahve net oducts as we as

aggressinc purnue our acquis
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MTI began operations at two .d an

sate tes and one U.S fact ty whte

also 3eeing tHe frst revenues from

vestment exoansons at three

othem With these agreements

orace VII has now signed cortracts

for ne new saLellite FCC plants as

vU as our exparsions the ast

.c-oL years These fac es

Keeo MT growth in Paper FCC on

track despte cochnu ng arslocaoons

the nature markets of Europe

and rtb Ame ca where uncoated

oot- ree pane proauc.ion oHs

soc 20 percei be ow re

recess or eveis

The ahous re satektes

exedru yes reoresenr co rrad

addijona capacty at 60000 tars of

FCC 2012 the company expects

to gin operations at three Tore

tail.es miTh an aggregate anrual

aoac ty or other 51000 tons

New Contracts

Bashundhara paper Mi Is

Limited Bangladesh nerals

recrn oges vi bui and operate

saLe .ee tor Basburdnara Paper

ix tea at he gape companys

ri it Megh agnat The plant iH

procuco ahoC 30000 for.s of FCC

year and expected to come on

str earn he tUrd quarter of 2013

Double 1991 Pubhc

Company Ltd Thailand

MTI
II bui second satellite

sited at Double As mill in Tha Team

This new FCC plant will support the

addition of third paper machine to

the Tha Toom paper mill by supplying

approximately 80000 tons of FCC

year It should be operational in the

third quarter of 2012

Daub exports its premium copy

paper to rr ore than 100 nations and

is worla leader in environmentally

fr endly pulp and paper production

MTts elationship with this prestigious

oapermaker dates to 1996

JK Paper Limited India Mllwll

construct satellite for JK Papers

argcat mill ioca.ted nea Rayagada

the slate of Odisha India JK

Paper key component of the JK

Group one of ndias well-respected

business brands With fiscal 2010 net

sales of $248 million U.S JK is

orem er producer of branded printing

and writing paper and has embarked

on $360 million expansion and

modernization plan for the Rayagada

mill Over the next several years JK

ntends to install 165000 ton-

per-year paper machine along with

new pulp mill and boiler The MTI

satell te plant wit support the mill by

producing an expected annual output

of FCC in excess of 46000 tans

We are proud to have been selected

by JK Paper to effectively partner

with them in the largest expansion

in that companys history says D.J

Managle Senior Vice President and

Manag ng
Direc or Paper FCC



ABC Paper Limited India

MTI signed an agree nent with ABC

Paper to bui satellite at ABCs

rtegrated pu arid pape mu at

Saa Khrd in rho rcrtnan statu

of PupaS ABC Pape mited

urn bai stock exch angeHisted

corn pany with threedecade history

of paperrnaking rn India The MTI

plant will oroduce about 25000 to is

of PCC year and is expected to

be operahonal the third quarter

2012 ABC Paper en oys strong

custorner base across India for of its

range of wruhng and printing pape

Its brands include ABC Go ABC

Sapphire Pearl White and Blue

Diamond In 2010 ABC completed

multi-year expansion oroject that rnore

than doubed ts papei making output

West Coast Paper MHs Indm

MTI contracted fo and completed

atevute at West Coast Pape

Mills flagship pa and paper mill at

Dandeli Indiain the western state

of Karnataka The plant siottea to

produce about 36000 tons of PCC
was already up and running at the

erd of 2011 West Coast one of

Indias largest paporrakers recently

cornp eteu tne rnost ambitious

exoansior roect un hs hstory

Revoiutionizng te Way

Paper IS Made Since 1986

Mil
orig noted tie sale lite concept

for on-s to rnanufactung and

oe ivery PCC rnore than quarter

century ago and in the interveining

years has used that inovation not

just as olattorrn for rowth but

also for revolution zing oaperrnak ng

Today the corn pany erates or nas

under corstruction 56 satel ito PCC

an ao Idwide

We cii ri owE

apab ty hr ng CC
rouation areas

aiti DCC say SI nagie And

vec uagv pro viu

ddoilio eve age exec

draegyo geopanhc

The ulFIllT oIfOlIO
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ear toe olida
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ir cod to corn nercia

acno rcksf me MTi cooS ues to

make tecbn ca progress across the

specr 01 Eu Ftll orocucts The

EuFi b.ald wE be augmented

Fe alt at cr 1ecnnologies nbc

Ce elooment says Monagie Each

tb row approaches has

00 nor Scanty case

ccr epSon or FCC

FThl res bear do

as oovs

FulFi aTom subde nooifcato

FCC re 1OO or aopcat

no fods do eerrg or2 oar ts oV

add ora vh man.aiotng or

oi paoer oua Thc cor pany

co ar deal proo

ert or or ocr oaoer

uNFrers

FuF EreeeoreIve
to no As at cddeo FCC vo urn

E325 rcorpora es nique

ua add me of whch CMI he

xc JlO tccisoe

PulP as do misn 00

uore cuce cc able

DooM a3 CC eve

Jo or Lae2Th savtne

10 0e on i-FE V426
apocbe goaketeduroera

ntr 30110 agreen ent \aco

TOK too
ology

Eu 1JU our ii erA her onposu
been oiled he

HF blat ra as HF and

nor Ks sson .ft

En peon cus 0mm ft

or co 10cr no ogy that could

03 uugcr doub ing tne

HC paoer Co

crag rO

pam0 10 orer 30 percVnt Fe

ser -s also ohows orom se

for corno natIon use with othe

The FuF products ready in

Pout FulFill and FulFdl

yplcally allow the papermaker to save

between $5 and $25 per paper ton

The excellent versatilty of the FulFill

re major vehicle to enlarging

the companys Asian footprint
The

a-tocom aerciallzation process

has moved briskly Asia where

papernlakers tend to embrace

corlcept rap then are somewhat

more dellbeMte about building

the .ecHnolog fully nto For

manufacturing plants Although the

validaton period in North Amenca

and Europe unfolds more siowly

says Monagie we are encouraged

hat those papermakers are wi ling to

vo wIth us on faster proliferation

ac oss theIr grade structure The

rakaway Once North American

and Eu opean papermakers accept

he tech no ogy MTI expects them to

ategrate it nto then manufacturing

ants more puck

\t ful comrnercia ization the FulF IF

orand provide protItablllty boost

ao MTI to
supply papermakers

gher icr percerltages of

ner Jargln product Monagle

oesc Ices the obv ous synergy

Fe FulFillTM value proposition

papermakers currently use 20

pcrcert of our filler with the switch to

no ppropriate FulFill oroduct they

or have .o sell more paper to use

ore of ou product TheIr costs go

on while our revenues go up

to Ff1 expects the Eu Fl

oc Folio to fe1d excess 01 $200

hor In revenue within four years

tect log Ies the FulFill atform



New SateHte FCC Plants

OnStr earn in 201

in adoiiO to the new sateHite

Lo Wes Coast Paper which was

ainounced and completed

2011 the fotowing new plants or

expans ors began conthbutng to

the Mnerals Technologies revenue

st earn do ng2Oll

BaHarpur lndustnes Lim ted

BILT ndia The facOty for

Badarpur udustnes LHmiteds Sewa

Unit at Gaganapur in the state of

Crissa India nWa ly HI produce

5000 tons of P00 per year and

supply he paperfl ing needs

of he SDvva oape no MEnerals

Techno cg es so provdes P00 to

BILJs Sal arshah Jnit in the state

Maharashtra India us well as to

paper ri ir Spta Malaysia

SILT part of the $4 lior Avantha

Group Ind as argest manufactumr

and exporlero paper BILTstota

paper sales ror the most recent yeai

We nok urward build
ng or

and autually nward ng .elu nstip

wth th exceilert oaoer companC

says D.J Monagie

NewPage Corporation

Minnesota United Statem

MTI began suppi up to 70.000

annual to of P00 for fi ling

supercalendered paper at the Dulurt

oapcr mill The piart capab of

producing MTIs latest products witt

enhancements specifically designed

or premium groundwood irtng

and writing grades MTI also povides

DCC to NewPje Aorn satel te P00

plants at the paper companys paper

no Is Wiucousii Rapds Wsconin

nd Wickii fe Kentucky

Glatfelter Company

Chillicothe OH Mu added

10000 tons of capacity for the one

cupplie of goal ty ph rting pa ers

Double 1991 Public

Company Ltd Thailand

MTi corn pieted an expanD

snrg sac ite pa at

Toom Ii ircrnas up auac

20 000 .ors 70000 rue rc to

expanu or ado Hon ro

nooncement Mils coo in

sae lite or Doub

International Paper Company

Luiz Antonio Brazil

ategica impo ta expai

olace at Ce azilian facd We
ot oi worK ro si ore op eu cc

Caticrut rs an ost wi

cc ver cnuc ntrxc

rha gve or oasis Pc oy

new tecni ogics ey ly

yn Munagl

exceeded 00000 metric tons
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This new development allows steel

makers to measure refractory-lining

thickness in hot torpedo adle cars

in less than three minutes reducing

the need to cool down the vessel

for up to two days before manual

nspection of the torpedo adle can

be done This measuring system can

provide steel makers with mproved

safety increased adle availability and

capacity extended refractory life and

cost savings in energy material and

the maintenance of hot torpedo adles

Challenges clearly lie ahead New

comme cial construction remains

depressed while the automotve

industry continues its gradua

recovery although Minteg did see

some growth in North America

Europes widely publicized economic

malaise has produced significant

steel overcapacity with customers

scaling back opeiations to prop

up prices Although number of

European steel operations are down

double-digit as 2012 opens Schut

sees this as bottoming out and the

company expects improvement by the

second half of 2012

India is major growth area boih

refractory materials and especial

mete luigical wire whch used to

emove impurihes from the stee In

2011 Minteq ntroduced its 9mm

low- eactive solid core calcium wee

to address the reactivity pioblem that

can resu from the use of sur ace

fed wire in specific steel-mae ng

environments

Through its emphasis or best

practices Mi teq established imsek

as strategic BCE supplier to

major steel maker in India We were

able to increase the average furnace

life from 2.800 heats to neary

6000 heats year by applying she

best practices we deve oped in the

sister companies the Netherlands

and the UK says Schut We were

awarded the status of strategic

supplier based on the mpacL we

made on their opeatiosu Tr as

how we like to operate Winning

with tecnnology and our people

Ce ncc.J rearurcne cr
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Of course in making their customer-

specific refinements Performance

Minerals engineers work from

palate of exciting products and there

was no shortage of those introduced

in 2011 The company unveiled

two new Optibloc formulat ons

Optibloc and Optibloc 325

talc-based antiblockin prod ncts

for film and bag applications These

producfs are designed for high-

clarity film appicatons such as food

packaging and clear grocery bags

Optibloc and Optibloc 325

offer superior antiblocking elf ciency

They reduce sfatc and film-to-flm

contact thereby also reducing the

tendency of film layers to sI ck

together Consun ers can moVe easi

separate plastic grocery bags at the

store or open individual bags ater

at home Further these high-clarity

ow-haze products afford sufficient

transiucence for consumers ro see

purchases like meats and vegetables

ough the film 1ogether they

epiesent the next generation of Mi

patented Optibloc product line

utilized obally in on yethylene films

In 2011 the vision also an our ned

the launch of new ne of iO

l-absorp ion LOA talc oducts

Taicron LOA for use such

appicat ons as achtectral and

traffic pa rits imers and ndustria

coatings Products this series are

offered in wide ray of particle

sizes offer excellent scrub esis4ar cc

and rheology cont ol and contribute

enhanced weatherabilfy

Additonally the out ook for

performance Minerals sales for

automotive app cations proved

concert with that ndustiys .slow

ecovery Increased tac sales to sian

ndust ial auto ceram masufacturers

and Specialty PCC automotvn

sealant accounts have helped

drve business unit performance

Performance Minerals ta is am

ntegral to the manutacure of todat

more durao gh fextured arc

esthetica ly pleasing dashboards and

automot ye nter ors

ormance Minerals wii cont r.e to

expand and diversify its product nc

antmcipaIion with contnuously

hangng narketplace needs in 20
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PART

Item Business

Minerals Technologies Inc the Company is resource- and technology-based company that develops produces and markets

worldwide broad range of specialty mineral mineral-based and synthetic mineral products and supporting systems and services The

Company has two reportable segments Specialty Minerals and Refractories The Specialty Minerals segment produces and sells the

synthetic mineral product precipitated calcium carbonate PCC and processed mineral product quicklime lime and mines

mineral ores then
processes

and sells natural mineral products primarily limestone and talc This segments products are used

principally in the paper building materials paint and coatings glass ceramic polymer food automotive and pharmaceutical

industries The Refractories segment produces and markets monolithic and shaped refractory materials and specialty products

services and application and measurement equipment and calcium metal and metallurgical wire products Refractories segment

products are primarily used in high-temperature applications in the steel non-ferrous metal and glass industries

The Company maintains research and development focus The Companys research and development capability for developing

and introducing technologically advanced new products has enabled the Company to anticipate and satisfy changing customer

requirements creating market opportunities through new product development and product application innovations

Specialty Minerals Segment

PCC Products and Markets

The Companys PCC product line net sales were $560.6 million $554.6 million and $534.7 million for the years ended December

31 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively The Companys sales of PCC have been and are expected to continue to be made primarily to

the printing and writing papers segment of the paper industry The Company also produces PCC for sale to companies in the polymer

food and pharmaceutical industries

PCC Products Paper

In the paper industry the Companys PCC is used

As filler in the production of coated and uncoated wood-free printing and writing papers such as office

papers

As filler for coated and uncoated groundwood wood-containing paper such as magazine and catalog

papers and

As coating pigment for both wood-free and groundwood papers

The Companys Paper PCC product line net sales were $497.0 million $496.6 million and $484.6 million for the years ended

December 31 20112010 and 2009 respectively

Approximately 47% of the Companys sales consist of PCC sold to papermakers from satellite PCC plants satellite PCC plant

is PCC manufacturing facility located near paper mill thereby eliminating costs of transporting PCC from remote production sites

to the paper mill The Company believes the competitive advantages offered by improved economics and superior optical

characteristics of paper produced with PCC manufactured by the Companys satellite PCC plants resulted in substantial growth in the

number of the Companys satellite PCC plants since the first such plant was built in 1986 For information with respect to the

locations of the Companys PCC plants as of December 31 2011 see Item Properties below

The Company currently manufactures several customized PCC product forms using proprietary processes Each product form is

designed to provide optimum balance of
paper properties including brightness opacity bulk strength and improved printability The

Companys research and development and technical service staffs focus on expanding sales from its existing and potential new satellite

PCC plants as well as developing new technologies for new applications These technologies include among others acid-tolerantAT PCC which allows PCC to be introduced to the large wood-containing segment of the printing and writing paper market
OPACARB PCC family of products for

paper coating and our recently launched FulfillTM family of products system of high-

filler technologies that offers papermakers variety of efficient flexible solutions which decrease dependency on natural fibers

The Company owns staffs operates and maintains all of its satellite PCC facilities and owns or licenses the related technology

Generally the Company and its paper mill customers enter into long-term evergreen agreements initially ten years in length pursuant

to which the Company supplies substantially all of the customers precipitated calcium carbonate filler requirements The Company is

generally permitted to sell to third-parties PCC produced at satellite plant in excess of the host paper mills requirement

The Company also sells range of PCC products to paper manufacturers from production sites not associated with paper mills

These merchant facilities are located at Adams Massachusetts Birmingham England and Walsum Germany



PCC Markets Paper

Uncoated Wood--Free Printing and Writing Papers North America Beginning in the mid-1980s as result of concentrated

research and development effort the Companys satellite PCC plants facilitated the conversion of substantial percentage of North

American uncoated wood-free printing and writing paper producers to lower-cost alkaline papermaking technology The Company
estimates that during 2011 more than 90% of North American uncoated wood-free paper was produced employing alkaline

technology Presently the Company owns and operates 17 commercial satellite PCC plants located at paper mills that produce

uncoated wood-free printing and writing papers in North America

Uncoated Wood-Free Printing and Writing Papers Outside North America The Company estimates the amount of uncoated

wood-free printing and writing papers produced outside of North America at facilities that can be served by satellite and merchant

PCC plants is more than twice as large measured in tons of
paper produced as the North American uncoated wood-free paper market

currently served by the Company The Company believes that the superior brightness opacity and bulking characteristics offered by

its PCC products allow it to compete with suppliers of ground limestone and other filler products outside of North America

Presently the Company owns and operates 21 commercial satellite PCC plants located at paper
mills that produce uncoated wood-free

printing and writing papers
outside of North America

Uncoated Groundwood Paper The uncoated groundwood paper market including newsprint represents approximately 20% of

worldwide paper production Paper mills producing wood-containing paper still generally employ acid papermaking technology The

conversion to alkaline technology by these mills has been hampered by the tendency of wood-containing papers to darken in an

alkaline environment The Company has developed proprietary application technology for the manufacture of high-quality

groundwood paper in an acidic environment using PCC AT PCC Furthermore as groundwood or wood-containing paper
mills use

larger quantities of recycled fiber there is trend toward the use of neutral papermaking technology in this segment for which the

Company presently supplies traditional PCC chemistries The Company now supplies PCC at about 11 groundwood paper mills

around the world and licenses its technology to ground calcium carbonate producer to help accelerate the conversion from acid to

alkaline papermaking

Coated Paper The Company continues to pursue satellite PCC opportunities in coated paper markets where our products provide

unique performance and/or cost reduction benefits to papermakers and printers Our Opacarb product line is designed to create value

to the papermaker and can be used alone or in combination with other coating pigments PCC coating products are produced at of

the Companys PCC plants worldwide

Specialty PCC Products and Markets

The Company also produces and sells full
range of dry PCC products on merchant basis for non-paper applications The

Companys Specialty PCC product line net sales were $63.6 million $58.0 million and $50.1 million for the
years ended December

31 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively The Company sells surface-treated and untreated grades of FCC to the polymer industry for

use in automotive and construction applications and to the adhesives and printing inks industries The Companys FCC is also used

by the food and pharmaceutical industries as source of bio-available calcium in tablets and food applications as buffering agent in

tablets and as mild abrasive in toothpaste The Company produces PCC for specialty applications from production sites at Adams
Massachusetts and Birmingham England

Processed Minerals Products and Markets

The Company mines and processes natural mineral products primarily limestone and talc The Company also manufactures lime

limestone-based product The Companys net sales of processed mineral products were $115.5 million $110.4 million and $93.7

million for the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively Net sales of talc products were $46.9 million $44.0

million and $32.3 million for the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively Net sales of ground calcium carbonate

GCCproducts which are principally lime and limestone were $68.6 million $66.4 million and $61.4 million for the years ended

December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively

The Company mines and processes GCC products at its reserves in the eastern and western parts of the United States GCC is used

and sold in the construction automotive and consumer markets

Lime produced at the Companys Adams Massachusetts and Lifford United Kingdom facilities is used primarily as raw

material for the manufacture of PCC at these sites and at some satellite PCC plants and is sold commercially to various chemical and

other industries

The Company mines beneficiates and processes talc at its Barretts site located near Dillon Montana Talc is sold worldwide in

finely ground form for ceramic applications and in North America for paint and coatings and polymer applications Because of the

exceptional chemical purity of the Barretts ore significant portion of worldwide automotive catalytic converter ceramic substrates

contain the Companys Barretts talc



The Companys natural mineral products are supported by the Companys limestone reserves located in the western and eastern

parts of the United States and talc reserves located in Montana The Company estimates these reserves at current usage levels to be

in excess of 30 years at its limestone production facilities and in excess of 20 years at its talc production facility See Item

Properties for more information with respect to those facilities

Our high quality limestone dolomitic limestone and talc products are defined primarily by the chemistry and color characteristics

of the ore bodies Ore samples are analyzed by x-ray fluorescence XRF and other techniques to determine purity and more generally

by Hunter brightness measurement to determine dry brightness and the Hunter yellowness value We serve multiple markets from

each of our operations each of which has different requirements relating to combination of chemical and physical properties

Refractories Segment

Refractory Products and Markets

Refractories Products

The Company offers broad
range

of monolithic and pre-cast refractory products and related systems and services The

Companys Refractory segment net sales were $368.8 million $337.4 million and $278.9 million for the years ended December 31

2011 2010 and 2009 respectively

Refractory product sales are often supported by Company-supplied proprietary application equipment and on-site technical service

support The Companys proprietary application equipment is used to apply refractory materials to the walls of steel-making furnaces

and other high temperature vessels to maintain and extend their useful life Net sales of refractory products including those for non

ferrous applications were $287.4 million $264.5 million and $225.4 million for the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009

The Companys proprietary application system such as its MINSCAN allow for remote-controlled application of the Companys

refractory products in steel-making furnaces as well as in steel ladles and blast furnaces Since the steel-making industry is

characterized by intense price competition which results in continuing emphasis on increased productivity these application

systems and the technologically advanced refractory materials developed in the Companys research laboratories have been well

accepted by the Companys customers These products allow steel makers to improve their performance through among other things

the application of monolithic refractories to furnace linings while the furnace is at operating temperature thereby eliminating the need

for furnace cool-down periods and steel-production interruption The result is lower overall cost for steel produced by steel makers

The Companys experienced technical service staff and advanced application equipment provide customers assurance that they will

achieve their desired productivity objectives The Companys technicians are also able to conduct laser measurement of refractory

wear sometimes in conjunction with robotic application tools to improve refractory performance at many customer locations The

Company believes that these services together with its refractory product offerings provide it with strategic marketing advantage

Over the past several years the Refractories segment has continued to reformulate its products and application technology to

maintain its competitive advantage in the market place Some of the new products the Company has introduced in the past few years

include

HOTCRETE High durability shotcrete products for applications at high temperatures in ferrous applications such

as steel ladles electric arc furnaces EAF and basic oxygen furnaces BOF furnaces

FASTFIRE High durability castable and shotcrete products in the non-ferrous and ferrous industries with the added

benefit of rapid dry-out capabilities

OPTIFORIvI system of products and equipment for the rapid continuous casting of refractories for applications

such as steel ladle safety linings

ENDURATEQ high durability refractory shape for glass contact applications such as plungers and orifice rings

and

DECTEQTM system for the automatic control of electrical power feeding electrodes used in electric arc steel

making furnaces

LACAM Torpedo laser scanning system that measures the refractory lining thickness inside Hot Iron

Torpedo Ladle The torpedo ladles transport liquid iron from blast furnace to the steel plant

Refractories Markets

The principal market for the Companys refractory products is the steel industry Management believes that certain trends in the

steel industry will provide growth opportunities for the Company These trends include growth and quality improvements in select

geographic regions e.g China Middle East Eastern Europe and India the development of improved manufacturing processes such

as thin-slab casting the trend in North America to shift production from integrated mills to electric arc furnaces mini-mills and the

ever-increasing need for improved productivity and longer lasting refractories

The Company sells its refractory products in the following markets



Steel Furnace The Company sells gunnable monolithic refractory products and application systems to users of basic oxygen
furnaces and electric furnaces for application on furnace walls to prolong the life of furnace linings

Other Iron and Steel The Company sells monolithic refractory materials and pre-cast refractory shapes for iron and steel ladles

vacuum degassers continuous casting tundishes blast furnaces and reheating furnaces The Company offers full line of materials to

satisfy most continuous casting refractory applications This full line consists of gunnable materials refractory shapes and permanent

linings

industrial Refractory Systems The Company sells refractory shapes and linings to non-steel refractories consuming industries

including glass cement aluminum and petrochemicals power generation and other non-steel industries The Company also produces

specialized line of carbon composites and pyrolitic graphite primarily sold under the PYROID trademark primarily to the

aerospace and electronics industries

Metallurgical Products and Markets

The Company produces number of other technologically advanced products for the steel industry including calcium metal

metallurgical wire products and number of metal treatment specialty products Net sales of metallurgical products were $81.4

million $72.9 million and $53.5 million for the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 The Company manufactures calcium

metal at its Canaan Connecticut facility and purchases calcium in international markets Calcium metal is used in the manufacture of

the Companys PFERROCAL solid-core calcium wire and is also sold for use in the manufacture of batteries and magnets We also

manufacture cored wires at our Canaan Connecticut and Hengelo Netherlands manufacturing sites The Company sells metallurgical

wire products and associated wire-injection equipment for use in the production of high-quality steel These metallurgical wire

products are injected into molten steel to improve castability and reduce imperfections The steel produced is used for high-pressure

pipeline and other premium-grade steel applications

Marketing and Sales

The Company relies principally on its worldwide direct sales force to market its products The direct sales force is augmented by

technical service teams that are familiar with the industries to which the Company markets its products and by several regional

distributors The Companys sales force works closely with the Companys tecimical service staff to solve technical and other issues

faced by the Companys customers The Companys technical service staff assists paper producers in ongoing evaluations of the use of

PCC for
paper coating and filling applications In the Refractory segment the Companys technical service personnel advise on the use

of refractory materials and in many cases pursuant to service agreements apply the refractory materials to the customers furnaces

and other vessels Continued use of skilled technical service teams is an important component of the Companys business strategy

The Company works closely with its customers to ensure that their requirements are satisfied and it often trains and supports

customer personnel in the use of the Companys products The Company oversees domestic marketing and sales activities from

Bethlehem Pennsylvania and from regional sales offices in the eastern and western United States The Companys international

marketing and sales efforts are directed from regional centers located in Brussels Belgium Sao Jose Dos Campos Brazil and

Shanghai China The Company believes its processed minerals are at regional locations that satisfy the stringent delivery

requirements of the industries they serve The Company also believes that its worldwide network of sales personnel and

manufacturing sites facilitates the continued international expansion

Raw Materials

The Company depends in part on having an adequate supply of raw materials for its manufacturing operations particularly lime

and carbon dioxide for the PCC product line magnesia and alumina for its Refractory operations and on having adequate access to

ore reserves at its mining operations

The Company uses lime in the production of PCC and is significant purchaser of lime worldwide Generally lime is purchased

under long-term supply contracts from unaffihiated suppliers located in close geographic proximity to the Companys PCC plants

Generally the lime utilized in our business is readily available from numerous sources including to small extent from our Adams
Massachusetts facility Carbon dioxide is readily available in exhaust gas from the host paper mills or other operations at our

merchant facilities

The principal raw materials used in the Companys monolithic refractory products are refractory-grade magnesia and various forms

of alumina silicates The Company purchases portion of its magnesia requirements from sources in China The price and

availability of bulk raw materials from China are subject to fluctuations that could affect the Companys sales to its customers In

addition the volatility of transportation costs have also affected the delivered cost of raw materials imported from China to North

America and Europe The Company has developed alternate sources of magnesia over the past few years that has reduced our reliance

on China sourced magnesia The alumina we utilize in our business is readily available from numerous sources The Company also

purchases calcium metal calcium suicide graphite calcium carbide and various alloys for use in the production of metallurgical wire

products and uses lime and aluminum in the production of calcium metal



Competition

The Company is continually engaged in efforts to develop new products and technologies and refine existing products and

technologies in order to remain competitive and to position itself as market leader

With respect to its PCC products the Company competes for sales to the paper industry with other minerals such as GCC and

kaolin based in large part upon technological know-how patents and processes
that allow the Company to deliver PCC that it believes

imparts gloss brightness opacity and other properties to paper on an economical basis The Company is the leading manufacturer and

supplier of PCC to the paper industry

The Company competes in sales of its limestone and talc based primarily upon quality price and geographic location

With respect to the Companys refractory products competitive conditions vary by geographic region Competition is based upon

the performance characteristics of the product including strength consistency and ease of application price and the availability of

technical support

Research and Development

Many of the Companys product lines are technologically advanced Our expertise in inorganic chemistry crystallography and

structural analysis fine particle technology and other aspects of materials science apply to and support all of our product lines The

Companys business strategy for growth in sales and profitability depends to large extent on the continued success of its research

and development activities Among the significant achievements of the Companys research and development efforts have been the

satellite PCC plant concept FCC crystal morphologies for paper coating AT FCC for wood-containing papers FulfihITM high filler

technology systems the development of FASTFIRE and OPTIFORM shotcrete refractory products LACAM laser-based

refractory measurement systems the MINSCAN and HOTCRETE application systems and EMforce for the Processed Minerals

and Specialty PCC product lines

Under the FulfillTM platform of products the Company continues to develop its filler-fiber composite material The FulfillTM brand

High Filler Technology is portfolio of high-filler technologies that offers papermakers variety of efficient flexible solutions that

decreases dependency on natural fiber and reduces costs The FulfillTM E-325 series allows papermakers to increase filler loading

levels of precipitated calcium carbonate PCC which replaces higher cost pulp and increases PCC usage Depending on paper

grades this PCC volume increase may range from 15 to 30 percent The Company continues to progress in the commercialization of

FulfillTM E-325 We have signed agreements with five paper mills and are actively engaged with additional
paper

mill sites for further

FulfillTM deployment We continue product development with other products within this platform The Company is currently in

commercial discussions with company in Europe for FuIFiIITM our most advanced high filler technology

The Company will also continue to reformulate its refractory materials to be more competitive and will also continue development

of unique calcium carbonates for use in novel biopolymers

For the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 the Company spent approximately $19.3 million $19.6 million and $19.9

million respectively on research and development The Companys research and development spending for 2011 2010 and 2009 was

approximately 1.9 2.0% and 2.2% of net sales respectively

The Company maintains its primary research facilities in Bethlehem and Easton Pennsylvania It also has research and

development facilities in China Finland Germany Ireland Japan and Turkey Approximately 77 employees worldwide are engaged

in research and development In addition the Company has access to some of the worlds most advanced papermaking and
paper

coating pilot facilities

Patents and Trademarks

The Company owns or has the right to use approximately 242 patents and approximately 851 trademarks related to its business

Our patents expire between 2012 and 2030 Our trademarks continue indefinitely The Company believes that its rights under its

existing patents patent applications and trademarks are of value to its operations but no one patent application or trademark is

material to the conduct of the Companys business as whole

Insurance

The Company maintains liability and property insurance and insurance for business interruption in the event of damage to its

production facilities and certain other insurance covering risks associated with its business The Company believes such insurance is

adequate for the operation of its business There is no assurance that in the future the Company will be able to maintain the coverage

currently in place or that the premiums will not increase substantially



Employees

At December 31 2011 the Company employed 2077 persons of whom 1028 were employed outside of the United States

Environmental Health and Safety Matters

The Companys operations are subject to federal state local and foreign laws and regulations relating to the environment and

health and safety Certain of the Companys operations involve and have involved the use and release of substances that have been

and are classified as toxic or hazardous within the meaning of these laws and regulations Environmental operating permits are or

may be required for certain of the Companys operations and such permits are subject to modification renewal and revocation The

Company regularly monitors and reviews its operations procedures and policies for compliance with these laws and regulations The

Company believes its operations are in substantial compliance with these laws and regulations and that there are no violations that

would have material effect on the Company Despite these compliance efforts some risk of environmental and other damage is

inherent in the Companys operations as it is with other companies engaged in similarbusinesses and there can be no assurance that

material violations will not occur in the future The cost of compliance with these laws and regulations is not expected to have

material adverse effect on the Company

Laws and regulations are subject to change See Item 1A Risk Factors for information regarding the possible effects that

compliance with new environmental laws and regulations including those relating to climate change may have on our businesses and

operating results

Under the terms of certain agreements entered into in connection with the Companys initial public offering in 1992 Pfizer Inc

Pfizer and its wholly-owned subsidiary Quigley Company Inc Quigley agreed to indemnify the Company against certain

liabilities being retained by Pfizer and its subsidiaries including but not limited to pending lawsuits and claims and any lawsuits or

claims brought at any time in the future alleging damages or injury from the use handling of or exposure to any product sold by

Pfizers specialty minerals business prior to the closing of the initial public offering

Available Information

The Company maintains an internet website located at http//www.mineralstech.com Its reports on Forms 10-K 0-Q and 8-K
and amendments to those reports as well as its Proxy Statement and filings under Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

are available free of charge through the Investor Relations page of its website as soon as reasonably practicable after they are filed

with the Securities and Exchange Commission SEC Investors may access these reports through the Companys website by

navigating to Investor Relations and then to SEC Filings

Financial information concerning our business segments and the geographical areas in which we operate appears in the Notes to the

Consolidated Financial Statements Information related to our executive officers is included in Item 10 Directors Executive

Officers and Corporate Governance

Item 1A Risk Factors

Our business faces significant risks These risks include those described below and may include additional risks and uncertainties

not presently known to us Our business financial condition and results of operations could be materially adversely affected by any of

these risks These risks should be read in conjunction with the other information in this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Worldwide general economic business and industiy conditions have had and may continue to have an adverse effect on the

Companys results

The global economic instability of the past few years has caused among other things declining consumer and business

confidence volatile raw material prices instability in credit markets high unemployment fluctuating interest and exchange rates

and other challenges The Companys business and operating results have been and may continue to be adversely affected by

these global economic conditions In particular our operations in Europe continue to be impacted by the uncertain European

economy currency or financial crisis in Europe could precipitate significant decline in the European economy which would

likely result in decrease in demand for our products in Europe The Companys customers and potential customers may
experience deterioration of their businesses cash flow shortages and difficulty obtaining financing As discussed below the

industries we serve primarily paper steel construction and automotive have been particularly adversely affected by the uncertain

global economic climate due to the cyclical nature of their businesses As result existing or potential customers may reduce or

delay their growth and investments and their plans to purchase products and may not be able to fulfill their obligations in timely

fashion Further suppliers could experience similar conditions which could affect their ability to fulfill their obligations to the

Company Adversity within capital markets may impact future return on pension assets thus resulting in greater future pension

costs that impact the companys results Global economic markets remains uncertain and there can be no assurance that market

conditions will improve in the near future Future weakness in the global economy could materially and adversely affect our

business and operating results



The Companys operations are subject to the cyclical nature of its customers businesses and we may not be able to mitigate

that risk

The majority of the Companys sales are to customers in industries that have historically been cyclical paper steel construction

and automotive These industries have been particularly adversely affected by the uncertain global economic climate Our

Refractories segment primarily serves the steel industry North American and European steel production has continued to improve

from 2009 but in 2011 was still approximately 15% below 2008 levels In the paper industry which is served by our Paper PCC

product line production levels for printing and writing papers within North America and Europe our two largest markets remain

approximately 15% below 2008 levels The reduced demand for paper industry products has also caused the paper industry to

experience number of recent bankruptcies and paper mill closures including among our customers In addition our Processed

Minerals and Specialty PCC product lines are affected by the domestic building and construction markets and the automotive

market Housing starts in 2011 averaged approximately 607 thousand units 4% improvement over 2010 Housing starts were at

peak rate of 2.1 million units in 2005 In the automotive industry North American car and truck production was up 12% in

2011 but remains well below 2008 levels Demand for our products is subject to these trends In addition these trends could cause

our customers to face liquidity issues or bankruptcy which could deteriorate the aging of our accounts receivable increase our bad

debt
exposure

and possibly trigger impairment of assets or realignment of our businesses The Company has taken steps to reduce

its exposure to variations in its customers businesses including by diversifying its portfolio of products and services through

geographic expansion and by structuring most of its long-term satellite PCC contracts to provide degree of protection against

declines in the quantity of product purchased since the price per ton of PCC generally rises as the number of tons purchased

declines In addition many of the Companys product lines lower its customers costs of production or increase their productivity

which should encourage them to use its products However there can be no assurance that these efforts will mitigate the risks of

our dependence on these industries Continued weakness in the industries we serve has had and may in the future have an

adverse effect on sales of our products and our results of operations continued or renewed economic downturn in one or more

of the industries or geographic regions that the Company serves or in the worldwide economy could cause actual results of

operations to differ materially from historical and expected results

The Companys results could be adversely affected if it is unable to effrcuively achieve and implement its growth initiatives

Sales and income growth of the Company depends upon number of uncertain events including the outcome of the Companys

strategies of increasing its penetration into geographic markets such as the BRIC Brazil Russia India China countries and other

Asian and Eastern European countries increasing its penetration into product markets such as the market for papercoating

pigments and the market for groundwood paper pigments increasing sales to existing PCC customers by increasing the amount of

PCC used per ton of paper produced developing introducing and selling new products such as the FulfihlTM family of products for

the paper industry Difficulties delays or failure of any of these strategies could affect the future growth rate of the Company
Our strategy also anticipates growth through future acquisitions However our ability to identify and consummate any future

acquisitions on terms that are favorable to us may be limited by the number of attractive acquisition targets internal demands on

our resources and our ability to obtain financing Our success in integrating newly acquired businesses will depend upon our

ability to retain key personnel avoid diversion of managements attention from operational matters and integrate general and

administrative services In addition future acquisitions could result in the incurrence of additional debt costs and contingent

liabilities Integration of acquired operations may take longer or be more costly or disruptive to our business than originally

anticipated and it is also possible that expected synergies from future acquisitions may not materialize We also may incur costs

and divert management attention with regard to potential acquisitions that are never consummated

The Companys sales of FCC could be adversely affected by our failure to renew or extend long term sales contracts for our

satellite operations

The Companys sales of PCC to paper customers are typically pursuant to long-term evergreen agreements initially ten years in

length with paper mills where the Company operates satellite PCC plants Sales pursuant to these contracts represent significant

portion of our worldwide Paper PCC sales which were $497.0 million in 2011 or approximately 47.5% of the Companys net

sales The terms of many of these agreements have been extended or renewed in the past often in connection with an expansion

of the satellite plant However failure of number of the Companys customers to renew or extend existing agreements on terms

as favorable to the Company as those currently in effect or at all could have substantial adverse effect on the Companys results

of operations and could also result in impairment of the assets associated with the PCC plant

The Companys sales could be adversely affected by consolidation in customer industries principally paper and steel

Several consolidations in the
paper industry have taken place in recent years

and such consolidation could continue in the future

These consolidations could result in partial or total closure of some paper mills where the Company operates PCC satellites In

2011 the Company idled its satellite plant in Anj alankoski Finland due to the permanent closure of the paper mill and the

Companys satellite plant at Alizay France is temporarily closed while the mills owner seeks to divest it Such closures would

reduce the Companys sales of PCC except to the extent that they resulted in shifting paper production and associated purchases of

PCC to another location served by the Company Similarly consolidations have occurred in the steel industry Such

consolidations in the two maj or industries we serve concentrate purchasing power in the hands of smaller number of



papermakers and steel manufacturers enabling them to increase pressure on suppliers such as the Company This increased

pressure could have an adverse effect on the Companys results of operations in the future

The Company is subject to stringent regulation in the areas of environmental health and safety and tax and may incur

unanticipated costs or liabilities arising out of claims for various lega4 environmental and tax matters or product stewardshzp

issues

The Companys operations are subject to international federal state and local governmental environmental health and safety tax

and other laws and regulations We have expended and may be required to expend in the future substantial funds for compliance

with such laws and regulations In addition future events such as changes to or modifications of interpretations of existing laws

and regulations or enforcement polices or further investigation or evaluation of the potential environmental impacts of operations

or health hazards of certain products may give rise to additional compliance and other costs that could have material adverse

effect on the Company State national and international governments and agencies have been evaluating climate-related

legislation and regulation that would restrict emissions of greenhouse gases in areas in which we conduct business and some such

legislation and regulation have already been enacted or adopted Enactment of climate-related legislation or adoption of regulation

that restrict emissions of greenhouse gases in areas in which we conduct business could have an adverse effect on our operations

or demand for our products Our manufacturing processes particularly the manufacturing process for PCC use significant

amount of energy and should energy prices increase as result of such legislation or regulation we may not be able to pass these

increased costs on to purchasers of our products We cannot predict if or when currently proposed or additional laws and

regulations regarding climate change or other environmental or health and safety concerns will be enacted or adopted Moreover

changes in tax regulation and international tax treaties could reduce the financial performance of our foreign operations

The Company is currently party in various litigation matters and tax and environmental proceedings and faces risks arising from

various unasserted litigation matters including but not limited to product liability patent infringement antitrust claims and

claims for third party property damage or personal injury stemming from alleged environmental torts. Failure to appropriately

manage safety human health product liability and environmental risks associated with the Companys products and production

processes could adversely impact the Companys employees and other stakeholders the Companys reputation and its results of

operations Public perception of the risks associated with the Companys products and production processes could impact product

acceptance and influence the regulatory environment in which the Company operates While the Company has procedures and

controls to manage these risks carries liability insurance which it believes to be appropriate to its businesses and has provided

reserves for current matters which it believes to be adequate an unanticipated liability arising out of current matter or

proceeding or from the other risks described above could have material adverse effect on the Companys financial condition or

results of operations

Delays or failures in new product development could adversely affrct the Companys operations

The Companys future business success will depend in part upon its ability to maintain and enhance its technological capabilities

to respond to changing customer needs and to successfully anticipate or respond to technological changes on cost-effective and

timely basis The Company is engaged in continuous effort to develop new products and processes in all of its product lines

Difficulties delays or failures in the development testing production marketing or sale of such new products could cause actual

results of operations to differ materially from our expected results

The Companys ability to compete is dependent upon its ability to defrnd its intellectual property against infringement

The Companys ability to compete is based in part upon proprietary knowledge both patented and unpatented The Companys

ability to achieve anticipated results depends in part on its ability to defend its intellectual property against inappropriate

disclosure as well as against infringement In addition development by the Companys competitors of new products or

technologies that are more effective or less expensive than those the Company offers could have material adverse effect on the

Companys financial condition or results of operations

The Companys operations could be impacted by the increased risks of doing business abroad

The Company does business in many areas internationally Approximately 47% of our sales in 2011 were derived from outside

the United States and we have significant production facilities which are located outside of the United States We are presently

concerned about the possibility of recessionary conditions in Europe from which we derived approximately 30% of our sales in

2011 We have in recent years expanded our operations in emerging markets and we plan to continue to do so in the future

particularly in China India Brazil and Eastern Europe Some of our operations are located in areas that have experienced

political or economic instability including Indonesia Brazil Thailand China and South Africa As the Company expands its

operations overseas it faces increased risks of doing business abroad including inflation fluctuation in interest rates changes in

applicable laws and regulatory requirements export and import restrictions tariffs nationalization expropriation limits on

repatriation of funds civil unrest terrorism unstable governments and legal systems and other factors Adverse developments in

any of the areas in which we do business could cause actual results to differ materially from historical and expected results In
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addition significant portion of our raw material purchases and sales outside the United States are denominated in foreign

currencies and liabilities for non-U.S operating expenses and income taxes are denominated in local currencies Accordingly

reported sales net earnings cash flows and fair values have been and in the future will be affected by changes in foreign currency

exchange rates Our overall success as global business depends in part upon our ability to succeed in differing legal regulatory

economic social and political conditions We cannot assure you that we will implement policies and strategies that will be

effective in each location where we do business

The Companys operations are dependent on the availability of raw materials and increases in costs of raw materials or energy

could adversely affect our financial results

The Company depends in part on having an adequate supply of raw materials for its manufacturing operations particularly lime

and carbon dioxide for the PCC product line and magnesia and alumina for its Refractory operations and on having adequate

access to ore reserves of appropriate quality at its mining operations Purchase prices and availability of these critical raw

materials are subject to volatility At any given time we may be unable to obtain an adequate supply of these critical raw

materials on timely basis on price and other terms or at all

While most such raw materials are readily available the Company purchases portion of its magnesia requirements from sources

in China The price and availability of magnesia have fluctuated in the past and they may fluctuate in the future Price increases

for certain other of our raw materials as well as increases in energy prices have also affected our business Our ability to recover

increased costs is uncertain The Company and its customers will typically negotiate reasonable price adjustments in order to

recover portion of these rapidly escalating costs While the contracts pursuant to which we construct and operate our satellite

PCC plants generally adjust pricing to reflect increases in costs resulting from inflation there is time lag before such price

adjustments can be implemented In 2011 increased raw materials affected our Specialty Minerals segment by 13 million while

raw material prices affected our Refractories segment by 14 million These increased raw material costs in both segments were

partially offset by price increases

We cannot predict whether and how much prices for our key raw materials will increase in the future Changes in the costs or

availability of such raw materials to the extent we cannot recover them in price increases to our customers could adversely affect

the Companys results of operations

The Company operates in very competitive industries which could adversely affect our profitability

The Company has many competitors Some of our principal competitors have greater financial and other resources than we have

Accordingly these competitors may be better able to withstand changes in conditions within the industries in which we operate

and may have significantly greater operating and financial flexibility than we do As result of the competitive environment in

the markets in which we operate we currently face and will continue to face pressure on the sales prices of our products from

competitors which could reduce profit margins

Production facilities are subject to operating risks and capacity limitations that may adversely affect the Companys financial

condition or results of operations

The Company is dependent on the continued operation of its production facilities Production facilities are subject to hazards

associated with the manufacturing handling storage and transportation of chemical materials and products including pipeline

leaks and ruptures explosions fires inclement weather and natural disasters mechanical failure unscheduled downtime labor

difficulties transportation interruptions and environmental risks We maintain property business interruption and casualty

insurance but such insurance may not cover all risks associated with the hazards of our business and is subject to limitations

including deductibles and maximum liabilities covered We may incur losses beyond the limits or outside the coverage of our

insurance policies Further from time to time we may experience capacity limitations in our manufacturing operations In

addition if we are unable to effectively forecast our customers demand it could affect our ability to successfully manage

operating capacity limitations These hazards limitations disruptions in supply and capacity constraints could adversely affect

financial results

Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments

None

Item Properties

Set forth below is the location of and the main customer served by each of the Companys satellite PCC plants in operation as of

December 31 2011 Generally the land on which each satellite PCC plant is located is leased at nominal amount by the Company
from the host paper

mill pursuant to lease the term of which generally runs concurrently with the term of the PCC production and

sale agreement between the Company and the host paper mill
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Location

United States

Alabama Courtland

Alabama Jackson

Alabama Selma

Arkansas Ashdown

Florida Pensacola

Kentucky Wickliffe

Louisiana Port Hudson

Maine Jay

Maine Madison

Michigan Quinnesec

Minnesota Cloquet

Minnesota International Falls

New York Ticonderoga

Ohio Chillicothe

Ohio West Carroliton

South Carolina Eastover

Washington Camas

Washington Longview

Washington Wallula

Wisconsin Kimberly

Wisconsin Park Falls

Wisconsin Superior

Wisconsin Wisconsin Rapids

Principal Customer

International Paper Company
Boise Inc

International Paper Company
Domtar Inc

Georgia-Pacific Corporation Koch Industries

NewPage Corporation

Georgia-Pacific Corporation Koch Industries

Verso Paper Holdings LLC
Madison Paper Industries

Verso Paper Holdings LLC

Sappi Ltd

Boise Inc

International Paper Company
P.H Glatfelter Co

Appleton Papers Inc

International Paper Company

Georgia-Pacific Corporation Koch Industries

North Pacific Paper Corporation

Boise Inc

Appleton Coated

Flambeau River Papers LLC
New Page Corporation

New Page Corporation

Location

International

Brazil Guaiba

Brazil Jacarei

Brazil Luiz Antonio

Brazil Mucuri

Brazil Suzano

Canada St Jerome Quebec

Canada Windsor Quebec

China Dagang

China Zhenjiang

China Suzhou1

Finland Aanekoski

Finland Anjalankoski2

Finland Tervakoski

France Alizay

France Docelles

France Saillat Sur Vienne

Germany Schongau

India Ballarshah1

India Dandeli

India Gaganapur

Indonesia Perawang

Japan Shiraoi

Malaysia Sipitang

Mexico Anahuac

Poland Kwidzyn

Portugal Figueira da Foz

Slovakia Ruzomberok

South Africa Merebank

Thailand Namphong

Thailand Tha Toom

Principal Customer

Aracruz Celulose S.A

Ahlstrom-VCP Industria de Papeis Especialis Ltda

International Paper do Brasil Ltda

Suzano Papel Celulose

Suzano Papel Celulose

Cascades Fine Papers Group Inc

Domtar Inc

Gold East Paper Jiangsu Company Ltd

Gold East Paper Jiangsu Company Ltd

Gold HuaSheng Paper Company Ltd

M-real Corporation

Myllykoski Paper Oy

Trierenberg Holding

M-real Corporation

UPM Corporation

International Paper Company
UPM Corporation

Ballarpur Industries Ltd

West Coast Paper Mill Ltd

Ballarpur Industries Ltd

PT Indah Kiat Pulp and Paper Corporation

Nippon Paper Group Inc

Ballarpur Industries Ltd

Copamex S.A de C.V

International Paper Kwidzyn S.A

Soporcel Sociedade Portuguesa de Papel S.A

Mondi Business Paper SCP

Mondi Paper Conipany Ltd

Phoenix Pulp Paper Public Co Ltd

Double Paper Company Ltd

These plants are owned through joint ventures

The Company ceased production at this facility in the fourth quarter of 2011
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The Company also owned and operated at December 31 2011 plants engaged in the mining processing and/or production of

lime limestone precipitated calcium carbonate and talc as well as owned or leased and operated 18 manufacturing facilities

worldwide within the Refractories segment The Companys corporate headquarters sales offices research laboratories plants and

other facilities are owned by the Company except as otherwise noted Set forth below is certain information relating to the Companys

plants and office and research facilities

Location

United States

Arizona Pima County

Califomia Lucerne Valley

Connecticut Canaan

Indiana Portage

Louisiana Baton Rouge

Massachusetts Adams

Montana Dillon

New York New York

Ohio Bryan

Ohio Dover

Pennsylvania Bethlehem

Pennsylvania Easton

Pennsylvania Slippery Rock

Texas Bay City

Facility

Plant Quarry

Plant Quarry

Plant Quarry

Plant

Plant

Plant Quarry

Plant Quarry

Headquarters3

Plant

Plant

Administrative Office Research laboratories

Sales Offices

Administrative Office Research laboratories

Plant Sales Offices

Plant Sales Offices

Plant

Product Line

Limestone

Limestone

Limestone Metallurgical Wire/Calcium

Refractories/Shapes

Monolithic Refractories

Limestone Lime PCC
Talc

All Company Products

Monolithic Refractories

Monolithic Refractories/Shapes

All Company Products

All Company Products

Monolithic Refractories/Shapes

Talc

Location

International

Australia Carlingford

Belgium Brussels

Brazil Sao Jose dos Campos

Canada Pt Claire

China Shanghai

China Suzhou

Finland Kaarina

Germany Duisburg

Germany Walsum

Holland Hengelo

India Mumbai

Ireland Cork

Italy Brescia

italy Nave

Japan Gamagori

Japan Tokyo

Singapore

Spain Santander

South Africa Pietermaritzburg.

South Africa Johannesburg

Turkey Gebze

Turkey Istanbul

Turkey Kutahya

United Kingdom Lifford

United Kingdom Rotherham

Facility

Sales Office2

Sales Office2/Administrative Office

Sales Office2/Administrative Office

Administrative Office

Administrative Office/Sales Office

Plant/Sales Office/Research laboratories

Research Laboratory2

Plant/Sales Office/Research laboratories

Plant

Plant/Sales Office

Sales Office2/Administrative Office

Plant Administrative Office2/

Research laboratories

Sales Office

Plant

Plant/Research laboratories

Sales Office

Admin.Sales Office2

Administrative Office2

Plant

Sales Office/Administrative Office2

Plant/Research Laboratories

Administrative Office/Sales Office

Plant

Plant

Plant/Sales Office

Product Line

Monolithic Refractories

Monolithic Refractories/PCC

PCC

PCC/Monolithic Refractories

PCC/Monolithic Refractories

PCC/Monolithic Refractories

PCC

Laser Scanning Instrumentation

Probes/Monolithic Refractories

PCC

Metallurgical Wire

PCC/Monolithic Refractories/

Metallurgical Wire

Monolithic Refractories

Monolithic Refractories/Shapes

Monolithic Refractories/Shapes

Monolithic Refractories/Shapes Calcium

Monolithic Refractories

PCC

Monolithic Refractories

Monolithic Refractories

Monolithic Refractories

Monolithic Refractories/Shapes/ Application

Equipment

Monolithic Refractories

Monolithic Refractories/Shapes

PCC Lime

Monolithic Refractories/Shapes

This plant is leased to another company

Leased by the Company The facilities in Cork Ireland are operated pursuant to 99-year lease the term of which commenced in 1963 The

Companys headquarters in New York New York are held under lease which expires in 2021

The following sets forth for each of the quarries or mines we own or operate as set forth above our current estimate as to the

amount of reserves such quarry or mine holds based on the most recent mine plan and its usage rate in 2011
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Millions of tons

Location Reserves 2011 Usage

Arizona Pima County 8.90 0.10

California Lucerne Valley 48.80 0.84

Connecticut Canaan 21.35 0.46

Massachusetts Adams 24.50 0.60

Montana Dillon 3.74 0.15

The Company believes that its facilities which are of varying ages arid are of different construction types have been satisfactorily

maintained are in good condition are suitable for the Companys operations and generally provide sufficient capacity to meet the

Companys production requirements Based on past loss experience the Company believes it is adequately insured with respect to

these assets and for liabilities likely to arise from its operations

Item Legal Proceedings

Certain of the Companys subsidiaries are among numerous defendants in number of cases seeking damages for exposure to

silica or to asbestos containing materials The Company currently has 77 pending silica cases and 27 pending asbestos cases To date

1389 silica cases and asbestos cases have been dismissed One new silica case and one new asbestos case were filed in the fourth

quarter of 2011 Most of these claims do not provide adequate information to assess their merits the likelihood that the Company will

be found liable or the magnitude of such liability if any Additional claims of this nature may be made against the Company or its

subsidiaries At this time management anticipates that the amount of the Companys liability if any and the cost of defending such

claims will not have material effect on its financial position or results of operations

The Company has not settled any silica or asbestos lawsuits to date We are unable to state an amount or range of amounts claimed

in any of the lawsuits because state court pleading practices do not require identifying the amount of the claimed damage The

aggregate cost to the Company for the legal defense of these cases since inception was approximately $0.2 million the majority of

which has been reimbursed by Pfizer Inc pursuant to the terms of certain agreements entered into in connection with the Companys

initial public offering in 1992 Our experience has been that the Company is not liable to plaintiffs in any of these lawsuits and the

Company does not expect to pay any settlements or jury verdicts in these lawsuits

Environmental Matters

On April 2003 the Connecticut Department of Environmental Protection issued an administrative consent order relating to our

Canaan Connecticut plant where both our Refractories segment and Specialty Minerals segment have operations We agreed to the

order which includes provisions requiring investigation and remediation of contamination associated with historic use of

polychlorinated biphenyls PCBs and mercury at portion of the site We have completed the required investigations and submitted

several reports characterizing the contamination We are now conducting site-specific risk assessment required by the regulators

We believe that the most likely form of overall site remediation will be to leave the existing contamination in place with

some limited soil removal encapsulate it and monitor the effectiveness of the encapsulation We anticipate that substantial portion

of the remediation cost will be borne by the United States based on its involvement at the site from 1942 1964 as historic

documentation indicates that PCBs and mercury were first used at the facility at time of U.S government ownership for production

of materials needed by the military Though the cost of the likely remediation remains uncertain pending completion of the phased

remediation decision process we have estimated that the Companys share of the cost of the encapsulation and limited soil removal

described above would approximate $0.4 million which has been accrued as of December 31 2011

The Company is evaluating options for upgrading the wastewater treatment facilities at its Adams Massachusetts plant This work

has been undertaken pursuant to an administrative Consent Order originally issued by the Massachusetts Department of

Environmental Protection DEP on June 18 2002 This order was aniended on June 2009 and on June 2010 The amended

Order includes the investigation by January 2022 of options for ensuring that the facilitys wastewater treatment ponds will not

result in unpermitted discharge to groundwater Additional requirements of the amendment include the submittal by July 2022 of

plan for closure of historic lime solids disposal area Preliminary engineering reviews completed in 2005 indicate that the estimated

cost of wastewater treatment upgrades to operate this facility beyond 2024 may be between $6 million and $8 million The Company
estimates that the remaining remediation costs would approximate $0.4 million which has been accrued as of December 31 2011

The Company and its subsidiaries are not party to any other material pending legal proceedings other than routine litigation

incidental to their businesses

Item Mine Safety Disclosures

The information concerning mine safety violations or other regulatory matters required by Section 1503a of the Dodd-Frank Wall

Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act and Item 104 of Regulation S-K is included in Exhibit 95 to this Annual Report on Form

10-K
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PART II

Item Market for Registrants Common Equity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Securities

The Companys common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol MTX

Information on market prices and dividends is set forth below

2011 Ouarters First Second Third Fourth

Market Price Range Per Share of Common Stock

High 68.73 70.09 68.63 58.00

Low 62.46 63.01 49.27 46.75

Close 68.73 67.66 49.27 56.53

Dividends paid per common share 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05

2010 quarters First Second Third Fourth

Market Price Range Per Share of Common Stock

High 56.05 59.53 59.68 66.81

Low 46.36 46.90 45.73 56.43

Close 52.30 46.90 58.65 65.41

Dividends paid per common share 005 0.05 0.05 0.05

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of securities

to be issued upon Weighted average Number of securities

exercise of exercise price of remaining available

_____________________________________
outstanding options outstanding options for future issuance

784986 54.19 838869

Plan Category
___________________

Equity compensation plans approved by

security holders

Equity compensation plans not approved

by security holders --

Total 784986

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

54.19 838869

Total Number

of Shares Dollar Value

Purchased as of Shares That

Total Part of the May Yet be

Number of Publicly Purchased

Shares Average Price Announced Under the

Period Purchased Paid Per Share Program Program

October3October3 25 48.55 1278631 --

October October 30 59575 50.25 59575 72006308

October31 November27 40 52.69 59615 72004201

November28 December31 -- -- 59615 72004201

Total 59640 50.25

In 2010 the Companys Board of Directors authorized the Companys management to repurchase at its discretion up to $75

million of shares over two-year period This program was completed on October 2011 1278631 shares were repurchased under

this program at an average price of approximately $58.66 per share

In 2011 the Companys Board of Directors authorized the Companys management to repurchase at its discretion up to $75

million of additional shares over two-year period following the completion of the prior program As of December 31 2011 59615

shares have been repurchased under this program at an average price of approximately 50.25 per share
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On January 25 2012 the Companys Board of Directors declared regular quarterly dividend on its common stock of $0.05 per

share No dividend will be payable unless declared by the Board and unless funds are legally available for payment thereof

On February 10 2012 the last reported sales price on the NYSE was $65.94 per share As of February 10 2012 there were

approximately 180 holders of record of the common stock

The following graph compares the cumulative 5-year total return provided shareholders of Minerals Technologies Inc.s common
stock relative to the cumulative total returns of the SP 500 index the SP Midcap 400 the SP Mid Cap 400 Materials Sector

index and the Dow Jones Industrial Average An investment of $100 with reinvestment of all dividends is assumed to have been

made in our common stock and in each of the indices on 12/31/2005 arLd its relative performance is tracked through 12/31/11

COMPARISON OF YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
Among Minerals Technologies Inc the SP 500 lndex the SP Midcap 400 lndex

the Dow Jones US Industrials Index and the SP MidCap 400 Materials Sector

Minerals Technologies Inc

SPMidcap400

SP MidCap 400 Materials Sector

--SP500

Dow Jones US Industrials

$loo invested on 12/31/06 in stock or index including reinvestrrentof dividends

Fiscal year ending December 31

Copyright 2012 SP division of The McGraw -Hill Companies Inc All rights reserved

Copyright 2012 Dow Jones Co All rights reserved

12/06 12/07 12/08 12/09 12/10 12/11

$140

$120

$100

$80

$60

$40

$20

$0

12/06 12/07 12/08 12/09 12/10 12/11

Minerals Technologies Inc 100.00 114.23 70.00 93.69 112.92 97.92

SP 500 100.00 105.49 66.46 84.05 96.71 98.75

SP Midcap 400 100.00 107.98 68.86 94.60 119.80 117.72

Dow Jones US Industrials 100.00 113.57 68.66 86.56 109.08 108.22

SP MidCap 400 Materials Sector 100.00 108.87 60.86 93.87 117.25 116.57

The stock price performance included in this graph is not necessary indicative of future stock price performance
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Item Selected Financial Data

Dollars in Millions Except Per Share Data

Basic

Earnings loss from continuing operations

attributable to MTI

Earnings loss from discontinued operations

attributable to MTI

Basic earnings loss per
share attributable to MTI 3.75 3.59

Diluted

Earnings loss from continuing operations

attributable to MTI 3.73
__________

Earnings loss from discontinued operations

attributable to MTI
_________

Diluted earnings loss per share attributable to MTI 3.73

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding

Basic

Diluted

Dividends declared per common share

1.27 3.45 3.31

Income Statement Data 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Netsales 1044.9 1002.4 907.3 1112.2 1077.7

Costofgoodssold 832.7 793.2 751.5 891.7 845.1

Production margin 212.2 209.2 155.8 220.5 232.6

Marketing and administrative expenses 92.1 90.5 91.1 101.8 104.6

Research and development expenses 19.3 19.6 19.9 23.1 26.3

Impairment of assets -- 39.8 0.2 94.1

Restructuring and other costs 0.5 0.8 22.0 13.4 16.0

Income loss from operations 100.3 98.3 17.0 82.0 8.5

Non-operating income deductions net 2.6 0.6 6.1 0.3 3.0

Income loss from continuing operations before

Provision benefit for taxes on income loss 97.7 98.9 23.1 82.3 11.5

Provision benefit for taxes on income loss 27.5 29.0 5.4 24.1 1.3

Income loss from continuing operations 70.2 69.9 17.7 58.2 22.8
Income loss from discontinued operations net of tax -- -- 3.2 10.3 37.8
Consolidated net income loss 70.2 69.9 20.9 68.5 60.6
Less Net income attributable to

non-controlling interests 2.7 3.0 2.9 3.2 2.9
Net income loss attributable to Minerals

Technologies Inc MTI 67.5 66.9 23.8 65.3 63.5

Earnings Per Share

3.75 3.59 1.10 2.91

-- 0.17 0.54

1.34

1.97

3.58 1.10 2.90 1.34

-- 0.17 0.54 1.97

3.58 1.27 3.44 3.31

Balance Sheet Data

Working capital

Total assets

Long-term debt

Total debt

Total shareholders equity

18009

18118

0.20

539.4

1165.0

85.4

99.8

768.0

18614

18693

0.20

520.3

1116.1

92.6

97.2

782.7

18724

18724

0.20

447.8

1072.1

92.6

104.1

747.7

18893

18983

0.20

380.7

1067.6

97.2

116.2

734.8

19190

19190

0.20

306.2

1128.9

111.0

127.7

773.3
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Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Cautionary Statement for Safe Harbor Purposes under the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 provides safe harbor for forward-looking statements made by or on behalf

of the Company This report contains statements that the Company believes may be forward-looking statements within the meaning

of Section 21 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 particularly statements relating to the Companys objectives plans or goals

future actions future performance or results of current and anticipated products sales efforts expenditures and financial results

From time to time the Company also provides forward-looking statements in other publicly-released materials both written and oral

Forward-looking statements provide current expectations and forecasts of future events such as new products revenues and financial

performance and are not limited to describing historical or current facts They can be identified by the use of words such as

believes expects plans intends anticipates and other words and phrases of similar meaning

Forward-looking statements are necessarily based on assumptions estimates and limited information available at the time they are

made broad variety of risks and uncertainties both known and unknown as well as the inaccuracy of assumptions and estimates

can affect the realization of the expectations or forecasts in these statements Many of these risks and uncertainties are difficult to

predict or are beyond the Companys control Consequently no forward-looking statements can be guaranteed Actual future results

may vary materially Significant factors affecting the expectations and forecasts are set forth under Item 1A Risk Factors in this

Annual Report on Form 10-K

The Company undertakes no obligation to update any forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances that arise after

the date hereof Investors should refer to the Companys subsequent filings under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 for further

disclosures

Income and Expense Items as Percentage of Net Sales

Year Ended December 31 2011 2010 2009

Net sales 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Cost of goods sold 79.7 79.1 82.8

Production margin 20.3 20.9 17.2

Marketing and administrative expenses
8.8 9.0 10.1

Research and development expenses
1.9 2.0 2.2

Impairment of assets -- 4.4

Restructuring charges -- 0.1 2.4

Income loss from operations 9.6 9.8 1.9

Income loss from continuing operations before

Provision benefit for taxes 9.4 9.9 2.6

Provision benefit for taxes on income 2.6 2.9 0.6

Non-controlling interests 0.3 0.3 0.3

Income loss from continuing operations 6.5 6.7 2.3
Income loss from discontinued operations -- -- 0.3

Net income loss 6.5A 6.7% 2.6%

Executive Summary

The Company reported record earnings per share for 2011 of $3.73 per share The Companys results reflected continued solid

financial performance as the Company continued to advance its growth strategies of geographic market expansion and new product

innovation and development

Worldwide net sales for 2011 were $1 .045 billion an increase of 4% from 2010 sales of $1 .002 billion Foreign exchange had

favorable impact on sales of approximately $21.0 million or less than percentage points of growth Income from operations was

record $100.3 million in 2011 as compared to income from operations of $98.3 million in the prior year Included in operating income

in 2011 were restructuring charges of $0.5 million Included in operating income of the prior year were restructuring charges of $0.8

million

In 2011 the Company continued to advance the execution of its growth strategies of geographic expansion and new product

innovation and development During the year we signed contracts for five new satellite PCC facilities three in India one in Thailand

and another in Bangladesh and began operation of three new satellite plants We now have five commercial agreements with paper

mills for our FulfihITM portfolio of products The company also completed the expansion of three satellites in Thailand Brazil and the

US In 2011 the company also recorded record earnings for its Refractories segment
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The Companys balance sheet as of December 31 2011 continues to be very strong Cash cash equivalents and short-term

investments at December 31 2011 were approximately $414 million Our cash flows from operations were in excess of $133 million

in 2011 In addition we had available lines of credit of $180 million our debt to equity ratio was very low at 11.5% and our current

ratio was 4.0

We face some significant risks and challenges in the future

The industries we serve primarily paper steel construction and automotive have been adversely affected by

the uncertain global economic climate Although these markets have stabilized our global business could be

adversely affected by further decreases in economic activity Our Refractories segment primarily serves the

steel industry Although North American and European steel production improved 7% and 5% respectively

in 2011 as compared with the prior year it remains well below 2008 levels In the paper industry which is

served by our Paper PCC product line 2011 production levels for printing and writing papers within North

America and Europe our two largest markets were 5% and 2% below the prior year In addition our

Processed Minerals and Specialty PCC product lines are affected by the domestic building and construction

markets and the automotive market Housing starts in 2011 averaged approximately 607 thousand units and

were up 4% from 2010 levels Housing starts were at peak rate of 2.1 million units in 2005 In the

automotive industry 2011 North American car and truck production was approximately 12% higher than the

prior year but still approximately 5% below 2008 levels

Some of our customers may experience mill shutdowns due to further consolidations or may face liquidity

issues or bankruptcy which could deteriorate the aging of our accounts receivable increase our bad debt

exposure and possibly trigger impairment of assets or realignment of our businesses

Consolidations and rationalizations in the paper and steel industries concentrate purchasing power in the

hands of fewer customers increasing pricing pressure on suppliers such as Minerals Technologies Inc

Most of our Paper PCC sales are subject to long-term contracts that may be terminated pursuant to their

terms or may be renewed on terms less favorable to us

We are subject to volatility in pricing and supply availability of our key raw materials used in our Paper PCC

product line and Refractory product line

We continue to rely on China for portion of our supply of magnesium oxide in the Refractories segment

which may be subject to uncertainty in availability and cost

Fluctuations in energy costs have an impact on all of our businesses

Changes in the fair market value of our pension assets rates of return on assets and discount rates could

continue to have significant impact on our net periodic pension costs as well as our funding status

As we expand our operations abroad we face the inherent risks of doing business in many foreign countries

including foreign exchange risk import and export restrictions and security concems

The Companys operations particularly in the mining and environmental areas discharges emissions and

greenhouse gases are subject to regulation by federal state and foreign authorities and may be subject to

and presumably will be required to comply with additional laws regulations and guidelines which may be

adopted in the future

During the second quarter of 2011 M-real Corporation announced plans to divest its Alizay paper mill in France Over the past

several months M-real has been in discussions with number of paper producers however none of the candidates have fulfilled

reals conditions for sale Although the paper mill is presently not operating we believe discussions for the sale of the mill continue

If M-real terminates its operations at the Alizay paper mill the Company would likely shut down its PCC satellite facility and could

incur an impairment of assets charge Under that scenario the Company could pursue options for mitigation or recovery of assets

including redeployment of assets to other locations to the extent feasible The net book value of the facility as of December 31 2011 is

$5.3 million 2011 annual sales at Alizay were approximately $7 million

During the third quarter
of 2011 NewPage Corporation filed for Chapter 11 bankruptcy protection The Company does business

with five NewPage mills including operating three satellite PCC facilities at NewPage locations At present the Company continues

to supply PCC to these mills If NewPage is unable to emerge from the bankruptcy process or should these facilities cease operations

the Company could incur an impairment of assets charge of up to $16 million and may incur additional provisions for bad debt

Annual sales to NewPage locations in 2011 were approximately $20 million

The Company has evaluated these facilities for impairment of assets and based upon the information currently available and

probability-weighted cash flows of various potential outcomes has determined that no impairment charge is required in the fourth

Suarter

During the third quarter of 2011 UPM-Kymmene announced its intention to permanently reduce paper capacity at several

locations in Europe by the end of 2011 The Company operated PCC satellite facility at one of these locations at Anjalankoski

Finland which ceased operations in the fourth quarter of 2011 The Company accelerated depreciation of the assets at this location

which had net book value of $0.7 million at the time of the announcement over the last four months of the year Sales at the

Companys satellite at Anjalankoski for 2011 were approximately $15 million
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The Company will continue to focus on innovation and new product development and other opportunities for continued growth as

follows

Develop multiple high-filler technologies such as filler-fiber under the FulfillTM platform of products to

increase the fill rate in freesheet paper and continue to progress with commercial discussions and full-scale

paper machine trials

Increase our sales of PCC for paper by further penetration of the markets for paper filling at both freesheet

and groundwood mills particularly in emerging markets

Expand the Companys PCC coating product line using the satellite model

Promote the Companys expertise in crystal engineering especially in helping papermakers customize PCC

morphologies for specific paper applications

Expand PCC produced for paper filling applications by working with industry partners to develop new
methods to increase the ratio of PCC for fiber substitutions

Develop unique calcium carbonates and talc products used in the manufacture of novel biopolymers new

market opportunity

Deploy new talc and GCC products in paint coating and packaging applications

Deploy value-added formulations of refractory materials that not only reduce costs but improve performance

Expand our solid core wire product line into BRIC Middle Eastern and other Asian countries

Deploy our laser measurement technologies into new applications

Deploy operational excellence principles into all aspects of the organization including system infrastructure

and lean principles

Explore selective acquisitions to fit our core competencies in minerals and fine particle technology

However there can be no assurance that we will achieve success in implementing any one or more of these opportunities

Results of Operations

Sales

Dollars in millions

%of %of %of
Total Total Total

Net Sales 2011 Sales Growth 2010 Sales Growth 2009 Sales

U.S 557.5 53.4 534.3 53.3 12 478.4 52.7

International 487.4 46.6 468.1 46.7 428.9 47.3

Net sales 1044.9 100.0 1002.4 100.0 10 907.3 100.0

PaperPCC 497.0 47.5 -- 496.6 49.5 484.6 53.4

SpecialtyPCC 63.6 6.1 10 58.0 5.8 16 50.1 5.6

PCC Products 560.6 53.6 554.6 55.3 534.7 59.0

Talc 46.9 4.5 44.0 4.4 36 32.3 3.5

GCC 68.6 6.6 66.4 6.6 61.4 6.8

Processed Minerals Products 115.5 11.1 110.4 11.0 18 93.7 10.3

Specialty Minerals Segment 676.1 64.7 665.0 66.3 628.4 69.3

RefractoryProducts 287.4 27.5 264.5 26.4 17 225.4 24.8

Metallurgical Products 81.4 7.8 12 72.9 7.3 36 53.5 5.9

Refractories Segment 368.8 35.3 337.4 33.7 21 278.9 30.7

Net sales 1044.9 100.0 1002.4 100.0 10 907.3 100.0

Worldwide net sales in 2011 increased 4% from the previous year to $1 .045 billion Foreign exchange had favorable impact on

sales of $21.0 million or less than percentage points of growth Sales in the Specialty Minerals segment which includes the PCC and

Processed Minerals product lines increased 2% to $676.1 million from $665.0 million in 2010 Sales in the Refractories segment

grew 9% to $368.8 million from $337.4 million in the previous year In 2010 worldwide net sales increased 10% to $1002 billion

from $907.3 million in the prior year In 2010 Specialty Minerals segment sales increasedL 6% and Refractories segment sales

increased 21% from 2009 levels

In 2011 worldwide net sales of PCC which is primarily used in the manufacturing process of the paper industry increased 1% to

$560.6 million from $554.6 million in the prior year Foreign exchange had favorable impact on sales of approximately $10.9

million or less than percentage points of growth Worldwide net sales of Paper PCC were flat at $497.0 million increasing slightly

from the $496.6 million in the prior year Total Paper PCC volumes decreased 4% from prior year levels with declines in all regions

Volume decreases of approximately $20.7 million were offset by contractual price increases and the effects of foreign exchange Sales
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of Specialty PCC increased 10% to $63.6 million from $58.0 million in 2010 This increase was attributable to higher volumes and the

effects of foreign exchange

In 2010 worldwide net sales of PCC increased 4% to $554.6 million from $534.7 million in the prior year Foreign exchange had

favorable impact on sales of approximately $3.5 million or less than percentage point of growth Worldwide net sales of Paper PCC

increased 2% to $496.6 million from $484.6 million in the prior year Total Paper PCC volumes increased 3% from 2009 levels with

moderate volume increases with the exception of Asia where there was an 18% increase in volumes due to the startup of new

satellite facility in India and increase of volumes at other facilities Volume increases of approximately $18.2 million were partially

offset by $10 million in contractual price decreases Sales of Specialty PCC increased 16% in 2010 to $58.0 million from $50.1

million in the prior year This increase was primarily attributable to higher volumes

Net sales of Processed Minerals products in 2011 increased 5% to $115.5 million from $110.4 million in 2010 GCC products and

talc products increased 3% and 7% to $68.6 million and $46.9 million respectively The increases in the Processed Minerals product

line was attributable to increased volumes due to slight improvements in the residential and commercial construction markets and

moderate improvements in the automotive market Volumes increased 7% from the prior year

Net sales of Processed Minerals products in 2010 increased 18% to $110.4 million from $93.7 million in 2009 GCC products and

talc products increased 8% and 36% to $66.4 million and $44.0 million respectively The increased in the Processed Minerals

product line as primarily attributable to increased GCC volumes and due to increased volumes and selling price increases within our

talc product line as well as improvements in the residential and commercial construction markets and the automotive market as

compared to the depressed conditions in the prior year Volumes increased 9% from the prior year

Net sales in the Refractories segment in 2011 increased 9% to $368.8 million from $337.4 million in the prior year Foreign

exchange had favorable impact on sales of $10.1 million or approximately percentage points Sales of refractory products and

systems to steel and other industrial applications increased 9% to $287.4 million from $264.5 million Sales of metallurgical products

within the Refractories segment increased 12% to $81.4 million as compared with $72.9 million last year The increases in all product

lines within this segment were primarily due to price increases and the effects of foreign exchange

Net sales in the Refractories segment in 2010 increased 21% to $337.4 million from $278.9 million in the prior year Foreign

exchange had an unfavorable impact on sales of $2.3 million or approximately percentage point Sales of refractory products and

systems to steel and other industrial applications increased 17% to $264.5 million from $225.4 million Sales of metallurgical

products within the Refractories segment increased 36% to $72.9 million as compared with $53.5 million in the same period last year

The increase in all product
lines within this segment are driven by higher worldwide volumes due to improved market conditions in

the steel industry as compared to significant weaknesses in the prior year

Net sales in the United States grew approximately 4% to $557.5 million in 2011 and represented approximately 53.4% of

consolidated net sales International sales increased approximately 4% to $487.4 million from $468.1 million The increase in sales

was primarily due to higher worldwide volumes price increases the effects of foreign exchange and slight contribution from our

new satellite PCC plants

Operating Costs and Expenses

DoiJars in millions

2011 Growth 2010 Growth 2009

Costofgoods sold 832.7 5% 793.2 6% 751.5

Marketing and administrative 92.1 2% 90.5 1% 91.1

Research and development 19.3 2% 19.6 2% 19.9

Impairment of assets 0% 0% 39.8

Restructuring charges 0.5 38% 0.8 96% 22.0

Percentage not meaningful

Cost of goods sold in 2011 was 79.7% of sales compared with 79.1% in the prior year Production margin increased $3 million or

1% as compared with 4% increase in sales In the Specialty Minerals segment production margin decreased 1% or $0.7 million as

compared with 2% increase in sales This segment incurred higher raw materials and energy costs that were not fully recovered by

price increases In the Refractories segment production margin increased $3.7 million or 5% as compared with 9% increase in

sales This segment incurred higher raw material costs that were partially offset by price increases higher equipment sales and the

effects of foreign exchange

Cost of goods sold in 2010 was 79.1% of sales compared with 82.8% in the prior year Production margin increased $53.3 million

or 34% as compared with 10% increase in sales Volumes increased in all product lines as economic conditions improved from prior

year levels The businesses also increased their productivity levels and derived continued benefits from our announced restructuring

programs In the Specialty Minerals segment production margin increased 18% or $20.1 million as compared with 6% increase in

sales Volume had favorable impact on production margin of $18.1 million as compared to prior year in both the PCC and Processed

21



Minerals product lines This segment also reflected cost savings of $2.9 million incremental benefits derived from our announced

restructuring programs of $2.6 million and lower net raw material and energy costs of $5.3 million This was partially offset by net

price concessions of $9.3 million In the Refractories segment production margin increased over 79% or $33.2 million as compared
with 21% increase in sales Production margin was favorably affected by increased volumes of $28.0 million and restructuring

savings of $4.6 million

Marketing and administrative costs increased 1.7% to $92.1 million in 2011 from $90.5 million in the prior year Marketing and

administrative Costs as percentage of net sales however represented 8.8% of net sales as compared with 9.0% in the prior year In

2010 marketing and administrative expenses were 1% lower than in the prior year

Research and development expenses decreased 2% in 2011 to $19.3 million from $19.6 million and represented 1.9% of net sales

In 2010 research and development expense decreased 2% from 2009 and represented 2.0% of net sales

Restructuring and other costs in 2011 were $0.5 million and primarily related to additional $0.9 million of restructuring costs

associated with our 2007 restructuring of our PCC merchant facility in Germany and the additional severance cost associated with the

ceasing of production at our PCC facility at Anjalankoski Finland This was partially offset by the reversals of previously recorded

liabilities from our 2009 program

Restructuring and other costs during 2010 were $0.8 million and primarily related to railcar lease early termination costs associated

with the announced plant closures of our Franklin Virginia and Plymouth North Carolina satellite facilities and additional net

provisions for severance and other employee benefits

Income Loss from Operations

Dollars in millions 2011 Growth 2010 Growth 2009

Income loss from operations 100.3 2% 98.3 17.0
Percentage not meaningful

The Company recorded income from operations in 2011 of $100.3 million as compared with $98.3 million in the prior year
Included in income from operations in 2011 were restructuring charges of $0.5 million Included in 2010 were restructuring charges of

$0.8 million

The Specialty Minerals segment recorded income from operations of $72.8 million in 2011 as compared with $74.7 million in the

prior year Included in income from operations were restructuring charges of $1.0 million and $0.5 million in 2011 and 2010
respectively

The Refractories segment recorded income from operations of $33.2 million in 2011 as compared to $28.0 million in the prior year
Included in income from operations in 2011 were restructuring reversals of $0.6 million Included in the income from operations in

the prior year were restructuring charges of $0.3 million

In 2010 the Specialty Minerals segment recorded income from operations of $74.7 million as compared $34.2 million in the prior

year The Refractories segment recorded income from operations of $28.0 million in 2010 as compared to loss from operations of

$48.8 million in the previous year

Non-Operating Income Deductions

Dollars in millions 2011 Growth 2010 Growth 2009

Non-operating income deductions net 2.6 0.6 6.1
Percentage not meaningful

The Company recorded non-operating deductions of $2.6 million in 2011 as compared with non-operating income of $0.6 million

in the previous year Included in non-operating deductions in 2011 were foreign currency losses of $1.4 million recognized upon the

sale of 50% interest in and deconsolidation of the Companys joint venture in Korea

The Company recorded non-operating income of $0.6 million in 2010 as compared with non-operating deduction of $6.1 million in

the prior year Included in the non-operating income 2010 was gain on the sale of previously impaired assets of $0.2 million and

settlement relating to customer contract termination of $0.8 million

Provision Benefit for Taxes on Income

Dollars in millions 2011 Growth 2010 Growth _2009

Provision for taxes on income 27.5 29.0 5.4
Percentage not meaningful
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The Company recorded provision for taxes on income of $27.5 million in 2011 as compared with $29.0 million in the previous

year The effective tax rate for 2011 was 28.1% as compared with 29.3% in the prior year The decrease in the tax rate in the current

year primarily relates to favorable United States tax court case settlement and the resulting expiration of the statute of limitation of

the tax years related to the tax court case

The Company recorded provision for taxes on income of $29.0 million in 2010 as compared to benefit of $5.4 million in the

previous year The effective tax rate for 2010 was 29.3% as compared with tax benefit of 23.3% in the previous year The increase

in the tax over the previous year primarily relates to the decrease in the tax benefit of depletion as percentage of earnings as well as

the geographical mix of earnings

The factors having the most significant impact on our effective tax rates in recent periods are the reversal of tax reserves as result

of tax court case settlement percentage depletion restructuring and impairments and the rate differential related to foreign earnings

indefinitely invested

Percentage depletion allowances tax deductions for depletion that may exceed our tax basis in our mineral reserves are available

to us under the income tax laws of the United States for operations conducted in the United States The tax benefits from percentage

depletion were $4.0 million in 2011 $3.7 million in 2010 and $3.2 million in 2009

We operate in various countries around the world that have tax laws tax incentives and tax rates that are significantly different than

those of the United States Many of these differences combine to move our overall effective tax rate higher or lower than the United

States statutory rate depending on the mix of income relative to income earned in the United States The effects of foreign earnings

and the related foreign rate differentials resulted in decrease of income tax expense of $0.9 million in 2011 decrease of income tax

expense of $3.1 million in 2010 and an increase in income tax expense of $1.0 million in 2009 The decrease of income tax benefits

in 2011 as compared with 2010 results from the change in the mix of earnings in the foreign jurisdictions in 2011 statutory tax rate

changes and change in the amount of local income and tax adjustments The increase of income tax benefits in 2010 as compared

with 2009 results from the restructuring losses in the foreign jurisdictions in 2009 and the income tax rate differential in the foreign

jurisdictions

Income Loss from Continuing Operations

Dollars in millions 2011 Growth 2010 Growth 2009

Income loss from continuing operations 70.3 --% 69.9 17.7

Percentage not meaningful

The Company recognized income from continuing operations of $70.3 million in 2011 slightly higher than the $69.9 million

recorded in 2010 In 2009 the company recorded loss from operations of $17.7 million The loss in 2009 was attributable to the

aforementioned impairment of assets and restructuring charges

Income loss from Discontinued Operations

Dollars in millions 2011 Growth 2010 Growth 2009

Income loss from discontinued operations 3.2
Percentage not meaningful

In 2009 the Company recognized loss from discontinued operations of $3.2 million Included in the loss from discontinued

operations for 2009 was impairment of assets charge of $5.6 million net of tax The Company recorded this impairment charge to

reflect the lower market value of its Mt Vernon Indiana facility which was sold in the fourth quarter of 2009 Proceeds

approximated the net book value

Noncontrolling Interests

Dollars in millions 2011 Growth 2010 Growth 2009

Noncontrolling interests 2.7 10% 3.0 3% 2.9

The decrease in the income attributable to non-controlling interests is due to the lower profitability in our joint ventures and the

deconsolidation of our Korean joint venture upon the sale of 50% interest

Net Income Loss attributable to

Minerals Technologies Inc MTI
Dollars in millions 2011 Growth 2010 Growth 2009

Net income loss attributable to MTI 67.5 1% 66.9 23.8

Percentage not meaningful

23



The Company recorded net income of $67.5 million in 2012 as compared to $66.9 million in 2010 Diluted earnings per share

were $3.73 as compared with $3.58 in the previous year

In 2009 the Company recorded net loss of $23.8 million which was attributable to impairment of assets and restructuring

charges

Outlook

Looking forward we remain cautious about the state of the global economy particularly in Europe and the impact it will have on

our product lines Although we saw market stabilization and improvement in 2010 which continued in 2011 there remains

uncertainty as to the sustainability of the upturn

In 2012 we plan to focus on the following growth strategies

Develop multiple high-filler technologies such as filler-fiber under the FuIfi11TM platform of products to

increase the fill rate in freesheet paper and continue to
progress with commercial discussions and full-scale

paper machine trials

Increase our sales of PCC for paper by further penetration of the markets for paper filling at both freesheet

and groundwood mills particularly in emerging markets

Expand the Companys PCC coating product line using the satellite model

Promote the Companys expertise in crystal engineering especially in helping papermakers customize PCC

morphologies for specific paper applications

Expand PCC produced for paper filling applications by working with industry partners to develop new
methods to increase the ratio of PCC for fiber substitutions

Develop unique calcium carbonates and talc products used in the manufacture of novel biopolymers new
market opportunity

Deploy new talc and GCC products in paint coating and packaging applications

Deploy value-added formulations of refractory materials that not only reduce costs but improve performance

Expand our solid core wire product line into BRIC Middle Eastern and other Asian countries

Deploy our laser measurement technologies into new applications

Deploy operational excellence principles into all aspects of the organization including system infrastructure

and lean principles

Explore selective acquisitions to fit our core competencies in minerals and fine particle technology

However there can be no assurances that we will achieve success in implementing any one or more of these strategies

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash flows provided from operations in 2011 were used principally to fund $52.1 million of capital expenditures and repurchase

$48.0 million in treasury shares Cash provided from operating activities totaled $133.7 million in 2011 as compared with $142.4

million in 2010 The decrease in cash from operating activities was primarily due to higher income tax payments Included in cash

flow from operations was pension plan funding of approximately $6.6 million $8.5 million and $7.8 million for the
years ended

December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively

Trade working capital is defined as trade accounts receivable trade accounts payable and inventories Our total days of trade

working capital decreased to 55 days from 59 days in 2010 reflecting the improvements in working capital management within both

business segments

The funding status of the Companys pension plans was approximately 70% at December 31 2011 and we have met all minimum

funding requirements The funding status at Decmber 31 2010 was 85% The reduction in our funding status was due to large

increase in the projected benefit obligation from change in the discount rate

In 2010 the Companys Board of Directors authorized the Companys management to repurchase at its discretion up to $75

million of shares over two-year period This program has been completed 1278631 shares were repurchased under this program at

an average price of approximately $58.66 per
share

In 2011 the Companys Board of Directors authorized the Companys management to repurchase at its discretion up to $75

million of additional shares over two-year period upon completion of the prior program As of December 31 2011 59615 shares

have been repurchased under this program at an average price of approximately $50.25 per share

On January 25 2012 the Companys Board of Directors declared regular quarterly dividend on its common stock of $0.05 per

share No dividend will be payable unless declared by the Board and unless funds are legally available for payment thereof
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The following table summarizes our contractual obligations as of December 31 2011

Contractual Obligations

Payments Due by Period

Less Than 1-3 3-5 After

millions of dollars Total Year Years Years Years

Debt 94.0 8.6 85.4 --

Operating lease obligations 21.3 4.4 4.8 5.3 6.8

Total contractual obligations 115.3 12.9 90.3 5.3 6.8

We have $185.6 million in uncommitted short-term bank credit lines of which $5.8 million was in use at December 31 2011 The

credit lines are primarily in the US with approximately $15.6 million or 8% outside the US The credit lines are generally one year in

term at competitive market rates at large well-established institutions The Company typically uses its available credit lines to fund

working capital requirements or local capital spending needs At the present time we have no indication that the financial institutions

would be unable to commit to these lines of credit should the need arise We anticipate that capital expenditures for 2012 should be

between $60 million to $75 million principally related to the construction of PCC plants and other opportunities that meet our

strategic growth objectives We expect to meet our other long-term financing requirements from internally generated funds

uncommitted bank credit lines and where appropriate project financing of certain satellite plants The aggregate maturities of long-

term debt are as follows 2012 $8.6 million 2013 $77.2 million 2014 $8.2 million 2015 $-- million 2016 $-- million

thereafter $-- million

The Companys debt to capital ratio is 12% which is well below the only financial covenant ratio in its debt agreements

The Company has contingent obligations associated with unrecognized tax benefits including interest and penalties of

approximately $3.9 million

Critical Accounting Policies

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our consolidated financial

statements which have been prepared in accordance with U.S generally accepted accounting principles The preparation of these

financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets liabilities revenues and

expenses and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities

On an ongoing basis we evaluate our estimates and assumptions including those related to revenue recognition allowance for

doubtful accounts valuation of inventories valuation of long-term assets goodwill and other intangible assets pension plan

assumptions income taxes asset retirement obligations income tax valuation allowances stock-based compensation and litigation

and environmental liabilities We base our estimates on historical experience and on other assumptions that we believe to be

reasonable under the circumstances the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and

liabilities that cannot readily be determined from other sources There can be no assurance that actual results will not differ from

those estimates

We believe the following critical accounting policies require us to make significant judgments and estimates in the preparation of

our consolidated financial statements

Revenue recognition Revenue from sale of products is recognized at the time the goods are shipped and title

passes to the customer In most of our PCC contracts the price per ton is based upon the total number of tons

sold to the customer during the year Under those contracts the price billed to the customer for shipments

during the year is based on periodic estimates of the total annual volume that will be sold to the customer

Revenues are adjusted at the end of each year to reflect the actual volume sold There were no significant

revenue adjustments in the fourth quarter of 2011 and 2010 respectively We have consignment arrangements

with certain customers in our Refractories segment Revenues for these transactions are recorded when the

consigned products are consumed by the customer Revenues from sales of equipment are recorded upon

completion of installation and receipt of customer acceptance Revenues from services are recorded when the

services are performed

Allowance for doubtful accounts Substantially all of our accounts receivable are due from companies in the

paper construction and steel industries Accounts receivable are reduced by an allowance for amounts that

may become uncollectible in the future Such allowance is established through charge to the provision for

bad debt expenses We recorded bad debt expenses of $0.9 million $0.1 million and $1.2 million in 2011

2010 and 2009 respectively In addition to specific allowances established for bankrupt customers we also

analyze the collection history and financial condition of our other customers considering current industry

conditions and determine whether an allowance needs to be established or adjusted
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Property plant and equipment goodwill intangible and other long-lived assets Property plant and equipment

are depreciated over their useful lives Useful lives are based on managements estimates of the period that the

assets can generate revenue which does not necessarily coincide with the remaining term of customers

contractual obligation to purchase products made using those assets Our sales of PCC are predominately

pursuant to long-term evergreen contracts initially ten years
in length with paper mills at which we operate

satellite PCC plants The terms of many of these agreements have been extended often in connection with an

expansion of the satellite PCC plant Failure of PCC customer to renew an agreement or continue to

purchase PCC from our facility could result in an impairment of assets or accelerated depreciation at such

facility

Valuation of long-lived assets goodwill and other intangible assets We assess the possible impairment of

long-lived assets and identifiable amortizable intangibles whenever events or changes in circumstances

indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable Goodwill is reviewed for impairment at least annually

Factors we consider important that could trigger an impairment review include the following

Significant under-performance relative to historical or projected future operating results

Significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy for the overall business

Significant negative industry or economic trends

Market capitalization below invested capital

The goodwill balance for each reporting unit as of December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively was as follows

in millions December 31 December 31
2011 2010

PCC 9.2 9.2

Processed Minerals 4.6 4.6

Refractories 54.3_ 53.3

Total 68.1 67.2

Annually the Company performs qualitative assessment for each of its reporting units to determine if the two

step process for impairment testing is required If the Company determines that it is more likely than not that

the fair value of reporting unit is less than its carrying amount the Company then evaluates the recoverability

of goodwill using two-step impairment test approach at the reporting unit level Step One involves

developing the fair value of total invested capital of each Reporting Unit in which goodwill is assigned and

comparing the fair value of total invested capital for each Reporting Unit to its carrying amount to determine if

there is goodwill impairment Should the carrying amount for Reporting Unit exceed its fair value then the

Step One test is failed and the magnitude of any goodwill impairment is determined under Step Two The

amount of impairment loss is determined in Step Two by comparing the implied fair value of Reporting Unit

goodwill with the carrying amount of goodwill

The Company has three Reporting Units PCC Processed Minerals and Refractories We identify our reporting

units by assessing whether the components of our operating segments constitute businesses for which discrete

financial information is available and management regularly reviews the operating results of those components

In the fourth quarter of 2011 the Company performed qualitative assessment of its reporting units and

determined it was not more likely than not that the fair value of each of its reporting units was less than their

carrying values

Accounting for income taxes As part of the process of preparing our consolidated financial statements we are

required to estimate our income taxes in each of the jurisdictions in which we operate This process involves

estimating current tax expense together with assessing temporary differences resulting from differing

treatments of items for tax and accounting purposes These differences result in deferred tax assets and

liabilities which are included in the consolidated balance sheet We must then assess the likelihood that our

deferred tax assets will be recovered from future taxable income and to the extent we believe that recovery is

not likely we must establish valuation allowance To the extent we establish valuation allowance or change

this allowance in period we must include an expense within the tax provision in the Consolidated Statements

of Operations

Deferred income tax assets represent amounts available to reduce income taxes payable on taxable income in

future years Such assets arise because of temporary diffurences between the financial reporting and tax bases

of assets and liabilities as well as from net operating loss We evaluate the recoverability of these future tax

deductions by assessing the adequacy of future expected taxable income from all sources including reversal of

taxable temporary differences and forecasted operating earnings These sources of income inherently rely
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heavily on estimates We use our historical experience and business forecasts to provide insight Amounts

recorded for deferred tax assets net of valuation allowances were $44.4 million and $28.9 million at December

31 2011 and 2010 respectively Such year-end 2011 amounts are expected to be fully recoverable within the

applicable statutory expiration periods To the extent we do not consider it more likely than not that deferred

tax asset will be recovered valuation allowance is established

The application of income tax law is inherently complex Laws and regulations in this area are voluminous and

are often ambiguous As such we are required to make many subjective assumptions and judgments regarding

our income tax exposures Interpretations of and guidance surrounding income tax laws and regulations change

over time As such changes in our subjective assumptions and judgments can materially affect amounts

recognized in the consolidated balance sheets and statements of operations See Note to the condensed

consolidated financial statements Income Taxes for additional detail on our uncertain tax positions

Pension Benefits We sponsor pension and other retirement plans in various forms covering the majority of

employees who meet eligibility requirements Several statistical and actuarial models which attempt to

estimate future events are used in calculating the expense
and liability related to the plans These models

include assumptions about the discount rate expected return on plan assets and rate of future compensation

increases as determined by us within certain guidelines Our assumptions reflect our historical experience and

managements best judgment regarding future expectations In addition our actuarial consultants also use

subjective factors such as withdrawal and mortality rates to estimate these assumptions The actuarial

assumptions used by us may differ materially from actual results due to changing market and economic

conditions higher or lower withdrawal rates or longer or shorter life spans of participants among other things

Differences from these assumptions may result in significant impact to the amount of pension

expense/liability recorded by us follows

one percentage point change in our major assumptions would have the following effects

Effect on Expense

Discount Salary Return on

millions of dollars Rate Scale Asset

1% increase 3.1 0.4 1.3
1% decrease 3.7 0.4 1.3

Effect on Projected Benefit Obligation

Discount Salary

millions of dollars Rate Scale

1% increase 31.4 2.5

1% decrease 39.2 2.3

The investment strategy for pension plan assets is to maintain broadly diversified portfolio designed to both

preserve and grow plan assets to meet future plan obligations The Companys average rate of return on assets

from inception through December 31 2011 was over 9% The Companys assets are strategically allocated

among equity debt and other investments to achieve diversification level that dampens fluctuations in

investment returns The Companys long-term investment strategy is an investment portfolio mix of

approximately 65% in equity securities and 35% in fixed income securities As of December 31 2011 the

Company had approximately 60% of its pension assets in equity securities and 40% in fixed income securities

Asset Retirement Obligations We currently record the obligation for estimated asset retirement costs at fair

value in the period incurred Factors such as expected costs and expected timing of settlement can affect the fair

value of the obligations revision to the estimated costs or expected timing of settlement could result in an

increase or decrease in the total obligation which would change the amount of amortization and accretion

expense recognized in earnings over time

one-percent increase or decrease in the discount rate would change the total obligation by approximately

$0.1 million

one-percent increase or decrease in the inflation rate would change the total obligation by approximately $0.3

million

Stock Based Compensation The Company uses the Black-Scholes option pricing model to determine the fair

value of stock options on their date of grant This model is based upon assumptions relating to the volatility of

the stock price the life of the option risk-free interest rate and dividend yield Of these stock price volatility

and option life require greater levels ofjudgment and are therefore critical accounting estimates

We used stock price volatility assumption based upon the historical and implied volatility of the Companys

stock We believe this is good indicator of future actual and implied volatilities For stock options granted in
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the period ended December 31 2011 the Company used volatility assumption of 30.93%

The expected life calculation was based upon the observed and expected time to post-vesting forfeiture and

exercise For stock options granted during the fiscal year ended December 31 2011 the Company used 6.3

year life assumption

The Company believes the above critical estimates are based upon outcomes most likely to occur however

were we to simultaneously increase or decrease the option life by one year
and the volatility by 100 basis

points recognized compensation expense would have changed approximately $0.1 million in either direction

for the year ended December 31 2011

For detailed discussion on the application of these and other accounting policies see Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 15 of this report beginning on page F-6 This discussion

and analysis should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in this

report

Inflation

Historically inflation has not had material adverse effect on us However in recent years both business segments have been

affected by rapidly rising raw material and energy costs The Company and its customers will typically negotiate reasonable price

adjustments in order to recover portion of these rapidly escalating costs As the contracts pursuant to which we construct and

operate our satellite PCC plants generally adjust pricing to reflect increases in costs resulting from inflation there is time lag before

such price adjustments can be implemented

Cyclical Nature of Customers Businesses

The bulk of our sales are to customers in the paper manufacturing steel manufacturing and construction industries which have

historically been cyclical The pricing structure of some of our long-term PCC contracts makes our PCC business less sensitive to

declines in the quantity of product purchased However we cannot predict the economic outlook in the countries in which we do

business nor in the key industries we serve

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In May 2011 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued ASU 2011-04 Amendments to Achieve Common Fair

Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in US GAAP and IFRS an amendment to FASB ASC Topic 820 Fair Value

Measurement The amendment revises the application of the valuation premise of highest and best use of an asset the application of

premiums and discounts for fair value determination as well as the required disclosures for transfers between Level and Level fair

value measures and the highest and best use of nonfinancial assets The amendment requires additional disclosures regarding Level

fair value measurements and clarifies certain other existing disclosure requirements The ASU is effective for the Company for interim

and annual periods beginning after December 15 2011 The Company does not expect the impact of adopting this ASU to have

material effect on the Companys consolidated financial statements

In June 2011 the FASB issued ASU 2011-05 Presentation of Comprehensive Income Under this guidance an entity has the

option to present the total of comprehensive income the components of net income and the components of other comprehensive

income either in single continuous statement of comprehensive income or in two separate but consecutive statements Under both

options an entity will be required to present each component of net income along with total net income each component of other

comprehensive income along with total for other comprehensive income and total amount for comprehensive income This ASU
eliminates the option to present the components of other comprehensive income as part of the statement of changes in stockholders

equity The amendments in this ASU do not change the items that must be reported in other comprehensive income or when an item of

other comprehensive income must be reclassified to net income This ASU is effective for the Company for fiscal years and interim

periods within those years beginning after December 15 2011 The amendments under this guidance will be applied retrospectively

In December 2011 the FASB issued ASU 2011-12 Deferral of the Effective Date for Amendments to the Presentation of

Reclassications of Items Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income in Accounting Standards Update No 2011-05 which

deferred the requirement to present on the face of the financial statements reclassification adjustments for items that are reclassified

from other comprehensive income to net income while the FASB further deliberates this aspect of the proposal ASU 20 11-05 as

amended by ASU 2011-12 is effective for the company on January 2012 Although adopting the guidance will not impact our

accounting for comprehensive income it will affect our presentation of components of comprehensive income by eliminating the

historical practice of showing these items within our Consolidated Statements of Shareholders Equity

In September 2011 the FASB issued ASU 2011-08 Testing Goodwill for Impairment Under this guidance an entity has the

option to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether the existence of events or circumstances leads to determination that it is

more likely than not that the fair value of reporting unit is less than its carrying amount If after assessing the totality of events or

circumstances an entity determines it is not more likely than not that the fair value of reporting unit is less than its carrying amount
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performing the two-step impairment test is not required The guidance does not change how an entity measures goodwill impairment

loss and is therefore not expected to affect the information reported to users of an entitys financial statements ASU 2011-08 is

effective for annual and interim goodwill impairment tests performed for fiscal years beginning after December 15 2011 with early

adoption permitted The Company early-adopted the provisions of the guidance and conducted qualitative analysis and determined

the two-step process was not needed at this time

Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Market risk represents the risk of loss that may have an impact on our financial position results of operations or cash flows due to

adverse changes in market prices and foreign currency and interest rates We are exposed to market risk because of changes in foreign

currency exchange rates as measured against the U.S dollar We do not anticipate that near-term changes in exchange rates will have

material impact on our future earnings or cash flows However there can be no assurance that sudden and significant change in

the value of foreign currencies would not have material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations

Approximately 48% of our bank debt bears interest at variable rates therefore our results of operations would only be affected by

interest rate changes to such bank debt outstanding An immediate 10% change in interest rates would not have material effect on

our results of operations over the next fiscal year

We do not enter into derivatives or other financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes When appropriate we enter into

derivative financial instruments such as forward exchange contracts and interest rate swaps to mitigate the impact of foreign

exchange rate movements and interest rate movements on our operating results The counterparties are major financial institutions

Such forward exchange contracts and interest rate swaps would not subject us to additional risk from exchange rate or interest rate

movements because gains and losses on these contracts would offset losses and gains on the assets liabilities and transactions being

hedged We had open forward exchange contracts to purchase approximately 0.2 million and $3.2 million of foreign currencies as

of December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively These contracts matured in January 2012 The fair value of these instruments at

December 31 2011 and December 31 2010 was liability of less than $0.1 million and $0.2 million respectively

In 2008 the Company entered into forward contracts to sell 30 million Euros as hedge of its net investment in Europe These

contracts mature in October 20fl The fair value of these instruments at December 31 2011 was an asset of $3.5 million The fair

value of these instruments at December 31 2010 was an asset of $2.7 million

Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The financial information required by Item is contained in Item 15 of Part IV of this report

Item Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None

Item 9A Controls and Procedures

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this report and under the supervision and with participation of the Companys management

including the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer the Company carried out an evaluation of the effectiveness of

the design and operation of the Companys disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 3a- 15b Based upon

that evaluation the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Companys disclosure controls and

procedures were effective as of December 31 2011

Pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 we have included report of managements assessment of the design

and operating effectiveness of our internal controls as part of this report Managements report is included in our consolidated financial

statements beginning on page F-I of this report under the caption entitled Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial

Reporting

The Company has substantially completed the implementation of global enterprise resource planning ERP system to manage

its business operations and all of our domestic and European locations are using the new systems The transition to the new system has

proceeded to date without any adverse effects to internal controls We believe that the controls as modified are appropriate and

functioning effectively
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Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There was no change in the Companys internal control over financial reporting during the most recent fiscal quarter that has

materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the Companys internal control over financial reporting

Item 9B Other Information

None
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PART III

Item 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Set forth below are the names and ages of all Executive Officers of the Registrant indicating all positions and offices with the

Registrant held by each such person and each such persons principal occupations or employment during the past five years

Name Position

Joseph Muscari 65 Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

Douglas Dietrich 42 Senior Vice President Finance and Treasury Chief Financial Officer

Douglas Mayger 54 Senior Vice President Performance Minerals and MTI Supply Chain

Thomas Meek 54 Senior Vice President General Counsel and Secretary Chief Compliance Officer

D.J Monagle III 49 Senior Vice President and Managing Director Paper PCC

Michael Cipolla 54 Vice President Corporate Controller and ChiefAccounting Officer

Jonathan Hastings 49 Vice President Corporate Development

Johannes Schut 47 Vice President and Managing Director Minteq International

Joseph Muscari was elected Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer effective March 2007 Prior to that he was

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Alcoa Inc He has served as member of the Board of Directors since 2005

Douglas Dietrich was elected Senior Vice President Finance and Treasury Chief Financial Officer effective January 2011

Prior to that he was appointed Vice President Corporate Development and Treasury effective August 2007 He had been Vice

President Alcoa Wheel Products since 2006 and President Latin America Extrusions and Global Rod and Bar Products since 2002

Douglas Mayger was elected Senior Vice President Performance Minerals and Supply Chain in June 2011 Prior to that he

was Vice President and Managing Director Performance Minerals which encompasses the Processed Minerals product line and the

Specialty PCC product line effective October 2008 Prior to that he was General Manager- Carbonates West Performance

Minerals and Business Manager Western Region Before joining the Company as plant manager in Lucerne Valley in 2002 he

served as Vice President of Operations for Aggregate Industries

Thomas Meek was elected Senior Vice President General Counsel Corporate Secretary and Chief Compliance Officer in

October 2011 Prior to that he was Vice President General Counsel and Secretary of the Company effective September 2009

Prior to that he served as Deputy General Counsel at Alcoa Before joining Alcoa in 1999 Mr Meek worked with Koch Industries

Inc of Wichita Kansas where he held numerous supervisory positions His last position there was Interim General Counsel From

1985 to 1990 Mr Meek was an Associate/Partner in the Wichita Kansas law firm of McDonald Tinker Skaer Quinn Herrington

P.A

D.J Monagle III was elected Senior Vice President and Managing Director Paper PCC effective October 2008 In November

2007 he was appointed Vice President and Managing Director Performance Minerals He joined the Company in January of 2003

and held positions of increasing responsibility including Vice President Americas Paper PCC and Global Marketing Director Paper

PCC Before joining the Company Mr Monagle worked for the Paper Technology Group at Hercules between 1990 and 2003 where

he held sales and marketing positions of increasing responsibility Between 1985 and 1990 he served as an aviation officer the U.S

Armys 11th Armored Cavalry Regiment leaving the service as troop commander with rank of Captain

Michael Cipolla was elected Vice President Corporate Controller and Chief Accounting Officer in July 2003 Prior to that he

served as Corporate Controller and Chief Accounting Officer of the Company since 1998 From 1992 to 1998 he served as Assistant

Corporate Controller

Jonathan Hastings was elected Vice President Corporate Development effective September 2011 Prior to that he was Senior

Director of Strategy and New Business Development- Coatings Global at The Dow Chemical Company Prior to that he held

positions of increasing responsibility at Rohm and Haas including Vice President General ManagerPackaging and Building

MaterialsEurope

Johannes Schut was elected Vice President and Managing Director Minteq International in March 2011 He joined the

Company in 2004 as Director of Finance- Europe In 2006 he was named Vice President Minteq Europe including Middle East

and India Before joining Minerals Technologies Inc Mr Schut held positions of increasing responsibility with Royal Phillips

Electronics and Royal FrieslandCampina DMV International

The information concerning the Companys Board of Directors required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the

Companys Proxy Statement under the captions Committees of the Board of Directors and Item 1- Election of Directors
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The information regarding compliance with Section 16a of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 required by this Item is

incorporated herein by reference to the Companys Proxy Statement under the caption Section 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting

Compliance

The Board has established code of ethics for the Chief Executive Officer the Chief Financial Officer and the Chief Accounting

Officer entitled Code of Ethics for the Senior Financial Officers which is available on our website www.mineralstech.com under

the links entitled Corporate Responsibility Corporate Governance and Policies and Charters

Item 11 Executive Compensation

The information appearing in the Companys Proxy Statement under the captions Compensation Discussion and Analysis

Report of the Compensation Committee and Compensation of Executive Officers and Directors is incorporated herein by

reference

Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The information appearing in the Companys Proxy Statement under the caption Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners

and Management is incorporated herein by reference

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

The information appearing in the Companys Proxy Statement under the caption Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

is incorporated herein by reference

The Board has established Corporate Governance principles which include guidelines for determining Director independence

which is available on our website www.mineralstech.com under the links entitled Corporate Responsibility Corporate Governance

and Policies and Charters The information appearing in the Companys Proxy Statement under the caption Corporate Governance

Director Independence is incorporated herein by reference

Item 14 Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information appearing in the Companys Proxy Statement under the caption Principal Accountant Fees and Services is

incorporated herein by reference
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PART IV

Item 15 Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

The following documents are filed as part of this report

Financial Statements The following Consolidated Financial Statements of Mineral Technologies Inc and subsidiary

companies and Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm are set forth on pages F-2 to F-33

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31 2011 and 2010

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders Equity for the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Financial Statement Schedule The following financial statement schedule is filed as part of this report

Schedule II Valuation and Qualifying Accounts S-i

All other schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulations of the SEC are not required under

the related instructions or are inapplicable and therefore have been omitted

Exhibits The following exhibits are filed as part of or incorporated by reference into this report

31 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company

3.2 By-Laws of the Company as amended and restated effective May 25 2005

3.3 Certificate of Designations authorizing issuance and establishing designations preferences and

rights of Series Junior Preferred Stock of the Company
4.1 Specimen Certificate of Common Stock

10.1 Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of September 28 1992 by and between Specialty

Refractories Inc and Quigley Company Inc

10.1a Agreement dated October 22 1992 between Specialty Refractories Inc and Quigley Company

Inc amending Exhibit 10.14
10.1b Letter Agreement dated October 29 1992 between Specialty Refractories Inc and Quigley

Company Inc amending Exhibit 10.1

10.2 Reorganization Agreement dated as of September 28 1992 by and between the Company and

Pfizer Inc

10.3 Asset Contribution Agreement dated as of September 28 1992 by and between Pfizer Inc and

Specialty Minerals Inc

10.4 Asset Contribution Agreement dated as of September 28 1992 by and between Pfizer Inc and

Barretts Minerals Inc

10.4a Agreement dated October 22 1992 between Pfizer mc Barretts Minerals Inc and Specialty

Minerals Inc amending Exhibits 10.3 and 10.4

10.5 Employment Agreement dated November 27 2006 between the Company and Joseph

Muscari

10.5a Second to Employment Agreement dated July 21 2010 between the Company and Joseph

Muscari

10.6 Form of Employment Agreement between the Company and each of Michael Cipolla

Douglas Dietrich Jonathan Hastings Douglas Mayger Thomas Meek and D.J

Monagle III

10.6a Form of amendment to Employment Agreement between the Company and each of Joseph

Muscari Michael Cipolla Douglas Dietrich Jonathan Hastings Douglas Mayger

Thomas Meek and D.J Monagle 1118

10.7 Employment Agreement dated May 13 2004 between the Company and Johannes Schut

10.8 Form of Severance Agreement between the Company and each of Joseph Muscari Michael

Cipolla Douglas Dietrich Jonathan Hastings Douglas Mayger Thomas Meek

and D.J Monagle9

10.8a Form of amendment to Severance Agreement between the Company and each of Joseph

Muscari Michael Cipolla Douglas Dietrich Jonathan Hastings Douglas Mayger

Thomas Meek and D.J Monagle III 10
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10.9 Form of Indemnification Agreement between the Company and each of Joseph Muscari

Michael Cipolla Douglas Dietrich Jonathan Hastings Douglas Mayger Thomas

Meek and D.J Monagle III 11
10.10 Company Employee Protection Plan as amended August 27 1999 12
10.11 Company Nonfunded Deferred Compensation and Unit Award Plan for Non-Employee

Directors as amended and restated effective January 2008 13
10.11a First Amendment to the Company Nonfunded Deferred Compensation and Unit Award Plan for

Non-Employee Directors dated January 18 2012

10.12 2001 Stock Award and Incentive Plan of the Company as amended and restated as of March

18 2009 14
10.13 Company Retirement Plan as amended and restated effective as of January 2006 15

10.13a First Amendment to the Company Retirement Plan effective as of January 2008 16
10.13b Second Amendment to the Company Retirement Plan dated December 22 2008 17
10.13c Third Amendment to the Company Retirement Plan dated October 2009 18
10.13d Fourth Amendment to the Company Retirement Plan dated December Ii 2009 19
10.13e Fifth Amendment to the Company Retirement Plan dated December 18 2009 20
10.13f Sixth Amendment to the Company Retirement Plan dated December 17 2010 21

10.14 Company Supplemental Retirement Plan amended and restated effective December 31 2009

22
10.15 Company Savings and Investment Plan as amended and restated as of September 14 2007 23

10.15a First Amendment to the Company Savings and Investment Plan dated December 22 2008 24

10.15b Second Amendment to the Company Savings and Investment Plan dated December 18 2009

25
10.15c Third Amendment to the Company Savings and Investment Plan dated December 17 2010

26
10.15d Fourth Amendment to the Company Savings and Investment Plan dated October 19 201127

10.16 Company Supplemental Savings Plan amended and restated effective December 31 2009 28

10.16a Amendment to the Company Supplemental Savings Plan dated December 28 2011

10.17 Company Health and Welfare Plan effective as of April 2003 and amended and restated as

of January 2006 29
10.17a Amendment to the Company Health and Welfare Plan dated May 19 2009 30

10.18 Company Retiree Medical Plan effective as of January 2011 31
10.19 Amended and Restated Grantor Trust Agreement dated as of April 2010 by and between the

Company and the Wilmington Trust Company 32
10.20 Note Purchase Agreement dated as of October 2006 among the Company Metropolitan Life

Insurance Company and MetLife Insurance Company of Connecticut with respect to the

Companys issuance of $75000000 in aggregate principal amount of senior unsecured notes

due October 2013 33
10.21 Indenture dated July 22 1963 between the Cork Harbour Commissioners and Roofchrome

Limited

21.1 Suibsidiaries of the Company
23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

24 Power of Attorney

31.1 Rule 3a- 14a/i Sd- 14a Certification executed by the Companys principal executive officer

31.2 Rule 13 a- 14a/i Sd- 14a Certification executed by the Companys principal financial officer

32 Section 1350 Certification

95 Information Concerning Mine Safety Violations

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit so designated filed with the Companys Annual Report on

Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2003

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit so designated filed with the Companys Current Report on

Form 8-K filed on May 27 2005

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit so designated filed with the Companys Registration

Statement on Form S-i Registration No 33-S 1292 originally filed on August 25 1992

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit so designated filed with the Companys Registration

Statement on Form S-i Registration No 33-595 10 originally filed on March 15 1993

Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.1 filed with the Companys Current Report on Form 8-KIA

filed on December 2006
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Incorporated by reference to the exhibit 10.1 filed with the Companys Current Report on form 8-K

filed on July 27 2010

Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.5 filed with the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for

the year
ended December 31 2006

Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.6a filed with the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K

for the year ended December 31 209

Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.6 filed with the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for

the year ended December 31 2005

10 Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.7a filed with the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K

for the year ended December 31 2009

11 Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.1 filed with the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K

filed on May 2009

12 Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.7 filed with the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for

the year ended December 31 2004

13 Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.8 filed with the Companys Quarterly Report on Form l0-Q

for the quarter ended March 30 2008

14 Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.1 filed with the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K

filed on May 112009

15 Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.14 filed with the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K

for the year ended December 31 2006

16 Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.10 filed with the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K

for the year ended December 31 2007

17 Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.12b filed with the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-

for the year ended December 31 2009

18 Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.12c filed with the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-

for the year ended December 31 2009

19 Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.12d filed with the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-

for the
year

ended December 31 2009

20 Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.12e filed with the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-

for the
year

ended December 31 2009

21 Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.12f filed with the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K

for the year ended December 31 2010

22 Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.13 filed with the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K

for the year ended December 31 2009

23 incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.12 filed with the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K

for the year
ended December 31 2007

24 Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.14a filed with the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-

for the year ended December 31 2009

25 Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.14b filed with the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-

for the year ended December 31 2009

26 Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.14c filed with the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-

for the year ended December 31 2010

27 Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.1 filed with the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q

for the period ended October 2011

28 Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.15 filed with the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K

for the year ended December 31 2009

29 Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.14 filed with the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K

for the year ended December 31 2006

30 Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.16a filed with the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-

for the year ended December 31 2009

31 Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.17 filed with the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K

for the year ended December 31 2010

32 Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.1 filed with the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q

for the period ended April 2010

33 Incorporated by reference to the exhibit 10.1 filed with the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K

filed on October 11 2006

Filed herewith

Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement required to be filed pursuant to Item

601 of Regulation S-K
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the Registrant has duly caused this

report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

By Is/Joseph Muscari

Joseph Muscari

Chairman of the Board

arid Chief Executive Officer

February 24 2012

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by the following persons on

behalf of the Registrant in the capacities and on the dates indicated

SIGNATURE TITLE DATE

/s/ Joseph Muscari Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer February 24 2012

Joseph Muscari principal executive officer

/sI Douglas Dietrich Senior Vice President-Finance and Treasury February 24 2012

Douglas DietricZh Chief Financial Officer principal financial officer

Is Michael Cipolla Vice President Controller and February 24 2012

Michael Cipolla Chief Accounting Officer principal accounting officer
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SIGNATURE TITLE DATE

Paula Cholmondeley

Robert Clark

Duane Dunham

Steven Golub

Michael Pasquale

John Reid

Marc Robinson

William Stivers

Barbara Smith

By Is Thomas Meek

Thomas Meek

Attorney-in-Fact

Director February 24 2012

Director February 24 2012

Director February 24 2012

Director February 24 2012

Director February 24 2012

Director February 24 2012

Director February 24 2012

Director February 24 2012

Director February 24 2012
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MINERALS TECHNOLOGIES INC AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

thousands of dollars

December 31

2011 2010

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 395152 367827
Short-term investments at cost which approximates market 18494 16707

Accounts receivable less allowance for doubtful accounts

2011 -$3008 2010-$2440 194317 181128

Inventories 90760 86464

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 21566 23446

Total current assets 720289 675572

Property plant and equipment less accumulated depreciation and depletion 318134 332797

Goodwill 64671 67156
Other assets and deferred charges 61861 40580

Totalassets 1164955 1116105

Liabilities and Shareholders Equity

Current liabilities

Short-term debt 5846 4611
Current maturities of long-term debt 8552 --

Accounts payable 103354 80728

Income taxes payable 5334 6606
Accrued compensation and related items 33026 31670

Restmcturing liabilities 1411 3484
Other current liabilities 23379 28138

Total current liabilities 180902 155237

Long-term debt 85449 92621

Accrued pension and postretirement benefits 97318 48563
Other non-current liabilities 33266 36989

Total liabilities 396935 333410

Commitments and contingent liabilities Notes 17 and 18

Shareholders equity

Preferred stock without par value 1000000 shares authorized none issued.

Common stock at par $0.10 par value 100000000 shares authorized

issued 29134244 shares in 2011 and 28969244 shares in 2010 2913 2897
Additional paid-in capital 335134 323235

Retained earnings 963130 899211

Accumulated other comprehensive income loss 45331 3590
Less common stock held in treasury at cost 11479279

shares in 2011 and 10670693 shares in 2010 514234 466230
Total MTI shareholders equity 741612 755523

Non-controlling interest 26408 27172

Total shareholders equity 768020 782695

Total liabilities and shareholders equity 1164955 1116105

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements which are an integral part of these statements
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MINERALS TECHNOLOGIES INC AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATION

thousands of dollars except per share data

Year Ended December 31
2011 2010 2009

Net sales 1044853 1002354 907321

Cost of goods sold 832657 793161 751503

Production margin 212196 209193 155818

Marketing arid administrative expenses 92058 90474 91075

Research and development expenses 19330 19577 19941

Impairment of assets -- -- 39831

Restructuring and other costs
______

470 865 22024

Income loss from operations 100338 98277 17053

Interest income 3907 2765 2874
Interest expense 3254 3336 3490
Foreign exchange gains losses 1211 324 2452
Other income deductions 2040 819 3019

Non-operating income deductions net 2598 572 6087

Income loss from continuing operation before provision benefit

for taxes on income 97740 98849 23140
Provision benefit for taxes on income 27486 28963 5387

Income loss from continuing operations net of tax 70254 69886 17753
Income loss from discontinued operations net of tax -- -- 3151
Consolidated net income loss 70254 69886 20904

Less Net income attributable to non-controlling interests 2733 3017 2892
Net income loss attributable to Minerals Technologies Inc MTI 67521 66869 23796

Earnings per share

Basic

Income loss from continuing operations attributable to MTJ 3.75 3.59 1.10
Income loss from discontinued operations attributable to MTI -- -- 0.17

Basic earnings loss per
share attributable to MTI 3.75 3.59 1.27

Diluted

Income loss from continuing operations attributable to MTI 3.73 3.58 1.10
Income loss from discontinued operations attributable to MTI -- -- 0.17

Diluted earnings loss per share attributable to MTI 3.73 3.58 1.27

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements which are an integral part of these statements
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MINERALS TECHNOLOGIES INC AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

thousands of dollars

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Operating Activities

Consolidated net income loss 70254 69886 20904
Income loss from discontinued operations

-- -- 3151
Income loss from continuing operations 70254 69886 17753

Adjustments to reconcile income loss from continuing operations

to net cash provided by operating activities

Depreciation depletion and amortization 58223 63981 72401

Impairment of assets -- -- 39831

Pension settlement loss and amortization -- -- 18833

Loss on disposal of property plant and equipment 288 941 793

Deferred income taxes 1250 1772 23989
Provision for bad debts 878 49 1271

Stock-based compensation 7237 5860 5780

Other non-cash items 41 189 --

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable 14186 7577 7680
Inventories 7340 3713 58835

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 5787 3164 8558

Pension plan funding 6650 8466 8642
Accounts payable 24824 6351 5455

Restructuring liabilities 2550 4741 1442

Income taxes payable 712 6829 2090

Tax benefits related to stock incentive programs 166 136 42

Other 7723 7758 778

Net cash provided by continuing operations 133659 142419 156489

Net cash provided by discontinued operations -- -- 4340

Net cash provided by operations 133659 142419 160829

Investing Activities

Purchases of property plant and equipment 52060 34518 26591
Purchases of short-term investments 12423 10738 7144
Proceeds from sales of short-term investments 9380 4125 10052

Proceeds from disposal of property plant and equipment 78 39 838

Net cash used in investing activities continuing operations 55025 41092 22845
Net cash provided by investing activities discontinued operations -- -- 4428

Net cash used in investing activities 55025 41092 18417

Financing Activities

Issuance of long-term debt 1596 -- --

Repayment of long-term debt 275 4600 4000
Net issuance repayment of short-term debt 2030 1331 8249
Purchase of common shares for treasury 48004 27922 --

Cash dividends paid 3601 3720 3743
Proceeds from issuance of stock under option plan 5912 1086 172

Excess tax benefits related to stock incentive
programs

53 12

Net cash used in financing activities 42336 36434 15808

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 8973 8012 2466

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 27325 56881 129070

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 367827 310946 181876

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 395152 367827 310946

Non-cash Investing and Financing Activities

Treasury stock purchases settled after year-end -- 2069 --

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements which are an integral part of these statements
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MINERALS TECHNOLOGIES INC AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

in thousands

Balance as of December 312008

Equity Attributable to MTI

Accumulated

Additional Other

Common Paid-in Retained Comprehensive

Stock Capital Income Loss

2883 312972 863601 31634

Treasury Non-controlling

Stock Interests Total

436238 23247 73483 Ii

Comprehensive Income loss

Net incomeloss -- -- 23796 -- -- 2892 20904

Currency traosltion adjustment -- -- -- 23479 -- 873 24352

Unamortized gains and prior service cost -- -- -- 12789 -- -- 12789

Cash flow hedge

Net derivative losses arising during the year -- -- -- 1548 -- -- 1548
Reclassification adjustment -- -- -- 107 -- -- 107

Total comprehensive income loss -- -- 23796 34827 -- 3765 14796

Dividends declared -- -- 3.743 -- -- -- 3743
Dividends to non-controlling interests -- -- -- -- -- 3430 3430

Employee benefit transactions 322 -- -- -- -- 327

Income tax benefit arising from employee

stock option plans -- 56 -- -- -- -- 56

Stock-based compensation -- 4906 -- -- -- -- 4906

Balance as of December31 2009 2888 318256 836062 3193 436238 23582 747743

Comprehensive Income loss

Net income -- -- 66869 -- -- 3017 69886

Currency translation adjustment -- -- -- 9195 -- 1022 8173
Unamortized gains and prior service cost -- -- -- 347 -- 347

Cash flow hedge

Net derivative gains arising during the year -- -- -- 2020 -- -- 2020

Reclassification adjustment -- -- -- 45 -- --

Total comprehensive income loss -- -- 66869 6783 -- 4039 64125

Dividends declared 3720 3720
Dividends to non-controlling interests -- -- -- -- -- 449 449

Employee benefit transactions 1231 -- -- -- -- 1240

Income tax benefit arising from employee

stock option plans
-- 189 -- -- -- -- 189

Stock-based compensation -- 3559 -- -- -- -- 3559

Purchase of Common Stock for Treasury -- -- -- -- 29992 -- 29992
Balance as of December31 2010 2897 323235 899211 3590 466230 27172 782695

Comprehensive Income loss

Net income -- -- 67521 -- -- 2733 70254

Sale of controlling interest -- -- -- -- -- 820 820

Currencytranslationadjustment -- -- -- 16687 -- 878 17565

Unamortized losses and prior service cost -- -- -- 25630 -- -- 25630
Cash flow hedge

Net derivative gains arising during the year -- -- -- 529 -- -- 529

Reclassification adjustment -- -- -- 47 -- -- 47

Total comprehensive income loss -- -- 67521 41741 -- 1035 26815

Dividends declared 3602 3602
Dividends to non-controlling interests -- -- -- -- -- 1799 1799

Employeebenefittransactions 16 5895 -- -- -- -- 5911

Income tax benefit
arising

from employee

stock option plans -- 172 -- -- -- -- 172

Stock-based compensation -- 5832 -- -- -- -- 5832

Purchase of common stocic for treasury -- -- -- -- 48004 -- 48004

Balance as ofDecember 31 2011 2913 335134 963130 45331 514234 26408 768020

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements which are an integral part of these statements
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MINERALS TECHNOLOGIES INC AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Minerals Technologies Inc the Company
and its wholly and majority-owned subsidiaries All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in

consolidation

Certain reclassifications were made to prior year amounts to conform to current year presentation

Use ofEstimates

The Company employs accounting policies that are in accordance with U.S generally accepted accounting principles and

require management to make estimates and assumptions relating to the reporting of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of

contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and

expenses during the reported period Significant estimates include those related to allowance for doubtful accounts valuation

of inventories valuation of long-lived assets goodwill and other intangible assets pension plan assumptions income tax

valuation allowances and litigation and environmental liabilities Actual results could differ from those estimates

Business

The Company is resource- and technology-based company that develops produces and markets on worldwide basis

broad range of specialty mineral mineral-based products and related systems and technologies The Companys products are

used in the manufacturing processes of the paper and steel industries as well as by the building materials polymers

ceramics paints and coatings and other manufacturing industries

Cash Equivalents and Short-term Investments

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less to be cash

equivalents Short-term investments consist of financial instruments with original maturities beyond three months but less

than twelve months Short-term investments amounted to $18.5 million and $16.7 million at December 31 2011 and 2010

respectively

Trade Accounts Receivable

Trade accounts receivables are recorded at the invoiced amount and do not bear interest The allowance for doubtful

accounts is the Companys best estimate of the amount of probable credit losses in the Companys existing accounts

receivable The Company determines the allowance based on historical write-off experience and specific allowances for

bankrupt customers The Company also analyzes the collection history and financial condition of its other customers

considering current industry conditions and determines whether an allowance needs to be established The Company reviews

its allowance for doubtful accounts monthly Past due balances over 90 days based on payment terms are reviewed

individually for collectability Account balances are charged off against the allowance after all means of collection have been

exhausted and the potential for recovery is considered remote The Company does not have any off-balance-sheet credit

exposure related to its customers

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market Cost is determined by the first-in first-out FIFO method

Additionally items such as idle facility expense excessive spoilage freight handling costs and re-handling costs are

recognized as current period charges The allocation of fixed production overheads to the costs of conversion are based upon

the normal capacity of the production facility Fixed overhead costs associated with idle capacity are expensed as incurred

Property Plant and Equipment

Property plant and equipment are recorded at cost Significant improvements are capitalized while maintenance and

repair expenditures are charged to operations as incurred The Company capitalizes interest cost as component of

construction in progress In general the straight-line method of depreciation is used for financial reporting purposes The

annual rates of depreciation are 3% 6.67% for buildings 6.67% 12.5% for machinery and equipment 8% 125% for

furniture and fixtures and 12.5% 25% for computer equipment and software-related assets The estimated useful lives of our

PCC production facilities and machinery and equipment pertaining to our natural stone mining and processing plants and our

chemical plants are 15 years

Property plant and equipment are depreciated over their useful lives Useful lives are based on managements estimates of

the period that the assets can generate revenue which does not necessarily coincide with the remaining term of customers

contractual obligation to purchase products made using those assets The Companys sales of PCC are predominantly

pursuant to long-term evergreen contracts initially ten years
in length with paper mills at which the Company operates

satellite PCC plants The terms of many of these agreements have been extended often in connection with an expansion of
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MINERALS TECHNOLOGIES INC AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

the satellite PCC plant Failure of PCC customer to renew an agreement or continue to purchase PCC from Company
facility could result in an impairment of assets charge or accelerated depreciation at such facility

Depletion of mineral reserves is determined on unit-of-extraction basis for financial reporting purposes based upon

proven and probable reserves and on percentage depletion basis of tax purposes

Stripping Costs Incurred During Production

Stripping costs are those costs incurred for the removal of waste materials for the
purpose

of accessing ore body that will

be produced commercially Stripping costs incurred during the production phase of mine are variable costs that are

included in the costs of inventory produced during the period that the stripping costs are incurred

Accounting for the impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying

amount of an asset may not be recoverable If events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an

asset may not be recoverable the Company estimates the undiscounted future cash flows excluding interest resulting from

the use of the asset and its ultimate disposition If the sum of the undiscounted cash flows excluding interest is less than the

carrying value the Company recognizes an impairment loss measured as the amount by which the carrying value exceeds

the fair value of the asset determined principally using discounted cash flows

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of purchase price and related costs over the value assigned to the net tangible and

identifiable intangible assets of businesses acquired Goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite lives are not

amortized but instead assessed for impairment Intangible assets with estimable useful lives are amortized over their

respective estimated lives to the estimated residual values and reviewed for impairment

In 2011 the Company performed qualitative assessment for each of its reporting units to determine if the two step

process for impairment testing was required If the Company had determined that it was more likely than not that the fair

value of reporting unit was less than its carrying amount the Company would then have evaluated the recoverability of

goodwill using two-step impairment test approach at the reporting unit level as it had done in years prior In the first step

the fair value for the reporting unit is compared to its book value including goodwill In the case that the fair value of the

reporting unit is less than book value second step is performed which compares the fair value of the reporting units

goodwill to the book value of the goodwill The fair value for the goodwill is determined based on the difference between the

fair values of the reporting unit and the net fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of such reporting unit If the fair

value of the goodwill is less than the book value the difference is recognized as an impairment

Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations

The Company provides for obligations associated with the retirement of long-lived assets and the associated asset

retirement costs The fair value of liability for an asset retirement obligation is recognized in the period in which it is

incurred if reasonable estimate of fair value can be made The associated asset retirement costs are capitalized as part of the

carrying amount of the long-lived asset The Company also provides for legal obligations to perform asset retirement

activities where timing or methods of settlement are conditional on future events

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The recorded amounts of cash and cash equivalents receivables short-term borrowings accounts payable accrued

interest and variable-rate long-term debt approximate fair value because of the short maturity of those instruments or the

variable nature of underlying interest rates Short-term investments are recorded at cost which approximates fair market

value

Derivative Financial instruments

The Company records derivative financial instruments which are used to hedge certain foreign exchange risk at fair value

on the balance sheet See Note 11 for full description of the Companys hedging activities and related accounting policies

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from sale of products is recognized at the time the goods are shipped and title passes to the customer In most of

the Companys PCC contracts the price per ton is based upon the total number of tons sold to the customer during the year
Under those contracts the price billed to the customer for shipments during the

year
is based on periodic estimates of the total

annual volume that will be sold to such customer Revenues are adjusted at the end of each year to reflect the actual volume

sold The Company also has consignment arrangements with certain customers in our Refractories segment Revenues for

these transactions are recorded when the consigned products are consumed by the customer

Revenues from sales of equipment are recorded upon completion of installation and receipt of customer acceptance

Revenues from services are recorded when the services have been performed
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Foreign Currency

The assets and liabilities of the Companys international subsidiaries are translated into U.S dollars using exchange rates

at the respective balance sheet date The resulting translation adjustments are recorded in accumulated other comprehensive

income loss in shareholders equity Income statement items are generally translated at monthly average exchange rates

prevailing during the period International subsidiaries operating in highly inflationary economies translate non-monetary

assets at historical rates while net monetary assets are translated at current rates with the resulting translation adjustments

included in net income At December 31 2011 the Company had no international subsidiaries operating in highly

inflationary economies

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the estimated future tax consequences attributable to differences

between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases Deferred tax

assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which those temporary differences are

expected to be recovered or settled The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of change in tax rates is recognized in

income in the period that includes the enactment date

The Company operates in multiple taxing jurisdictions both within the U.S and outside the U.S In certain situations

taxing authority may challenge positions that the Company has adopted in its income tax filings The Company regularly

assesses its tax position for such transactions and includes reserves for those differences in position The reserves are utilized

or reversed once the statute of limitations has expired or the matter is otherwise resolved

The application of income tax law is inherently complex Laws and regulations in this area are voluminous and are often

ambiguous As such we are required to make many subjective assumptions and judgments regarding our income tax

exposures Interpretations of and guidance surrounding income tax laws and regulations change over time As such changes

in our subjective assumptions and judgments can materially affect amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets and

statements of operations The Companys accounting policy is to recognize interest and penalties as part of its provision for

income taxes See Note to the consolidated financial statements Income Taxes for additional detail on our uncertain tax

positions

The accompanying financial statements generally do not include provision for U.S income taxes on international

subsidiaries unremitted earnings which are expected to be permanently reinvested overseas

Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses are expensed as incurred

Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation

The Company recognizes compensation expense for share-based awards based upon the grant date fair value over the

vesting period

Pension and Post-retirement Benefits

The Company has defined benefit pension plans covering the majority of its employees The benefits are generally based

on years of service and an employees modified career earnings

The Company also provides post-retirement healthcare benefits for the majority of its retirees and employees in the United

States The Company measures the costs of its obligation based on its best estimate The net periodic costs are recognized as

employees render the services necessary to earn the post-retirement benefits

Environmental

Expenditures that relate to current operations are expensed or capitalized as appropriate Expenditures that relate to an

existing condition caused by past operations and which do not contribute to current or future revenue generation are

expensed Liabilities are recorded when it is probable the Company will be obligated to pay amounts for environmental site

evaluation remediation or related costs and such amounts can be reasonably estimated

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share have been computed based upon the weighted average number of common shares outstanding

during the period

Diluted earnings per share have been computed based upon the weighted average number of common shares outstanding

during the period assuming the issuance of common shares for all potentially dilutive common shares outstanding
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Subsequent events

The Company has evaluated for subsequent events through the date of issuance of its financial statements

Noncontrolling Interests

In 2009 the Company adopted the provisions of standard issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board

FASB on Noncontrolling Interests The income statement was revised to separately present consolidated net income

which now includes the amounts attributable to the Company plus noncontrolling interests and net income attributable solely

to the Company Additionally noncontrolling interests are considered component of equity for all periods presented Prior

year presentations have been restated to conform with the new statement All income attributable to noncontrolling interests

for the periods presented was from continuing operations In the third quarter of 201 the Company divested 50% interest

in its Refractories joint venture in Korea As result the Company now has 20% equity interest in this entity and will

account for this investment using the equity method There were no other changes in MTIs ownership interest for the period

ended December 31 2011 as compared with December 31 2010

Note Stock-Based Compensation

The Company has 2001 Stock Award and Incentive Plan the Plan which provides for grants of incentive and non-

qualified stock options restricted stock stock appreciation rights stock awards or performance unit awards The Plan is

administered by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors Stock options granted under the Plan generally have

ten year term The exercise price for stock options are at prices at or above the fair market value of the common stock on

the date of the grant and each award of stock options will vest ratably over specified period generally three years

Stock-based compensation expense is recognized in the consolidated financial statements for stock options based on the

grant date fair value

Net income loss for years ended 2011 2010 and 2009 include $2.7 million $2.0 million and $2.2 million pretax

compensation costs respectively related to stock option expeiise as component of marketing and administrative expenses

All stock option expense is recognized in the consolidated statements of operations The related tax benefit included in the

statement of operations on the non-qualified stock options is $1.1 million $0.8 million and $0.9 million for 2011 2010 and

2009 respectively

The benefits of tax deductions in excess of the tax benefit from compensation costs that were recognized or would have

been recognized are classified as financing inflows on the consolidated statement of cash flows

Stock Options

The fair value of options granted is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes valuation model

Compensation expense is recognized only for those options expected to vest with forfeitures estimated at the date of grant

based on the Companys historical experience and future expectations The forfeiture rate assumption used for the period

ended December 31 2011 was approximately 6.87%

The weighted average grant date fair value for stock options granted during the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and

2009 was $22.06 $16.32 and $11.86 respectively The weighted average grant date fair value for stock options vested during

2011 2010 and 2009 was $15.17 $17.01 and $20.15 respectively The total intrinsic value of stock options exercised during

the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 was $1.7 million $0.5 million and $0.1 million respectively

The fair value for stock awards was estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option valuation model with

the following weighted average assumptions for the
years

ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009

2011 2010 2009

Expected life years 6.3 6.3 6.3

Interest rate 2.46% 2.92% 1.87%

Volatility 30.93% 28.80% 28.01%

Expected dividend yield 0.3 1% 0.41% 0.50%

The expected term of the options represents the estimated period of time until exercise and is based on historical

experience of similar awards based upon contractual terms vesting schedules and expectations of future employee behavior

The expected stock-price volatility is based upon the historical and implied volatility of the Companys stock The interest

rate is based upon the implied yield on U.S Treasury bills with an equivalent remaining term Estimated dividend yield is

based upon historical dividends paid by the Company

F-9



MINERALS TECHNOLOGIES INC AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following table summarizes stock option activity for the
year ended December 31 2011

The aggregate intrinsic value above is calculated before applicable income taxes based on the Companys closing stock

price of $56.53 as of the last business day of the period ended December 31 2011 had all options been exercised on that date

The weighted average intrinsic value of the options exercised during 2011 2010 and 2009 was $14.30 $16.06 and $18.50 per

share respectively As of December 31 2011 total unrecognized stock-based compensation expense related to nonvested

stock options was approximately $1.5 million which is expected to be recognized over weighted average period of

approximately three years

The Company issues new shares of common stock upon the exercise of stock options

Non-vested stock option activity for the year ended December 31 2011 is as follows

Nonvested options outstanding at December 31 2010

Options granted

Options vested

Options forfeited

Nonvested options outstanding December 31 2011

Shares

269315

122323

133864

30457
227317

Weighted

Average Exercise

Price Per Share

47.13

64.12

48.76

54.78

54.29

The following table summarizes additional information concerning options outstanding at December 31 2011

Range of

Exercise Prices

38.620- 49.505

50.785 59.330

60.195 69.315

69.315

Restricted Stock

Weighted

Average

Remaining

Contractual

Term Years
6.4

6.5

5.2

The Company has granted certain corporate officers rights to receive shares of the Companys common stock under the

Companys 2001 Stock Award and Incentive Plan the Plan The rights will be deferred for specified number of years of

service subject to restrictions on transfer and other conditions Compensation expense for these shares is recognized over the

vesting period The Company granted 68489 shares 78320 shares and 101400 shares for the periods ended December 31
2011 2010 and 2009 respectively The fair value was determined based on the market value of unrestricted shares As of

December 31 2011 there was unrecognized stock-based compensation related to restricted stock of $2.7 million which will

be recognized over approximately the next three years The compensation expense amortized with respect to all units was

approximately $4.6 million $3.8 million and $4.2 million for the periods ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009

respectively In addition the Company recorded reversals of $0.1 million $0.1 million and $0.6 million for periods ended

December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively related to restricted stock forfeitures Such costs and reversals are included

in marketing and administrative expenses There were 47123 restricted stock shares that vested for the year ended December

31 2011

Weighted Weighted

Average Average Aggregate

Exercise Remaining Intrinsic

Price Per Contractual Value

Shares Share LIe Years in thousands

Balance December 31 2010 820030 52.1

Granted 122323 64.12

Exercised 120598 50.02

Canceled 34768 53.59

BalanceDecember3l 2011 786987 54.19 5.71 10087

Exercisable December 31 2011 559670 54.16 4.63 2639

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Number

Outstanding

at 12/31/11

302241

158162

326584

786987

Weighted Number Weighted

Average Exercisable Average

Exercise Price at 12/31/11 Exercise Price

44.69 183199 44.24

2.8 54.09 154402 54.09

63.04 222069 62.38

54.19 559670 54.15
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The following table summarizes the restricted stock activity for the Plan

Unvested balance at December 31 2010

Granted

Vested

Canceled

Unvested balance at December 31 2011

Note Earnings Per Share EPS

Weighted

Average

Grant

Date Fair

Value

47.19

64.17

63.98

60.44

54.42

Basic earnings loss per share from continuing operations attributable to MTI
Basic earnings loss per share from discontinued operations attributable to MTI.. --

Basic earnings loss per share attributable to MTI 3.75

20645

3151
23796

18724

Diluted EPS

Income loss from continuing operations attributable to MTI

Income loss from discontinued operations attributable to MTI

Net income loss attributable to MTI

Weighted average shares outstanding

Dilutive effect of stock options

Weighted average
shares outstanding adjusted

2011

67521

67521

18009

109

18118

2010

66869

66869

18614

79

18693

2009

20645

3151
23796

18724

18724

Diluted earnings loss per share from continuing operations

Diluted earnings loss per share from discontinued operations --

Diluted earnings loss per share 3.73
__________ __________

Options to purchase 109032 shares 96801 shares and 322.933 shares of common stock for the years ended December 31

2011 December 31 2010 and December 31 2009 respectively were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per

share because they were anti-dilutive as the exercise prices of the options were greater than the average market price of the

common shares Additionally the weighted average diluted common shares outstanding for the
year ended December 31

2009 excludes the dilutive effect of stock options and restricted stock as inclusion of these would be anti-dilutive

Approximately 55000 common share equivalents were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per
share for the

period ended December 31 2009

Note Discontinued Operations

During the second quarter of 2009 the Company recorded impairment of asset charges of $5.6 million net of tax to

recognize the lower market value of its Mt Vernon Indiana facility On October 26 2009 the Company sold this facility

for the approximate amount of the net book value of the assets

Shares

150270

68489

47123
45624
126012

thousands except per share amounts

Basic EPS

Income loss from continuing operations attributable to MTI

Income loss from discontinued operations attributable to MTI

Net income loss attributable to MTI

Weighted average shares outstanding

2011 2010 2009

67521

67521

18009

66869

66869

18614

3.75 3.59

3.59

1.10

0.17

1.27

3.73 3.58

3.58

1.10

0.17

1.27
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The following table details selected financial information for the discontinued operations in the consolidated statements of

operations for fiscal years ended December 31 2009 There were no discontinued operations in the fiscal years ended

December 31 2011 and December 31 2010 The amounts exclude general corporate overhead and interest expense which

were previously allocated to the entities comprising discontinued operations

Thousands of Dollars 2009

Net sales 15600

Production margin 1148

Expenses 582

Impairment of assets 5778

Restructuring and other costs

Gain on sale of assets 239

Income loss from operations 4973

Other income

Foreign currency translation

loss from liquidation of investment --

Provision benefit for taxes on income 1822

Income loss from discontinued operations net of tax 3151

Note Income Taes

Income loss from continuing operations before provision benefit for taxes and discontinued operations by domestic and

foreign source is as follows

Thousands of Dollars 2011 2010 2009

Domestic 46950 49484 29766
Foreign 50790 49365 6626

Income loss from continuing operations before

provision benefit for income taxes 97740 98849 23140

The provision benefit for taxes on income consists of the following

Thousands of Dollars 2011 2010 2009

Domestic

Taxes currently payable

Federal 11793 12287 7628
State andlocal 2145 1861 68

Deferred income taxes 1886 411 23722
Domestic tax provision benefit 12052 14559 16026

Foreign

Taxes currently payable 12298 13043 10906

Deferred income taxes 3136 1361 267
Foreign tax provision 15433 14404 10639

Total tax provision benefit 27486 28963 5387

The provision for taxes on income shown in the previous table is classified based on the location of the taxing authority

regardless of the location in which the taxable income is generated

The major elements contributing to the difference between the U.S federal statutory tax rate and the consolidated

effective tax rate are as follows
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Percentages 2011 _2010 2009

U.S statutorytaxrate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0

Depletion 4.1 3.8 13.9
Difference between tax provided on foreign earnings

and the U.S statutory rate 1.0 3.1 4.3

Change in Mexican law 0.2 0.3 6.4

State and local taxes net of Federal tax benefit 1.2 1.2 12.1
Tax credits and foreign dividends 0.1 0.1 1.4
Change in valuation allowance 1.2 0.1 27.0

Impact of uncertain tax positions 2.8 1.5 0.1

Other 1.3 1.4 1.3

Consolidated effective tax rate 28.1% 29.3% 23.3

The Company believes that its accrued liabilities are sufficient to cover its U.S and foreign tax contingencies The tax

effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are

presented below

Thousands of Dollars 2011 2010

Deferred tax assets

Accrued expenses 9752 13890

Net operating loss carry forwards 11083 10725

Pension and post-retirement benefits costs 40584 19857

Other 11163 10990

Valuation allowance 6860 6276
Total deferred tax assets 65722 49186

Thousands of Dollars 2011 2010

Deferred tax liabilities

Plant and equipment principally due to differences in depreciation 4832 6203

Intangible assets 10527

Mexican tax recapture 1021 1549

Other 4067 2000
Total deferred tax liabilities 21307 20279
Net deferred tax assets 44415 28907

The current and long-term portion of net deferred tax assets is as follows

Thousands of Dollars 2011 2010

Net deferred tax assets current 4903 8378
Net deferred assets long term 39512 20529

44415 28907

The current portion of the net deferred tax assets is included in prepaid expenses and other current assets The long-term

portion of the net deferred tax assets are included in other assets and deferred charges

The Company has $6.7 million of deferred tax assets arising from tax loss carry forwards which will be realized through

future operations Carry forwards of approximately $1.8 million expire over the next 20 years and $4.9 million can be

utilized over an indefinite period

On December 31 2011 the Company had $3.9 million of total unrecognized tax benefits Included in this amount were

total of $2.3 million of unrecognized income tax benefits that if recognized would affect the Companys effective tax rate

While it is expected that the amount of unrecognized tax benefits will change in the next 12 months we do not expect the

change to have significant impact on the results of operations or the financial position of the Company
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The following table summarizes the activity related to our unrecognized tax benefits

Thousands of Dollars 2011 2010

Balance as of January 2011 6473 8496

Increases related to current year positions 563 329

Decreases related to new judgments 373 --

Decreases related to audit settlements and statute expirations 2751 2234
Other -- 118
BalanceasofDecember3l2011 3912 6473

The Companys accounting policy is to recognize interest and penalties accrued relating to unrecognized income tax

benefits as part of its provision for income taxes The Company had net reversal of $1.1 million of interest and penalties

during 2011 and had total accrued balance on December 31 2011 of $0.7 million

The Company operates in multiple taxing jurisdictions both within and outside the U.S In certain situations taxing

authority may challenge positions that the Company has adopted in its income tax filings The Company with few

exceptions none of which are material is no longer subject to U.S federal state local and European income tax

examinations by tax authorities for years prior to 2006

Net cash paid for income taxes were $31.9 million $24.9 million and $14.1 million for the years ended December 31

2011 2010 and 2009 respectively

The Company has not provided for U.S federal and foreign withholding taxes on $317.2 million of foreign subsidiaries

undistributed earnings as of December 31 2011 because such earnings are intended to be permanently reinvested overseas

To the extent the parent company has received foreign earnings as dividends the foreign taxes paid on those earnings have

generated tax credits which have substantially offset related U.S income taxes However in the event that the entire $317.2

million of foreign earnings were to be repatriated incremental taxes may be incurred We do not believe this amount would

be more than $39.2 million

Note Inventories

The following is summary of inventories by major category

Thousands of Dollars 2011 2010

Raw materials 38510 34862
Work in process 6044 6448
Finished goods 26055 25757

Packaging and supplies 20151 19397

Total inventories 90760 86464

Note Property Plant and Equipment

The major categories of property plant and equipment and accumulated depreciation and depletion are presented below

Thousands of Dollars 2011 2010

Land 27370 27334

Quarries/mining properties 39596 39596

Buildings 147115 144348

Machinery and equipment 911753 918450
Construction in

progress 31060 13438

Furniture and fixtures and other 91755 95256

1248649 1238422

Less Accumulated depreciation and depletion 930515 905625

Property plant and equipment net 318134 332797

Depreciation and depletion expense
for the

years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 was $55.9 million $61.2

million and $69.0 million respectively
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2007 Restructuring Program

MINERALS TECHNOLOGIES INC AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In the third quarter of 2007 as result of change in management and deteriorating financial performance the Company
conducted an in-depth review of all its operations and developed new strategic focus The Company initiated plan to

realign its business operations to improve profitability and increase shareholder value by exiting certain businesses and

consolidating some product lines The restructuring resulted in total workforce reduction of approximately 250 which has

been completed

reconciliation of the restructuring liability for this program as of December 31 2011 is as follows

Balance as of

December 31
millions of dollars 2010

Contract termination costs 1.3

Other exit costs --

1.3

Additional

Provisions

Reversals

0.2
0.9

0.7

Balance as of

Cash December 31

Expenditures 2011

0.3 0.8

0.9 ________--

In the first quarter of 2011 the Company recorded additional restructuring costs associated with our 2007 restructuring of

ourPCC facility in Germany

Approximately $1.2 million and $0.4 million in severance payments were paid in 2011 and 2010 respectively

restructuring liability of $0.8 million remains at December 31 2011 Such amounts will be funded from operating cash

flows

2009 Restructuring Program

In the second quarter of 2009 the Company initiated program to improve efficiencies through the consolidation of

manufacturing operations and reduction of costs

The restructuring program reduced the current workforce by approximately 200 employees worldwide This reduction in

force relates to plant consolidations as well as streamlining of the corporate and divisional management structures to

operate more efficiently This program has been completed

reconciliation of the restructuring liability for this program as of December 31 2011 is as follows

Balance as of

December 31
millions of dollars 2010

Severance and other employee benefits 2.0

2.0

Additional

Provisions

Reversals

0.6

0.6

Cash

Expenditures

1.3

1.3

Balance as of

December 31

2011

0.1

0.1

Approximately $1.3 million and $3.5 million in severance payments were paid in 2011 and 2010 respectively The

remaining liability of $0.1 million will be funded from operating cash flows

Other Restructuring

In the fourth quarter of 2011 the Company recorded restructuring charges of the slhutdown of its Anjalankoski Finland

satellite facility in connection with the announced closure of the
paper

mill at that location

In the fourth quarter of 2009 the Company recorded restructuring charges for the shutdown of its Franklin Va satellite

facility in connection with the announced closure of the paper mill at that location

Note Restructuring Costs
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reconciliation of the restructuring liability for these closures as of December 31 2011 is as follows

Balance as of Balance as of

December 31 Additional Cash December 31

millions of dollars 2010 Provisions Expenditures 2011

Severance and other employee benefits 0.1 0.4 -- 0.5

0.1 0.4 -- 0.5

The remaining liability of $0.5 million will be funded from cash flows from operations and the program is expected to be

completed in 2012

Note Accounting for Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company reviews long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the

carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable In such instances the Company estimates the undiscounted future cash

flows excluding interest resulting from the use of the asset and its ultimate disposition If the sum of the undiscounted cash

flows excluding interest is less than the carrying value the Company recognizes an impairment loss measured as the

amount by which the carrying value exceeds the fair value of the asset

In the second quarter of 2009 the Company initiated restructuring program to improve efficiencies through the

consolidation of operations and rationalization of certain product lines and through the reduction of costs As part of this

program the Company consolidated its Old Bridge New Jersey operation into Bryan Ohio and Baton Rouge Louisiana in

order to improve operational efficiencies and reduce logistics for key raw materials which resulted in an impairment of assets

charge of $4.3 million rationalized its North American specialty shapes product line resulting in an impairment of assets

charge of $1.5 million rationalized some of its European operations resulting in an impairment of assets charge of $2.2

million recorded further impairment charges of $10.0 million related to its Asian refractory operations as result of

continued difficulties in market penetration and plans to consolidate its Asian operations and actively seek regional alliance

to aid in marketing its high value products recognized impairment charges for refractory application equipment in North

America of $3.7 million and Europe of $3.3 million due to customer underutilized assets under depressed volume conditions

recognized an impairment of $6.5 million related to the Companys PCC facility in Millinocket Maine which has been idle

since September 2008 and where the start-up of the satellite facility became unlikely As result of this realignment the

Company recorded an impairment of assets charge of $37.5 million

In the fourth quarter of 2009 the Company recorded an impairment of assets charge of $2.0 million for its satellite facility

in Franklin Virginia due to the announced closure of the host mill at that location

The following table reflects the major components of the impairment of assets charge recorded in 2009

Impairment of assets

Remaining

Carrying Value

Upon

Impairment of

millions of dollars 2009 Assets

Americas Refractories 9.5 0.3

European Refractories 11.8 0.8

Asian Refractories 10.0 11.6

North America Paper PCC 8.5
________

Total impairment 39.8 12.7

Included in the impairment of assets charge for Europe Refractories was $6.0 million charge for certain intangible assets

from its 2006 acquisition of business in Turkey

The remaining carrying value of the impaired assets was determined by estimating marketplace participant views of the

discounted cash flows of the asset groups and in the case of tangible assets by estimating the market value of the assets

which due to the specialized and limited use nature of our equipment is primarily driven by the value of the real estate As

the estimated discounted cash flows were determined to be negative under multiple scenarios the highest and best use of the

tangible asset groups was determined to be sale of the underlying real estate The fair value of the significant real estate

holdings was based on independent appraisals
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The Company expected to realize annualized pre-tax depreciation savings of approximately $5 million related to the write-

down of fixed assets The Company recognized approximately $5.0 million and $2.4 million in depreciation savings in 2010

and 2009 respectively associated with this program

Note 10 Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The carrying amount of goodwill was $64.7 million and $67.2 million as of December 31 2011 and December 31 2010

respectively The net change in goodwill since December 31 2010 was attributable to the effects of foreign exchange

Acquired intangible assets subject to amortization included in other assets and deferred charges as of December 31 2011

and December 31 2010 were as follows

December 31 2011 ______ December 31 2010

Gross Gross

Millions of Dollars Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated

Amount Amortization Amount Amortization

Patents and trademarks 6.2 4.0 6.2 3.5

Customer lists 2.7 1.5 2.7 1.2

8.9 5.5 8.9 4.7

The weighted average amortization period for acquired intangible assets subject to amortization is approximately 15

years Amortization expense was approximately $0.8 million $0.5 million and $0.9 million for the years ended December 31

2011 2010 and 2009 respectively The estimated amortization expense is $0.6 million for each of the next five years

through 2016

Included in other assets and deferred charges is an additional intangible asset of approximately $0.9 million which

represents the non-current unamortized amount paid to customer in connection with contract extensions at seven satellite

PCC facilities In addition current portion of $0.4 million is included in prepaid expenses and other current assets Such

amounts will be amortized as reduction of sales over the remaining lives of the customer contracts Approximately $0.7

million $1.0 million and $1.5 million was amortized in 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively Estimated amortization as

reduction of sales is as follows 2012 $0.4 million 2013 $0.4 million 2014 $0.4 million 2015 $0.1 million

Note 11 Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedging Activities

The Company is exposed to foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations As part of its risk management strategy the

Company uses forward exchange contracts FEC to manage its exposure to foreign currency risk on certain raw material

purchases The Companys objective is to offset gains and losses resulting from these exposures with gains and losses on the

derivative contracts used to hedge them The Company has not entered into derivative instruments for any purpose
other than

to hedge certain expected cash flows The Company does not speculate using derivative instruments

By using derivative financial instruments to hedge exposures
to changes in interest rates and foreign currencies the

Company exposes itself to credit risk and market risk Credit risk is the risk that the counterp arty will fail to perform under

the terms of the derivative contract When the fair value of derivative contract is positive the counterparty owes the

Company which creates credit risk for the Company When the fair value of derivative contract is negative the Company

owes the counterparty and therefore it does not face any credit risk The Company minimizes the credit risk in derivative

instruments by entering into transactions with major financial institutions

Market risk is the adverse effect on the value of financial instrument that results from change in interest rates currency

exchange rates or commodity prices The market risk associated with interest rate and forward exchange contracts is

managed by establishing and monitoring parameters that limit the types and degree of market risk that may be undertaken

Based on established criteria the Company designated its derivatives as cash flow hedges The Company uses FECs

designated as cash flow hedges to protect against foreign currency exchange rate risks inherent in its forecasted inventory

purchases The Company had open foreign exchange contract as of December 31 2011

For derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges the effective portion of the gain or loss on

the derivative instrument is initially recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income loss as separate component of

shareholders equity and subsequently reclassified into earnings in the period during which the hedged transaction is

recognized in earnings The gains and losses associated with these forward exchange contracts are recognized into cost of

sales Gains and losses and hedge ineffectiveness associated with these derivatives were not significant
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Note 12 Short-term Investments

The composition of the Companys short-term investments are as follows

in millions of dollars 2011 2010

Short-term Investments

Short-termbankdeposits
18.5 16.7

There were no unrealized holding gains and losses on the short-term bank deposits held at December 31 2011

Note 13 Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value is an exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer liability exit price in an orderly

transaction between market participants at the measurement date The Company utilizes market data or assumptions that

market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability The Company follows three-tier fair value hierarchy which

prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value These tiers include Level defined as observable inputs such as quoted

prices in active markets Level defined as inputs other than quoted prices in active markets that are either directly or

indirectly observable and Level defined as unobservable inputs about which little or no market data exists therefore

requiring an entity to develop its own assumptions

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value are based on one or more of three valuation techniques The three valuation

techniques are as follows

Market approach prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions involving

identical or comparable assets or liabilities

Cost approach amount that would be required to replace the service capacity of an asset or

replacement cost

Income approach techniques to convert future amounts to single present amount based on market

expectations including present value techniques option-pricing and other models

The Company primarily applies the income approach for foreign exchange derivatives for recurring fair value

measurements and attempts to utilize valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use

of unobservable inputs

As of December 31 2011 the Company held certain financial assets and liabilities that were required to be measured at

fair value on recurring basis These consisted of the Companys derivative instruments related to foreign exchange rates and

certain investment in money market funds The fair values of foreign exchange rate derivatives are determined based on

inputs that are readily available in public markets or can be derived from information available in publicly quoted markets

and are categorized as Level The fair values of investments in money market funds are determined by quoted prices in

active markets and are categorized as level The Company does not have any financial assets or liabilities measured at fair

value on recurring basis categorized as Level and there were no transfers in or out of Level during the year ended

December 31 2011 There were also no changes to the Companys valuation techniques used to measure asset and liability

fair values on recurring basis

The following table sets forth by level within the fair value hierarchy the Companys financial assets and liabilities

accounted for at fair value on recurring basis as of December 31 2011 Assets and liabilities are classified in their entirety

based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement The Companys assessment of the

significance of particular input to the fair value measurement requires judgment and may affect the valuation of fair value

assets and liabilities and their placement within the fair value hierarchy levels

F- 18



MINERALS TECHNOLOGIES INC. AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

in millions of dollars Assets Liabilities at Fair Value as of December 31 2011

Quoted Prices

In Active Markets

for Significant Other Significant

Identical Assets Observable Inputs Unobservable Inputs

Level Level Level

Forward exchange contracts -- 3.5 --

Money market funds 134.7 -- --

Total 134.7 3.5 --

The following table sets forth by level within the fair value hierarchy the Companys financial assets and liabilities accounted

for at fair value on recurring basis as of December 31 2010

in millions of dollars Assets Liabllities at Fair Value as of December 31 2010

Quoted Prices

In Active Markets

for Significant Other Significant

Identical Assets Observable Inputs Unobservable Inputs

Level Level Level

Forward exchange contracts -- 2.6 --

Money market funds 172.1 -- --

Total 172.1 2.6 --

Note 14 Financial Instruments and Concentrations of Credit Risk

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instrument

Cash and cash equivalents short-term investments accounts receivable and payable The carrying amounts approximate

fair value because of the short maturities of these instruments

Short-term debt and other liabilities The carrying amounts of short-term debt and other liabilities approximate fair value

because of the short maturities of these instruments

Long-term debt The fair value of the long-term debt of the Company is estimated based on the quoted market prices for

that debt or similardebt and approximates the carrying amount

Forward exchange contracts The fair value of forward exchange contracts used for hedging purposes is based on

information derived from active markets If appropriate the Company would enter into forward exchange contracts to

mitigate the impact of foreign exchange rate movements on the Companys operating results It does not engage in

speculation Such foreign exchange contracts would offset losses and gains on the assets liabilities and transactions being

hedged At December 31 2011 the Company had an open foreign exchange contract with financial institution to purchase

approximately $0.2 million of foreign currencies This contract matured in January 2012 The fair value of this instrument

was liability of less than $0.1 million at December 312011 The fair value of open foreign exchange contracts at December

12010 was liability of $0.2 million

Additionally the Company has entered into forward contracts to sell 30 million Euros as hedge of its net investment in

Europe These contracts mature in October 2013 The fair value of these instruments at December 31 2011 and December

31 2010 was an asset of $3.5 million and $2.7 million respectively

Credit risk Substantially all of the Companys accounts receivables are due from companies in the paper construction and

steel industries Credit risk results from the possibility that loss may occur from the failure of another party to perform

according to the terms of the contracts The Company regularly monitors its credit risk exposures and takes steps to mitigate

the likelihood of these exposures resulting in actual loss The Companys extension of credit is based on an evaluation of the

customers financial condition and collateral is generally not required

The Companys bad debt expense for the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 was $0.9 million $0.1 million

and $1.3 million respectively
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Note 15 Long-Term Debt and Commitments

The following is summary of long term debt

thousands of dollars Dec 31 Dec 31
2011 2010

5.53% Series 2006A Senior Notes

Due October5 2013 50000 50000

Floating Rate Series 2006A Senior Notes

Due October 2013 25000 25000

Variable/Fixed Rate Industrial

Development Revenue Bonds Due August 2012 8000 8000

Variable/Fixed Rate Industrial

Development Revenue Bonds Series 1999 Due November 2014 8200 8200

Installment obligations

Due2013 1421 1421

Other Borrowings

Due2013 1380 --

Total 94001 92621

Less Current maturities 8552 --

Long-term debt 85449 92621

The Variable/Fixed Rate Industrial Development Revenue Bonds due August 2012 are tax-exempt 15-year instruments

that were issued on August 1997 to finance the construction of PCC plant in Courtland Alabama The bonds bear

interest at either variable rate or fixed rate at the option of the Company Interest is payable semi-annually under the fixed

rate option and monthly under the variable rate option The Company selected the variable rate option on these borrowings

and the average interest rates were approximately 0.31% and 0.45% for the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010

respectively

The Variable/Fixed Rate Industrial Development Revenue Bonds due November 2014 are tax-exempt 15-year

instruments and were issued on November 30 1999 to refinance the bonds issued in connection with the construction of

PCC plant in Jackson Alabama The bonds bear interest at either variable rate or fixed rate at the option of the Company
Interest is payable semi-annually under the fixed rate option and monthly under the variable rate option The Company
selected the variable rate option on these borrowings and the average interest rates were approximately 0.31% and 0.45% for

the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively

On May 31 2003 the Company acquired land and limestone ore reserves from the Cushenbury Mine Trust for

approximately $17.5 million Approximately $6.1 million was paid at the closing and $11.4 million was financed through an

installment obligation The interest rate on this obligation is approximately 4.25% The remaining principal payment of $1.4

million will be made in 2013

On October 2006 the Company through private placement entered into Note Purchase Agreement and issued $75

million aggregate principal amount unsecured senior notes These notes consist of two tranches $50 million aggregate

principal amount 5.53% Series 2006A Senior Notes Tranche Notes and $25 million aggregate principal amount Floating

Rate Series 2006A Senior Notes Tranche Notes Tranche Notes bear interest of 5.53% per annum payable semi

annually Tranche Notes bear floating rate interest payable quarterly The average interest rate on Tranche for the
years

ended December 31 2011 and December 31 2010 was 0.77% and 0.79% respectively The principal payment for both

tranches is due on October 2013

In January 2011 the Company entered into Renminbi RIVIB denominated loan agreement at its Refractories facility

in China with the Bank of America totaling RMB 10.6 million or $1.6 million Principal of this loan is payable in

installments over the next three years Interest is payable semi-annually and is based upon the official RMB lending rate

announced by the Peoples Bank of China The average interest rate for the year ended December 31 2011 was 6.5%

The aggregate maturities of long-term debt are as follows 2012 8.6 million 2013 $77.2 million 2014 $8.2 million

2015 $-- million 2016 $-- million thereafter $-- million

The Company had available approximately $185.6 million in uncommitted short-term bank credit lines of which $5.8

million was in use at December 31 2011
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Short-term borrowings as of December 31 2011 and 2010 were $5.8 million and $4.6 million respectively The weighted

average interest rate on short-term borrowings outstanding as of December 31 2011 and 2010 was 5.3% and 3.27%

respectively

During 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively the Company incurred interest costs of $3.5 million $3.5 million and $3.7

million including $0.3 million $0.2 million and $0.2 million respectively which were capitalized Interest paid

approximated the incurred interest cost

Note 16 Benefit Plans

Pension Plans and Other Postretirement BenefIt Plans

The Company and its subsidiaries have pension plans covering the majority of eligible employees on contributory or

non-contributory basis

Benefits under defined benefit plans are generally based on years of service and an employees career earnings Employees

generally become fully vested after five years

The Company provides postretirement health care and life insurance benefits for the majority of its U.S retired

employees Employees are generally eligible for benefits upon retirement and completion of specified number of
years

of

creditable service The Company does not pre-fund these benefits and has the right to modify or terminate the plan in the

future

The funded status of the Companys pension plans and other postretirement benefit plans at December 31 2011 and 2010

is as follows

Obligations and Funded Status

Pension Benefits Post-retirement Benefits

Millions of Dollars 2011 2010 2011 2010

Change in benefit obligation

Benefit obligation at beginning of year
226.5 210.2 15.6 13.2

Service cost 7.1 6.6 0.7 0.7

Interest cost 11.6 11.5 0.6 0.8

Actuarial gain loss 40.5 10.9 2.1 1.4

Benefitspaid 11.7 11.4 0.5 0.5
Settlements 1.5 -- -- --

Foreign exchange impact 0.6 1.7 -- --

Other
_____

0.0 0.4 -- --

Benefit obligation at end of
year

271.9 226.5 14.4 15.6

Pension Benefits Post-retirement Benefits

Millions of Dollars 2011 2010 2011 2010

Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets beginning of year 191.6 176.7 -- --

Actual return onplan assets 3.1 19.9 -- --

Employer contributions 6.1 8.0 0.5 0.5

Plan participants contributions 0.4 0.4 -- --

Benefitspaid 11.7 11.4 0.5 0.5

Settlements 1.5 -- -- --

Foreign exchange impact ______
0.5 2.0 -- --

Fair value of plan assets at end of year
191.6 -- --

Funded status 84.4 34.9 14.4 15.6
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Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheet consist of

The current portion of pension liabilities is included in accrued compensation and related items

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income net of related tax effects consist of

Post-retirement Benefits

__________
2010 2011 2010

58.8 1.5 2.8

__________
3.8 11.7 13.6

_________
62.6 10.2 10.8

The accumulated benefit obligation for all defined benefit pension plans was $250.5 million and $206.0 million at

December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively

Changes in the Plan assets and benefit obligations recognized in other comprehensive income

Millions of Dollars Pension

Benefits

Current year actuarial gain loss 31.5

Amortization of actuarial loss 5.6

Amortization of prior service creditgain loss 0.8

Total recognized in other comprehensive income 25.1

The components of net periodic benefit costs are as follows

Post

Retirement

Benefits

1.2

0.1

1.9

0.6

Unrecognized prior service cost is amortized over the average remaining service period of each active employee

In 2009 as result of the workforce reduction associated with the restructuring program and associated distribution of

benefits the Company recorded pre-tax pension settlement charge of $9.4 million relating to lump-sum distributions to

employees

The Companys funding policy for U.S plans generally is to contribute annually into trust funds at rate that provides for

future plan benefits and maintains appropriate funded percentages Annual contributions to the U.S qualified plans are at

least sufficient to satisfi regulatory funding standards and are not more than the maximum amount deductible for income tax

purposes The funding policies for the international plans conform to local governmental and tax requirements The plans

assets are invested primarily in stocks and bonds

Millions of Dollars

Non-current asset

Current liability

Non-current liability

Recognized liability

Pension Benefits

2011

0.4
84.0

84.4

Post-retirement Benefits

2011 20102010

0.1

0.5

34.5

34.9

1.2
13.2

14.4

1.5

14.1

15.6

Millions of Dollars 2011

Net actuarial loss 84.7

Prior service cost 2.9

Amount recognized end of year 87.6

Pension Benefits

Pension Benefits Post-retirement Benefits

Millions of Dollars 2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009

Servicecost 7.1 6.6 7.1 0.7 0.7 1.1

Interest cost 11.7 11.5 11.3 0.6 0.8 1.5

Expectedreturnonplanassets 13.8 12.6 12.5 -- -- --

Amortization of prior service cost 1.3 1.4 2.1 3.1 3.1 1.6

Recognized net actuarial loss 8.6 8.4 7.3 0.1 0.4 0.2

Settlement/curtailment loss 0.5 -- 9.4 -- -- --

Netperiodicbenefitcost 15.3 15.3 24.7 1.6 1.2 1.2
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The 2012 estimated amortization of amounts in other comprehensive income are as follows

Post

Millions of Dollars Pension Retirement

Benefits Benefits

Amortization of prior service cost 1.2 3.1
Amortization of net loss 12.7 0.1

Total costs to be recognized 13.9 3.0

Additional information

The weighted average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost in the accounting for the pension benefit

plans and other benefit plans for the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 are as follows

2011 2010 2009

Discount rate 5.70% 5.75% 6.00%

Expected return on plan assets 7.25% 7.40% 7.15%

Rate of compensation increase 3.20% 3.50% 3.20%

The weighted average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations for the pension benefit plans and other benefit plans

at December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 are as follows

2011 2010 2009

Discount rate 4.30% 5.70% 5.70%

Rate of compensation increase 3.10% 3.20% 3.20%

For 2011 2010 and 2009 the discount rate was based on Citigroup yield curve of high quality corporate bonds with cash

flows matching our plans expected benefit payments The expected return on plan assets is based on our asset allocation mix

and our historical return taking into account current and expected market conditions The actual return loss on pension

assets was approximately 2% in 2011 11% in 2010 and 7% in 2009

The Company maintains self-funded health insurance plan for its retirees This plan provided that the maximum health

care cost trend rate would be 5% Effective June 2009 the Company amended its plan to change the eligibility requirement

for retirees and revised its plan so that increases in expected health care costs would be borne by the retiree

Plan Assets

The Companys pension plan weighted average asset allocation percentages at December 31 2011 and 2010 by asset

category are as follows

Asset Category 2011 2010

Equity securities 56.5% 55.1%

Fixed income securities 40.8% 42.6%

Real estate 0.1% 0.1%

Other 2.6% 2.2%

Total 100.0% 100.0%

The Companys pension plan fair values at December 31 2011 and 2010 by asset category are as follows

Million of Dollars

Asset Category 2011 2010

Equity securities 106.1 105.6

Fixed income securities 76.4 81.6

Real estate 0.2 0.2

Other 4.8 4.2

Total 187.5 191.6
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The following table presents domestic and foreign pension plan assets information at December 31 2011 2010 and 2009

the measurement date of pension plan assets

U.S Plans International Plans

Millions of Dollars 2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009

Fair value of plan assets 132.2 138.1 126.4 55.3 53.5 50.3

The following table summarizes our defined benefit pension plan assets measured at fair value as of December 31 2011

Millions of Dollars Pension Assets at Fair Value as of December 31 2011

Quoted Significant Significant Total

Prices Other Unobservable

In Active Observable Inputs

Markets for Inputs

Identical

Asset Class Assets
________________________________________

Level Level Level
___________

Equity Securities

US equities 72.5 -- -- 72.5

Non-US equities 33.6 -- -- 33.6

Fixed Income Securities

Corporate debt instruments 59.5 16.9 -- 76.4

Real estate and other

Real estate -- -- 0.2 0.2

Other 0.2 -- 46 4.8

Total Assets 165.8 16.9 4.8 187.5

US equitiesThis class included actively and passively managed common equity securities comprised primarily of large-

capitalization stocks with value core and growth strategies

Non-US equitiesThis class included actively managed common equity securities comprised primarily of international

large-capitalization stocks

Fixed incomeThis class included debt instruments issued by the US Treasury and corporate debt instruments

The following table summarizes our defined benefit pension plan assets measured at fair value as of December 31 2010

Millions of Dollars Pension Assets at Fair Value as of December 31 2010

Quoted Significant Significant Total

Prices Other Unobservable

In Active Obseivable Inputs

Markets for Inputs

Identical

Asset Class Assets
________________________________________

Level Level Level __________

Equity Securities

US equities 79.9 -- 79.9

Non-US equities 25.7 -- 25.7

Fixed Income Securities

Government treasuries -- -- --

Corporate debt instruments 57.8 23.8 81.6

Real estate and other

Real estate -- -- 0.2 0.2

Other -- -- 4.2 4.2

Total Assets 163.4 23.8 4.4 191.6
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Contributions

The Company expects to contribute $12 million to its pension plans and $1.2 million to its other postretirement benefit

plan in 2012

Estimated Future Benefit Payments

The following benefit payments which reflect expected future service as appropriate are expected to be paid

Pension Other

Millions of Dollars Benefits Benefits

20112 10.8 1.2

2013 13.0 1.1

2014 14.4 1.0

2015 15.6 1.0

2016 16.5 1.0

2017-2021 93.9 5.6

Investment Strategies

The investment strategy for pension plan assets is to maintain broadly diversified portfolio designed to both preserve and

grow plan assets to meet future plan obligations The Companys average rate of return on assets from inception through

December 2011 was over 9% The Companys assets are strategically allocated among equity debt and other

investments to achieve diversification level that dampens fluctuations in investment returns The Companys long-term

investment strategy is an investment portfolio mix of approximately 65% in equity securities and 35% in fixed income

securities As of December 31 2011 the Company had approximately 60% of its pension assets in equity securities and 40%

in fixed income securities

Savings and Investment Plans

The Company maintains voluntary Savings and Investment Plan 401K plan for most non-union employees in the

U.S Within prescribed limits the Company bases its contribution to the Plan on employee contributions The Companys
contributions amounted to $2.7 million $2.7 million and $2.7 million for the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and

2009 respectively

Notes 17 Leases

The Company has several non-cancelable operating leases primarily for office space and equipment Rent expense

amounted to approximately $5.3 million $6.0 million and $6.7 million for the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and

2009 respectively Total future minimum rental commitments under all non-cancelable leases for each of the years 2012

through 2016 and in aggregate thereafter are approximately $4.4 million $2.5 million $2.3 million $2.0 million $1.7

million respectively and $8.6 million thereafter Total future minimum rentals to be received under non-cancelable subleases

were approximately $1.5 million at December 31 2011

Total future minimum payments to be received under direct financing leases for each of the years 2012 through 2016 and

the aggregate thereafter are approximately $4.4 million $1.5 million $1.0 million $0.8 million $0.6 million and $0.3

million thereafter

Note 18 Litigation

Certain of the Companys subsidiaries are among numerous defendants in number of cases seeking damages for

exposure to silica or to asbestos containing materials The Company currently has 77 pending silica cases and 27 pending

asbestos cases To date 1389 silica cases and asbestos cases have been dismissed One new silica case and one new

asbestos case were filed in the fourth quarter of 2011 Most of these claims do not provide adequate information to assess

their merits the likelihood that the Company will be found liable or the magnitude of such liability if any Additional

claims of this nature may be made against the Company or its subsidiaries At this time management anticipates that the

amount of the Companys liability if any and the cost of defending such claims will not have material effect on its

financial position or results of operations

The Company has not settled any silica or asbestos lawsuits to date We are unable to state an amount or range
of

amounts claimed in any of the lawsuits because state court pleading practices do not require identifying the amount of the

claimed damage The aggregate cost to the Company for the legal defense of these cases since inception was approximately

$0.2 million the majority of which has been reimbursed by Pfizer Inc pursuant to the terms of certain agreements entered
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into in connection with the Companys initial public offering in 1992 Our experience has been that the Company is not liable

to plaintiffs in any of these lawsuits and the Company does not expect to pay any settlements or jury verdicts in these

lawsuits

Environmental Matters

On April 2003 the Connecticut Department of Environmental Protection issued an administrative consent order

relating to our Canaan Connecticut plant where both our Refractories segment and Specialty Minerals segment have

operations We agreed to the order which includes provisions requiring investigation and remediation of contamination

associated with historic use of polychiorinated biphenyls PCBs and mercury at portion of the site We have completed

the required investigations and submitted several reports characterizing the contamination We are now conducting site-

specific risk assessment required by the regulators

We believe that the most likely form of overall site remediation will be to leave the existing contamination in place

with some limited soil removal encapsulate it and monitor the effectiveness of the encapsulation We anticipate that

substantial portion of the remediation cost will be borne by the United States based on its involvement at the site from 1942

1964 as historic documentation indicates that PCBs and mercury were first used at the facility at time of U.S government

ownership for production of materials needed by the military Though the cost of the likely remediation remains uncertain

pending completion of the phased remediation decision process we have estimated that the Companys share of the cost of

the encapsulation and limited soil removal described above would approximate $0.4 million which has been accrued as of

December 31 2011

The Company is evaluating options for upgrading the wastewater treatment facilities at its Adams Massachusetts plant

This work has been undertaken pursuant to an administrative Consent Order originally issued by the Massachusetts

Department of Environmental Protection DEP on June 18 2002 This order was amended on June 2009 and on June

2010 The amended Order includes the investigation by January 2022 of options for ensuring that the facilitys wastewater

treatment ponds will not result in unpermitted discharge to groundwater Additional requirements of the amendment include

the submittal by July 2022 of plan for closure of historic lime solids disposal area Preliminary engineering reviews

completed in 2005 indicate that the estimated cost of wastewater treatment upgrades to operate this facility beyond 2024 may
be between $6 million and $8 million The Company estimates that the remaining remediation costs would approximate $0.4

million which has been accrued as of December 31 2011

The Company and its subsidiaries are not party to any other material pending legal proceedings other than routine

litigation incidental to their businesses

Note 19 Stockholders Equity

Capital Stock

The Companys authorized capital stock consists of 100 million shares of common stock par value $0 10 per share of

which 17654965 shares and 18298551 shares were outstanding at December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively and

1000000 shares of preferred stock none of which were issued and outstanding

Cash Dividends

Cash dividends of $3.6 million or $0.20 per common share were paid during 2011 In January 2012 cash dividend of

approximately $0.8 million or $0.05 per share was declared payable in the first quarter of 2012

Stock Award and Incentive Plan

The Company has adopted its 2001 Stock Award and Incentive Plan the Plan which provides for grants of incentive

and non-qualified stock options stock appreciation rights stock awards or performance unit awards The Plan is administered

by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors Stock options granted under the Plan have term not in excess of

ten years The exercise price for stock options will not be less than the fair market value of the common stock on the date of

the grant and each award of stock options will vest ratably over specified period generally three years
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The following table summarizes stock option and restricted stock activity for the Plan

Balance January 12009

Granted

Authorized

Exercised/vested

Canceled

Balance December 31 2009

Granted

Exercised/vested

Canceled

Balance December 31 2010

Granted

Exercised/vested

Canceled

Balance December 31 2011

Note 20 Comprehensive Income

Weighted

Average

Exercise

Price Per

Share

55.14

39.84

35.63

43.14

52.54

49.12

44.88

54.42

54.11

64.12

50.02

53.59

54.19

Restricted Stock

Weighted

Average

Exercise

Price Per

_________
Share

61.63

39.65

60.35

_________
61.30

50.16

49.13

54.43

________
52.12

47.19

64.17

63.98

_________
60.44

54.52

Shares

161294

101400

41020
32956

188718

78320

59087
57681
150270

68489

47123
45624
126012

Comprehensive income includes changes in the fair value of certain financial derivative instruments that qualif for hedge

accounting to the extent they are effective the recognition of deferred pension costs and cumulative foreign currency

translation adjustments

The following table reflects the accumulated balances of other comprehensive income loss

Millions of Dollars

Balance at January 2009

Current year net change

Currency

Translation

Adjustment

32.3

23.4

Unrecognized

Pension

Costs

65.0
12.8

Net Gain

Loss On

Cash Flow

Hedges

1.1

1.4

Accumulated

Other

Comprehensive

Income Loss

31.6
34.8

Balance at December 31 2009

Current year net change

55.7

9.2

52.2
0.3

0.3
2.1

3.2

6.8

46.6 51.9

16.7 25.6 ______________ _______________

The income tax expense benefit associated with items included in other comprehensive income loss was approximately

15.5 million $1.9 million and $10.0 million for the years
ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively

Note 21 Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations

The Company records asset retirement obligations in which the Company will be required to retire tangible long-lived

assets These are primarily
related to its PCC satellite facilities and mining operations The Company has also recorded the

provisions related to conditional asset retirement obligations at its facilities The Company has recorded asset retirement

obligations at all of its facilities except where there are no contractual or legal obligations The associated asset retirement

costs are capitalized as part of the carrying amount of the long-lived asset

Stock Options

Shares

Available

for Grant

435850

280600
800000

78875

1034125

219460

134624

949289

190812

80392

838869

Shares

661781

179200

7532
45919
787530

141140

31697
76943
820030

122323

120598
34768
786987

Balance at December 31 2010

Current year net change

Balance at December 31 2011 29.9

1.7

77.5

0.6 41.7

3.6

2.3 45.3
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The following is reconciliation of asset retirement obligations as of December 31 2011 and 2010

Millions of Dollars 2011 2010

Asset retirement liability beginning of period 14.7 14.0

Accretion expense 0.6 0.8

Additional obligations 0.2 0.1

Reversal of obligations 0.4 --

Payments 0.2 0.1

Foreign currency translation 0.2 0.1

Asset retirement liability end of period 14.7 14.7

The current portion of the liability of approximately $0.4 million is included in other current liabilities The long-term

portion of the liability of approximately $14.3 million is included in other non-current liabilities

Accretion expense is included in cost of goods sold in the Companys Consolidated Statements of Operations

Note 22 Non-Operating Income and Deductions

Millions of dollars Year Ended December 31
2011 2010 2009

Interest income 3.9 2.7 2.9

Interest expense 3.3 3.3 3.5

Foreign exchange gains losses 1.2 0.3 2.4

Foreign currency
translation loss upon liquidation 2.3

Foreign currency translation loss upon deconsolidation

of foreign entity 1.4
Gain on sale of previously impaired assets 0.2

Settlement for customer contract terminations 0.8

Other deductions 0.6 0.1 0.8

Non-operating income deductions net 2.6 0.6 6.1

During the third quarter to 2011 the Company recognized currency translation losses of $1.4 million upon the sale of

50% interest in and deconsolidation of its previously controlled joint venture in Korea

During the second quarter of 2010 the Company recognized income of $0.8 million for settlement related to customer

contract termination

During the second quarter of 2009 the Company recognized foreign currency translation losses of $2.3 million upon

liquidation of the Companys operations at Gomez Palacio Mexico

Note 23 Segment and Related Information

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise about which separate financial information is available

that is evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing

performance The Companys operating segments are strategic business units that offer different products and serve different

markets They are managed separately and require different technology and marketing strategies

The Company has two reportable segments Specialty Minerals and Refractories The Specialty Minerals segment

produces and sells precipitated calcium carbonate and lime and mines processes and sells the natural mineral products

limestone and talc This segments products are used principally in the paper building materials paints and coatings glass

ceramic polymers food automotive and pharmaceutical industries The Refractories segment produces and markets

monolithic and shaped refractory products and systems used primarily by the steel cement and glass industries as well as

metallurgical products used primarily in the steel industry

The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant accounting policies

The Company evaluates performance based on the operating income of the respective business units Depreciation expense

related to corporate assets is allocated to the business segments and is included in their income from operations However

such corporate depreciable assets are not included in the segment assets Intersegment sales and transfers are not significant
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Segment information for the years ended December 31 20112010 and 2009 was as follows

2011

Millions of Dollars

Net sales

Income from operations

Restructuring and other charges

Depreciation depletion and amortization

Segment assets

Capital expenditures

Specialty

Minerals

676.1

728

1.0

47.6

603.8

41.7

Refractories

368.8

33.2

0.6
10.6

355.8

8.0

2010

Total

1044.9

106.0

0.5

58.2

959.6

497

Millions of Dollars

Net sales

Income from operations

Restructuring and other charges

Depreciation depletion and amortization

Segment assets

Capital expenditures

Specialty

Minerals

665.0

74.7

0.5

52.6

585.7

23.3

Refractories

337.4

28.0

0.3

11.4

340.5

8.2

2009

Total

10024

102.7

0.8

64.0

926.2

31.5

Millions of Dollars

Net sales

Income loss from operations

Impairment of assets

Restructuring and other charges

Depreciation depletion and amortization

Segment assets

Capital expenditures

Specialty

Minerals

628.4

34.2

8.5

11.5

58.5

631.7

19.1

Refractories

278.9

48.8
31.3

10.5

13.9

326.2

5.6

Total

907.3

14.6
39.8

22.0

72.4

957.9

24.7

reconci of the totals reported for the operating segments to the applicable line items in the consolidated financial

statements is as follows

Millions of Dollars

Income loss from continuing operations before

provision benefit for taxes

Income loss from operations for reportable segments.....

Unallocated corporate expenses

Interest income

Interest expense

Other income deductions

Income loss from continuing operations before

provision benefit for taxes

2011

106.0

5.7
3.9

3.3

3.2

97.7

2010

102.7

4.5
2.7

3.3

______
1.2

98.8

2009

14.6

2.5
2.9

3.5

5.4

23.1

Total assets

Total segment assets

Corporate assets

Consolidated total assets

2011

959.6

205.4

1165.0

2010

926.2

189.9

1116.1

2009

957.9

114.2

1072.1

Capital expenditures

Total segment capital expenditures

Corporate capital expenditures

Consolidated total capital expenditures

2011

49.7

2.4

52.1

2010

31.5

3.0

34.5

2009

24.7

1.9

26.6
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The carrying amount of goodwill by reportable segment as of December 31 2011 and December 31 2010 was as follows

Goodwill

December 31 December 31

Millions of Dollars 2011 2010

Specialty Minerals 13.8 13.8

Refractories 50.9 53.3

Total 64.7 67.1

The net change in goodwill since December 31 2010 is attributable to the effect of foreign exchange

Financial information relating to the Companys operations by geographic area was as follows

Millions of Dollars

Net Sales 2011 2010 2009

United States 557.5 534.3 478.4

Canada/Latin America 74.3 68.9 60.2

Europe/Africa
298.4 288.4 283.9

Asia 114.7 110.8 84.8

Total International 487.4 468.1 428.9

Consolidated total net sales 1044.9 1002.4 907.3

Millions of Dollars

Long-lived assets 2011 2010 2009

United States 239.8 239.9 253.5

Canada/Latin America 14.6 14.9 13.5

Europe/Africa 72.0 89.9 105.7

Asia 59.8 59.4 59.5

Total International 146.4 164.2 178.7

Consolidated total long-lived assets 386.2 404.1 432.2

Net sales and long-lived assets are attributed to countries and geographic areas based on the location of the legal entity

No individual foreign country represents more than 10% of consolidated net sales or consolidated long-lived assets

The Companys sales by product category are as follows

Millions of Dollars 2011 2010 2009

Paper PCC 497.0 496.6 484.6

Specialty PCC 63.6 58.0 50.1

Talc 46.9 44.0 32.3

GCC 68.6 66.4 61.4

Refractory Products 287.4 264.5 225.4

Metallurgical Products 81.4 72.9 53.5

Net sales 1044.9 1002.4 907.3

Note 24 Quarterly Financial Data unaudited

Millions of Dollars Except Per Share Amounts

2011 Quarters First Second Third Fourth

Net Sales by Major Product Line

PCC 144.8 140.2 142.5 133.1

Processed Minerals 28.5 31.6 28.6 26.8

Specialty Minerals Segment 173.3 171.8 171.1 159.9

Refractories Segment 89.2 96.6 91.1 91.8

Net sales 262.5 268.4 262.2 251.7

Gross profit 52.9 53.7 52.9 52.7
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2011 Quarters First Second Third Fourth

Income from operations 24.7 25.1 25.4 25.2

Consolidated net income 16.7 17.2 16.3 20.1

Non-controlling Interests 0.9 0.7 0.7 0.4

Net income attributable to MTI 15.8
___________ ___________ ___________

Earnings per share

Basic 0.86

Diluted 0.86

Market price range per
share of common stock

High

Low

Close

Dividends paid per common share

2010 Quarters
_________ __________ __________ __________

Net Sales by Major Product Line

PCC
Processed Minerals

Specialty Minerals Segment

Refractories Segment

Net sales

Gross profit 51.4

Income from operations 23.1

Consolidated net income 16.1

Non-controlling interests 0.7
___________ ___________ ___________

Net income attributable to MTI 15.4
___________ ___________ ___________

Earnings per share

Basic

Diluted

MINERALS TECHNOLOGIES INC AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16.4 15.7 19.6

0.90 0.88 1.11

0.90 0.87 1.11

68.73 70.09 68.63 58.00

62.46 63.01 49.27 46.75

68.73 67.66 49.27 56.53

0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05

First Second Third Fourth

145.1 138.4 136.8 134.3

27.0 29.8 29.3 24.3

172.1 168.2 166.1 158.6

81.4 87.6 83.7 84.7

253.5 255.8 249.8 243.3

55.0 52.2 50.6

27.5 25.0 22.8

19.6 17.5 16.7

0.7 0.8 0.8
19.0 16.7 15.8

0.82 1.01

0.82 1.01

Market price range per share of common stock

High

Low

Close

Dividends paid per common share

56.05

46.36

52.30

0.05

0.90

0.90

59.68

45.73

58.65

0.05

59.53

46.90

46.90

0.05

0.86

0.86

66.81

56.43

65.41

0.05
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders

Minerals Technologies Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Minerals Technologies Inc and subsidiary companies as

of December 31 2011 and 2010 and the related consolidated statements of operations shareholders equity and cash flows

for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31 2011 In connection with our audits of the consolidated

financial statements we also have audited the related financial statement schedule These consolidated financial statements

and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Companys management Our responsibility is to express an

opinion on these consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the

amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and

significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe

that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the financial

position of Minerals Technologies Inc and subsidiary companies as of December 31 2011 and 2010 and the results of their

operations arid their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31 2011 in conformity with

U.S generally accepted accounting principles Also in our opinion the related financial statement schedule when

considered in relation to the consolidated financial statements taken as whole presents fairly in all material respects the

information set forth therein

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States

Mineral Technologies Inc and subsidiary companies internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2011

based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO and our report dated February 24 2012 expressed an unqualified

opinion on the effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial reporting

/s/ KPMG LLP

New York New York

February 24 2012
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders

Minerals Technologies Inc

We have audited Minerals Technologies Inc and subsidiary companies internal control over financial reporting as of

December 31 2011 based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of

Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO Minerals Technologies Inc and subsidiary companies

management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the

effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Managements Report on Internal

Control Over Financial Reporting Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Companys internal control over

financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective

internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our audit included obtaining an

understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that material weakness exists and testing and

evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk Our audit also included

performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances We believe that our audit provides

reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes

in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures

that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and

dispositions of the assets of the company provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to

permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and

expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the

company and provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or

disposition of the companys assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements Also

projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate

because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion Minerals Technologies Inc and subsidiary companies maintained in all material respects effective internal

control over financial reporting as of December 31 2011 based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework

issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States

the consolidated balance sheets of Minerals Technologies Inc and subsidiary companies as of December 31 2011 and 2010
and the related consolidated statements of operations shareholders equity and cash flows and related financial statement

schedule for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31 2011 and our report dated February 24 2012

expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule

/s/ KPMG LLP

New York New York

February 24 2012
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Managements Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of Minerals Technologies Inc is responsible for the preparation integrity and fair presentation of its

published consolidated financial statements The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S generally

accepted accounting principles and as such include amounts based on judgments and estimates made by management The

Company also prepared the other information included in the annual report and is responsible for its accuracy and

consistency with the consolidated financial statements

Management is also responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting The

Companys internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the Companys

ability to record process summarize and report reliable financial data The Company maintains system of internal control

over financial reporting which is designed to provide reasonable assurance to the Companys management and board of

directors regarding the preparation of reliable published financial statements and safeguarding of the Companys assets The

system includes documented organizational structure and division of responsibility established policies and procedures

including code of conduct to foster strong ethical climate which are communicated throughout the Company and the

careful selection training and development of our people

The Board of Directors acting through its Audit Committee is responsible for the oversight of the Companys accounting

policies financial reporting and internal control The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors is comprised entirely of

outside directors who are independent of management The Audit Committee is responsible for the appointment and

compensation of the independent registered public accounting firm It meets periodically with management the independent

registered public accounting firm and the internal auditors to ensure that they are carrying out their responsibilities The

Audit Committee is also responsible for performing an oversight role by reviewing and monitoring the financial accounting

and auditing procedures of the Company in addition to reviewing the Companys financial reports The independent

registered public accounting firm and the internal auditors have full and unlimited access to the Audit Committee with or

without management to discuss the adequacy of internal control over financial reporting and any other matters which they

believe should be brought to the attention of the Audit Committee

Management recognizes that there are inherent limitations in the effectiveness of any system of internal control over

financial reporting including the possibility of human error and the circumvention or overriding of internal control

Accordingly even effective internal control over financial reporting can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to

financial statement preparation and may not prevent or detect misstatements Further because of changes in conditions the

effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting may vary over time

The Company assessed its internal control system as of December 31 2011 in relation to criteria for effectiye internal

control over financial reporting described in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of

Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission Based on its assessment the Company has determined that as of

December 31 2011 its system of internal control over financial reporting was effective

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by the independent registered public accounting firm which was

given uurestricted access to all financial records and related data including minutes of all meetings of stockholders the

Board of Directors and committees of the Board Reports of the independent registered public accounting firm which

includes the independent registered public accounting firms attestation of the effectiveness of the Companys internal control

over financial reporting are also presented within this document

Is Joseph Muscari IsDouglas Dietrich

Chairman of the Board Senior Vice President Finance and Treasury

and Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

Is Michael Cipolla

Vice President Corporate Controller

and Chief Accounting Officer

February 24 2012
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MINERALS TECHNOLOGIES INC SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
SCHEDULE Il-VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

thousands of dollars

Additions

Charged to

Costs

Provisions

Balance at and Balance at

Beginning Expenses Deductions End of

Description of Period Period

Year ended December 31 2011

Valuation and qualifying accounts deducted from

assets to which they apply

Allowance for doubtful accounts 2440 877 308 3009

Year ended December 31 2010

Valuation and qualifying accounts deducted from

assets to which they apply

Allowance for doubtful accounts 2890 49 499 244

Year ended December 31 2009

Valuation and qualifying accounts deducted from

assets to which they apply

Allowance for doubtful accounts 2600 1211 921 2890

Includes impact of translation of foreign currencies

Provision for bad debts net of recoveries of $-- million $0.1 million and $1.2 million in 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively
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EXHIBIT 21.1

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Name of the Company Jurisdiction of Organization

APP China Specialty Minerals Pte Ltd Singapore

ASMAS Agir Sanayi Maizemeleri Imal ye Tic A.S Turkey

Barretts Minerals Inc Delaware

Double Specialty Minerals Co Ltd Thailand

Gold Lun Chemicals Zhenjiang China

Gold Sheng Chemicals Zhenjiang Co Ltd China

Gold Zuan Chemicals Suzhou Co Ltd China

Hi-Tech Specialty Minerals Company Limited Thailand

Minerals Technologies do Brasil Comercio Industria de Minerais Ltda Brazil

Minerals Technologies Europe N.y Belgium

Minerals Technologies Holdings Inc Delaware

Minerals Technologies Holdings Ltd United Kingdom
Minerals Technologies India Private Limited India

Minerals Technologies Mexico Holdings de de C.V Mexico

Minerals Technologies South Africa Pty Ltd South Africa

Mintech Canada Inc Canada

Mintech Japan K.K Japan

Minteq Australia Pty Ltd Australia

Minteq B.V The Netherlands

Minteq Europe Limited Ireland

Minteq International GmbH Germany

Minteq International Inc Delaware

Minteq International Suzhou Co Ltd China

Minteq Italiana S.p.A Italy

Minteq Kosovo LLC Kosovo

Minteq Magnesite Limited Ireland

Minteq Shapes and Services Inc Delaware

Minteq UK Limited United Kingdom
MTI Bermuda L.P Bermuda

MTI Holdings GmbH Germany
MTI Holding Singapore Pte Ltd Singapore

MTI Holdco LLC Delaware

MTI Holdco II LLC Delaware

MTI Netherlands B.V Netherlands

MTI Ventures B.V Netherlands

MTX Finance Inc Delaware

MTX Finance Ireland Ireland

Performance Minerals Netherlands C.V Netherlands

PT Sinar Mas Specialty Minerals Indonesia

Rijnstaal U.S.A Inc Pennsylvania

SMI NewQuest India Private Limited India

SMI Poland Sp 0.0 Poland

Specialty Minerals Bangladesh Limited Bangladesh

Specialty Minerals Benelux Belgium

Specialty Minerals FMT K.K Japan

Specialty Minerals France s.p.a.s France

Specialty Minerals GmbH Germany

Specialty Minerals Inc Delaware

Specialty Minerals India Holding Inc Delaware

Specialty Minerals International Inc Delaware

Specialty Minerals Malaysia Sdn Bhd Malaysia

Specialty Minerals Michigan Inc Michigan

Specialty Minerals Mississippi inc Delaware

Specialty Minerals Nordic Oy Ab Finland

Specialty Minerals Portugal Especialidades Minerais S.A Portugal

Specialty Minerals S.A de C.V Mexico

Specialty Minerals Servicios de de C.V Mexico



Specialty Minerals Slovakia spol sr.o Slovakia

Specialty Minerals South Africa Pty Limited South Africa

Specialty Minerals Thailand Limited Thailand

Specialty Minerals UK Limited United Kingdom

Tecnologias Minerales de Mexico S.A de C.V Mexico



EXHIBIT 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors

Minerals Technologies Inc

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the registration statements Nos 333-160002 33-59080 333-62739 and

333-138245 on Form S-8 of Minerals Technologies Inc of our reports dated February 24 2012 with respect to the

consolidated balance sheets as of December 31 2011 and 2010 and the related consolidated statements of operations

shareholders equity and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31 2011 and the related

financial statement schedule and the effectiveness of intemal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2011 which

reports appear in the December 31 2011 annual report on Form 10-K of Minerals Technologies Inc

/s/ KPMG LLP

New York New York

February 24 2012



EXHIBIT 31.1

RULE 13a-14a/15d-14a CERTIFICATION

Joseph Muscari certify that

have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Minerals Technologies Inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state material

fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made not

misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly present in

all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of and for the

periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officers and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and

procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15e and Sd- 15e and internal control over financial reporting as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 5f and Sd-i 5f thr the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be

designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including its

consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the period in

which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial reporting

to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial

reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants cLisclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report

our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period

covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that occurred

during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual

report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants internal control over

financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officers and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal control

over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants board of directors

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial

reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record process summarize and

report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant role

in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date February 24 2012

Is Joseph Muscari

Joseph Muscari

Chairman of the Board

and Chief Executive Officer



EXHIBIT 31.2

RULE 13a-14a/15d-14a CERTIFICATION

Douglas Dietrich certify that

have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Minerals Technologies Inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state material

fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made not

misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly present in

all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of and for the

periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officers and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and

procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15e and 5d- 15e and internal control over financial reporting as

defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a-1 5f and 5d-1 5f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be

designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including its

consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the period in

which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial reporting

to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial

reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report

our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period

covered by this report based on such evaluation and the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual

report

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that occurred

during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual

report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants internal control over

financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officers and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal control

over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants board of directors

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial

reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record process summarize and

report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant role

in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date February 24 2012

Is Douglas Dietrich

Douglas Dietrich

Senior Vice President Finance and Treasury

ChiefFinancial Officer



EXHIBIT 32

SECTION 1350 CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 subsections and of Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of

Title 18 United States Code each of the undersigned officers of Minerals Technologies Inc Delaware corporation the

Company does hereby certify that

The Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2011 the Form 10-K of the Company fully

complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and information contained

in the Form 10-K fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition and results of operations of the Company

Dated February 24 2012

Is Joseph Muscari

Joseph Muscari

Chairman of the Board and

Chief Executive Officer

Dated February 24 2012

Douglas Dietrich

Douglas Dietrich

Senior Vice President-Finance and Treasury

Chief Financial Officer

The foregoing certification is being furnished solely pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 3a- 14b is not deemed to be

filed for
purposes

of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 or otherwise subject to the liability of that section

and is not deemed to be incorporated by reference into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Exchange Act of

1934

Is
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Additional Information Regarding Non-GAAP Financial Measures unaudited

The letter to shareholders and other information set forth in the front part of this Annual Report present

financial measures of the Company that exclude certain special items and are therefore not in accordance

with GAAP The following is presentation of the Companys non-GAAP income loss and operating

income loss excluding special items for the twelve month periods ended December 31 2011 and

December 31 2010 and reconciliation to GAAP net income loss and operating income loss

respectively for such periods The Companys management believes these non-GAAP measures provide

meaningful supplemental information regarding its performance as inclusion of such special items are not

indicative of the ongoing operating results and thereby affect the comparability of results between periods

The Company feels inclusion of these non-GAAP measures also provides consistency in its financial

reporting and facilitates investors understanding of historic operating trends

millions of dollars Year Ended

Dec 31 Dec 31
2011 2010

Net Income attributable to MTI as reported 67.5 66.9

Special items

Restructuring and other costs 0.5 0.9

Currency translation losses upon liquidation of foreign entity 1.4 0.0

Gain on sale of previously impaired assets 0.0 0.2
Settlement related to customer contract termination 0.0 0.8
Income tax settlement 1.0 0.0

Related tax effects on special items 0.1 0.1

Net income attributable to MIT excluding special items 68.3 66.9

Basic earnings per share excluding special items 3.78 3.59

Diluted earnings per share excluding special items 3.77 3.58

Segment Operating Income Data

Specialty Minerals Segment 72.8 74.7

Refractories Segment 33.2 28.0

Unallocated Corporate Expenses 5.7 4.4
Consolidated 100.3 98.3

Segment Restructuring And Impairment Costs

Specialty Minerals Segment 1.0 0.5

Refractories Segment 0.6 0.3

Consolidated 0.5 0.8

Segment Operating Income Excluding Special Items

Specialty Minerals Segment 73.8 75.2

Refractories Segment 32.6 28.3

Unallocated Corporate Expenses 5.7 4.4
Consolidated 100.8 99.1






